
 

 

Am unrhyw ymholiad yn ymwneud â'r agenda hwn cysylltwch â Charlotte Evans 
 (Rhif Ffôn: 01443 864210   Ebost: evansca1@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Dyddiad: Dydd Mercher, 7 Hydref 2020 

 
 
Annwyl Syr/Fadam, 
 
Bydd cyfarfod digidol o'r Cabinet yn cael ei gynnal trwy Microsoft Teams ar  Dydd Mercher, 14eg 
Hydref, 2020 am 10.30 am. i ystyried materion a gynhwysir yn yr agenda canlynol.  .  Mae croeso i chi 
ddefnyddio’r iaith Gymraeg yn y cyfarfod, a dylid rhoi cyfnod rhybudd o 3 diwrnod gwaith os ydych yn 
dymuno gwneud hynny.  
 
Bydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei recordio a bydd ar gael i'w weld trwy wefan y Cyngor, ac eithrio 
trafodaethau sy'n ymwneud ag eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig. Felly, bydd delweddau/sain yr 
unigolion sy'n bresennol ac/neu sy'n siarad yn ystod y Cabinet ar gael i'r cyhoedd trwy'r recordiad ar 
wefan y Cyngor: www.caerffili.gov.uk 
 
 

Yr eiddoch yn gywir, 

 
Christina Harrhy 

PRIF WEITHREDWR 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Tudalennau 
  

1  I dderbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
 

 
2  Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb. 

 
Atgoffi’r Cynghorwyr a Swyddogion o'u cyfrifoldeb personol i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiannau personol 
a/neu niweidiol mewn perthynas ag unrhyw eitem o fusnes ar yr agenda hwn yn unol â Deddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 2000, Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor a'r Cod Ymddygiad ar gyfer Cynghorwyr a 
Swyddogion. 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/


 
I gymeradwyo a llofnodi’r cofnodion canlynol:- 
 
3  Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 30ain Medi 2020.  

1 - 6 
 

Nodi- Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet. 
 
4  Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.  

7 - 8 
 

I dderbyn ac ystyried yr adroddiad(au) canlynol y mae angen penderfyniadau gweithredol arnynt:- 
 
5  Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol – Adroddiad Monitro a Gwella Blynddol 2018-2019.  

9 - 56 
 

6  Gweithio Hyblyg.  
57 - 122 

 
7  Trin Arian Parod.  

123 - 144 
 

8  Gwasanaeth Arlwyo Heb Arian - Ysgolion.  
145 - 176 

 
 
Cylchrediad: 
 
Cynghorwyr 
 S. Cook, N. George, C.J. Gordon, P.A. Marsden, S. Morgan, L. Phipps, J. Ridgewell, Mrs E. Stenner a 
R. Whiting,  
 
A Swyddogion Priodol. 
 
SUT FYDDWN YN DEFNYDDIO EICH GWYBODAETH 

Bydd yr unigolion hynny sy’n mynychu cyfarfodydd pwyllgor i siarad/roi tystiolaeth yn cael eu henwi yng nghofnodion y cyfarfod 
hynny, weithiau bydd hyn yn cynnwys eu man gweithio neu fusnes a’r barnau a fynegir. Bydd cofnodion o’r cyfarfod gan gynnwys 
manylion y siaradwyr ar gael i’r cyhoedd ar wefan y Cyngor ar www.caerffili.gov.uk. ac eithrio am drafodaethau sy’n ymwneud ag 
eitemau cyfrinachol neu eithriedig.  
Mae gennych nifer o hawliau mewn perthynas â’r wybodaeth, gan gynnwys yr hawl i gael mynediad at wybodaeth sydd gennym 
amdanoch a’r hawl i gwyno os ydych yn anhapus gyda’r modd y mae eich gwybodaeth yn cael ei brosesu. 
Am wybodaeth bellach ar sut rydym yn prosesu eich gwybodaeth a’ch hawliau, ewch i’r Hysbysiad Preifatrwydd Cyfarfodydd 
Pwyllgor Llawn ar ein gwefan neu cysylltwch â Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol drwy e-bostio griffd2@caerffili.gov.uk  neu ffoniwch  
01443 863028. 

 

http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd
http://www.caerffili.gov.uk/Pwyllgor/Preifatrwydd


  

 

CABINET 
 

COFNODION Y CYFARFOD O BELL A GYNHALIWYD DRWY MICROSOFT 
TEAMS  

DDYDD MERCHER, 30 MEDI 2020 10.30 A.M. 
 
 

YN BRESENNOL: 
 

Y Cynghorydd P. Marsden (Arweinydd) - Cadeirydd 
 

Cynghorwyr: 
 

S. Cook (Gofal Cymdeithasol), N. George (Gwastraff a Diogelwch y Cyhoedd), C.J. Gordon 
(Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), S. Morgan (Economi a Menter), L. Phipps (Tai ac Eiddo), J. 
Ridgewell (Amgylchedd a Seilwaith), E. Stenner (Perfformiad a Gwasanaethau Cwsmeriaid) ac 
R. Whiting (Addysg a Chyflawniad). 

 
 

Ynghyd â: 
 
 C. Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr), R. Edmunds (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a 

Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol), D. Street (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a Thai).  

  
 

Hefyd yn bresennol: 
 

M. Betts (Rheolwr Cynnwys Tenantiaid a’r Gymuned), S. Harris (Swyddog Dros Dro S151), 
Shaun Couzens (Prif Swyddog Tai), Paul Hudson (Arweinydd Tîm Adnewyddu Menter Busnes), 
R. Kyte (Pennaeth Adfywio a Chynllunio), K. Watkins (Swyddog Cyfathrebu ac Ymgysylltu â 
Thenantiaid), R. Tranter (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Swyddog Monitro), C. Evans 
(Swyddog Gwasanaethau Pwyllgor) 
 

 
 

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 
 

Cafwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan M.S. Williams (Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros 
Dro – Cymunedau). 

 
 

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU 
 

Ni wnaed unrhyw ddatganiadau ar ddechrau’r cyfarfod nac yn ystod y cyfarfod. 
 
 
3. CABINET – 9 MEDI 2020 
 

PENDERFYNWYD bod cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 9 Medi 2020 wedi'u 
cymeradwyo fel cofnod cywir. 

 
 

Page 1

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 3



  

 
 
4. BLAENRAGLEN WAITH Y CABINET - I'W NODI 
 

 Darparwyd Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet i'r Cabinet, a oedd yn manylu ar yr adroddiadau a 
drefnwyd rhwng 9 Medi 2020 a 28 Hydref 2020.  Atgoffwyd yr Aelodau mai dogfen waith fyw 
yw Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet ac felly y gallai fod newidiadau iddi.   

 
Ar ôl ystyried a thrafod, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd y dylid nodi'r Flaenraglen Waith. Drwy godi dwylo 
cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar hyn. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD nodi Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet. 
 

 
MATERION YR OEDD ANGEN PENDERFYNIADAU GWEITHREDOL ARNYNT 

 
 

5. TALIADAU LESDDEILIAID 
 
 Amlinellodd yr adroddiad, a ystyriwyd gan y Pwyllgor Craffu Tai ac Adfywio ar 17 Medi 2020, 

gynnig i ddiwygio'r taliadau lesddeiliaid presennol, fel y gall Cartrefi Caerffili adennill y gost 
wirioneddol a ysgwyddwyd am ddarparu'r gwasanaeth a sefydlu polisi prynu prydlesi yn ôl.  

 
 Amlinellodd yr adroddiad gynnig Cartrefi Caerffili i gynyddu'r ffi rheoli lesddeiliaid a godir ar hyn 

o bryd i adlewyrchu'r costau gwirioneddol a ysgwyddir ar gyfer darparu'r gwasanaeth, mae'r 
costau hyn yn cael eu sybsideiddio gan denantiaid ar hyn o bryd drwy'r Cyfrif Refeniw Tai. 

 
 Nododd y Cabinet hefyd y cynnig i gyflwyno taliadau am wasanaethau penodol y gellir eu 

hadennill o dan y telerau a nodir yn y gwahanol brydlesi sydd ar waith. 
 
 Nodwyd bod y Cyfrif Refeniw Tai ar hyn o bryd yn ysgwyddo baich costau heb eu talu am 

ddarparu gwasanaethau i lesddeiliaid.  Fodd bynnag, ni ddylai Cartrefi Caerffili sybsideiddio'r 
gwasanaethau a dderbynnir gan lesddeiliaid na cheisio gwneud incwm dros ben o'r taliadau a 
godir.  Felly, mae'n bwysig bod Cartrefi Caerffili yn mabwysiadu polisi codi tâl mwy cadarn a 
thryloyw er mwyn dangos tegwch a gwerth am arian. 

 
 Nododd y Cabinet fod Swyddogion yn cydnabod yr effaith ariannol y bydd y cynigion yn yr 

adroddiad yn ei chael ar lesddeiliaid ac felly'n cynnwys, er gwybodaeth, y mecanweithiau sydd 
ar waith i gynorthwyo lesddeiliaid i dalu'r costau amrywiol a ysgwyddir a chynigion ar gyfer 
cyflwyno polisi prynu eiddo ar brydles yn ôl. 

 
 Gofynnwyd i'r Cabinet nodi gwelliant yn yr adroddiad yn 5.6, na fyddai cais am y taliad cyntaf a 

gynyddir yn cael ei wneud  tan fis Medi 2022, ac nid 2021, fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad. 
 
  Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad a chynhaliwyd trafodaeth. 
 
 Gofynnodd Aelod o'r Cabinet am eglurhad ar ohirio'r dyddiad dechrau hyd at fis Medi 2022 ac 

a oedd hyn o ganlyniad uniongyrchol i Bandemig Covid-19.  Cyfeiriodd swyddogion at y gwall 
teipio yn yr adroddiad ac esboniodd fod y bil am daliadau lesddeiliaid yn aml yn cymryd hyd at 
18 mis i'w goladu a'i anfon ac felly mae dyddiad codi tâl Medi 2022 o ganlyniad i ddarparu 
gwasanaethau ac amserlenni ac nid effaith uniongyrchol y Pandemig. 

 
 Diolchodd yr Arweinydd i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad ac roedd yn falch o nodi y codir tâl am 

gostau gwirioneddol a chroesawodd y cynnydd i’w gyflwyno fesul cam. 
 
  Ar ôl ystyried a thrafod, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr adroddiad yn cael ei gymeradwyo.  Drwy 

godi dwylo, cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar hyn. 
 

Page 2



  

i) Cymeradwyo’r cynnydd arfaethedig mewn ffioedd rheoli lesddeiliaid a 
chyflwyno ailgodiadau tâl ar gyfer darparu gwasanaethau penodol; 
 

ii) Cymeradwyo’r cynnydd fesul cam o’r ffioedd rheoli lesddeiliaid fel yr amlinellir 
yn adran 5.6, opsiwn 2 yn adroddiad y Swyddogion i ddod yn weithredol o Ebrill 
1af, 2021; 

 
iii) Sefydlu polisi 'prynu'n ôl' eiddo lesddaliad Cartrefi Caerffili, i'w weithredu mewn 

ymgynghoriad â'r Aelod Cabinet dros Dai ac Eiddo. 
  
 

6. FFRAMWAITH STRATEGOL AR GYFER ADFER 
 

Roedd yr adroddiad yn gofyn am gytundeb gan y Cabinet ar Fframwaith Strategol ar gyfer 
Adfer a fydd yn helpu'r Cyngor a'r Fwrdeistref Sirol ehangach i adfer tra'n parhau i gefnogi'r 
Amcanion Llesiant a nodir yng Nghynllun Corfforaethol 2018-23. 
 
Mae pandemig Covid-19 wedi cyflwyno set ddigynsail o heriau i'r Cyngor a'r cymunedau y 
mae’n eu gwasanaethu ers mis Mawrth 2020.  Yn ystod y cyfnod hwn, ffocws strategol y 
Cyngor fu ar "amddiffyn pobl a lle". 
 
Derbyniodd y Cabinet adroddiad ym mis Mehefin 2020 a roddodd y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf 
am y gwaith sylweddol a wnaed gan y Cyngor a'i staff i gefnogi'r nodau strategol hyn.  
Derbyniodd y Cyngor llawn yr un adroddiad ar 10 Medi 2020. 
 
Mae digwyddiadau diwedd Awst a dechrau mis Medi wedi dangos bod y pandemig yn dal yn 
"fyw" a bod y cynnydd mewn achosion yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol yn profi'n bendant ein bod yn 
parhau i fod mewn cyfnod o ymateb.  Gall digwyddiadau o'r fath arwain at ailflaenoriaethu 
adnoddau ac amharu ar amserlenni gwaith arferol wrth i staff ganolbwyntio ar ymateb brys.  
Fodd bynnag, cyn y digwyddiadau diweddar hyn, mae'r Cyngor wedi bod yn dechrau cynllunio 
ar gyfer adferiad a symud tuag at yr adferiad hwnnw.  Mae'n bwysig felly bod Fframwaith ar 
gyfer rheoli'r adferiad ar draws Caerffili ar waith i lywio'r camau nesaf a bod ffocws strategol 
newydd yn cael ei fabwysiadu. 
 
Nododd y Cabinet fod yr adroddiad yn amlinellu nod strategol ar gyfer ein Hadferiad, ynghyd â 
set o egwyddorion a gwerthoedd sylfaenol ar gyfer llywio ein gwaith adfer. 
 
Amlinellodd y Prif Weithredwr fod Caerffili ar hyn o bryd yng nghyfnod Ymateb y cynllun, lle 
mae hyblygrwydd yn hollbwysig er mwyn diwallu anghenion y fwrdeistref a'i thrigolion.  
Atgoffwyd yr Aelodau bod y Pandemig yn mynd rhagddo ac y gallai gymryd amser hir i adfer, 
ond mae'r flaenoriaeth yn parhau i amddiffyn ein pobl a'n hardal. 

 
Nododd y Cabinet y profiadau dysgu a gafwyd o ganlyniad i'r Pandemig presennol a'r 
berthynas gadarnhaol sydd wedi’i meithrin gyda chymunedau yn ystod y cyfnod hwn.  
Nodwyd bod y berthynas hon yn hanfodol wrth i ni symud tuag at gyfnod adfer, yn enwedig 
gan y bydd yn ofynnol i waith gyda'r gymuned ail-lunio'r sefydliad, a diwallu'r anghenion 
cymdeithasol, economaidd ac amgylcheddol sy’n deillio. 
 
Tynnodd y Prif Weithredwr sylw at y cysylltiadau â'r Amcanion Llesiant a rhoddodd amlinelliad 
manwl i'r Cabinet o bob un o'r 5 Egwyddor Strategol yn yr adroddiad. 
 
Ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg fod y gwaith adfer wedi'i oedi o ganlyniad i'r 
cyfyngiadau lleol, ac felly mae rhai aelodau o staff wedi'u hadleoli er mwyn bodloni'r gofynion 
presennol a gofynnwyd i Benaethiaid Gwasanaeth adolygu cynlluniau ac ystyried y 
goblygiadau a gaiff yr ail don yn ystod y gaeaf.  
 
Wrth nodi'r cyfeiriad at yr Amcanion Llesiant yn yr adroddiad, gofynnodd Aelod o’r Cabinet am 
sicrwydd y bydd yr Adolygiad Corfforaethol yn adlewyrchu egwyddorion Deddf Llesiant 

Page 3



  

Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol.  Sicrhaodd swyddogion y Cabinet y bydd hyn yn cael ei ystyried drwy 
gydol y broses. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod o'r Cabinet am ragor o wybodaeth am y gwaith rhanbarthol i weithredu'r 
Fframwaith.  Esboniodd swyddogion y bydd angen dull gweithredu partneriaeth er mwyn 
cyflawni'r Fframwaith.  Mae gwaith yn mynd rhagddo gyda'r Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus 
er mwyn ymgorffori'r agenda, yn ogystal â G10 a Llwyfannau Cynllunio Argyfwng, er mwyn 
lliniaru effaith y Pandemig ar gymunedau a busnesau fel ei gilydd.  Yn ogystal, mae 
cyfarfodydd rheolaidd yn mynd rhagddynt gyda phartneriaid ar Brifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd 
ac asiantaethau partner ym maes Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol er mwyn ystyried y camau i 
ddiogelu cartrefi gofal a'r sector iechyd yn ystod y gaeaf.  Gofynnwyd i'r Cabinet nodi y bydd 
Llywodraeth Cymru yn disgwyl mwy o ffocws ar weithio mewn partneriaeth wrth symud 
ymlaen. 
 
Diolchodd Aelod o'r Cabinet i'r Swyddogion am yr adroddiad a nododd y gwaith eithriadol 
sydd wedi'i wneud ers dechrau'r Pandemig a'r cyfyngiadau ym mis Mawrth, am hyblygrwydd 
yr awdurdod ac am y newid cyflym yn y gwasanaethau a ddarperir a diolchodd i’r Swyddogion 
am eu hymrwymiad a'u hymdrechion yn ystod y cyfnod anodd hwn. 

 
Ar ôl ystyried a thrafod, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn cael ei 
gymeradwyo.  Drwy godi dwylo cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar hyn. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD bod y Fframwaith Adfer Strategol ar gyfer Caerffili yn cael ei 
gymeradwyo am y rhesymau a geir yn adroddiad y swyddog. 
 

 

7. COVID 19 – FFRAMWAITH ADFER ECONOMAIDD 
 

Roedd yr adroddiad yn rhoi trosolwg i'r Cabinet o'r fframwaith adfer economaidd sy'n cynnwys 
tri cham penodol: 

 Y Cyfnod Ailgychwyn; 

 Y Cyfnod Adfywio; 

 Y Cyfnod Adnewyddu 
 

Nododd y Cabinet fod pandemig Covid-19 yn amharu'n ddigynsail ar ein cymunedau a'r 
economi leol.  Mewn ymateb, mae'r Cyngor wedi paratoi fframwaith ar gyfer adferiad sydd â'r 
nod o gefnogi'r Cyngor a'r fwrdeistref sirol ehangach i adfer.  Mae'r fframwaith yn nodi 5 
egwyddor sylfaenol, ac mae un ohonynt yn cynnwys "Cymorth busnes". 
 
Mae'r Fwrdeistref Sirol yn wynebu heriau uniongyrchol gan fod effeithiau Covid-19 yn effeithio 
ar bob sector, ar fusnesau ac ar swyddi.  Mae Partneriaid Busnes yn wynebu'r dasg o ddeall 
goblygiadau Covid-19 sy'n esblygu i'w busnes ac maent yn ei chael hi’n anodd deall sut i 
ymateb.  Felly, mae'r Cyngor yn ceisio cefnogi busnesau a phobl sy'n wynebu diswyddiadau 
gyda'r heriau enfawr sydd o'n blaenau.  Mae'r fframwaith adfer economaidd yn cefnogi'r 
egwyddor "Cymorth busnes" ac mae'r adroddiad yn amlinellu'r fframwaith adfer economaidd 
sy'n cael ei ddefnyddio, yn seiliedig ar dri cham penodol fel yr amlinellir uchod. 
 
Esboniodd y Swyddog fod tri cham yn y rhaglen, Ailgychwyn, Adfywio ac Adolygu.  Nodwyd bod 
gwaith yn mynd rhagddo o fewn Cam Ailgychwyn y Fframwaith, ac mae amserlenni'n ansicr ar 
hyn o bryd, ond mae gwaith sylweddol ar y gweill i gynorthwyo Busnesau a Gweithwyr fel ei 
gilydd i liniaru goblygiadau'r pandemig ar yr amgylchedd Busnes.  Mae cyfathrebu'n allweddol 
drwy gydol y broses ac o ganlyniad i gynllun cyfathrebu cadarn, mae nifer o grantiau wedi'u 
dyrannu i gefnogi busnesau lleol yn ystod cyfnodau’r cyfyngiadau. 
 
Mae gwaith gyda phartneriaid yn mynd rhagddo i ystyried goblygiadau diwedd y cynllun ffyrlo 
a’r diswyddiadau dilynol o ganlyniad i fusnesau'n lleihau.  Gwnaed cysylltiadau i edrych ar baru 
swyddi ac uwchsgilio gweithwyr lle y bo'n bosibl er mwyn ateb y galw am gyflogaeth dros dro a 
pharhaol, yn enwedig ym maes gweithgynhyrchu. 

Page 4



  

Mae gwaith cydweithredol wedi bod yn mynd rhagddo gyda Safonau Trwyddedu a Masnach i 
gefnogi'r Sector Lletygarwch, yn enwedig gyda dodrefn a darparu ar gyfer mannau awyr agored 
ar gyfer darparu gwasanaethau, yn ogystal â defnyddio cynlluniau fel y cynllun 'Bwyta allan i 
helpu allan'. 
 
Nodwyd y bydd y Cynllun Economaidd yn bwydo'r Cyfnod Adfywio, ac mae ymgynghorydd 
wedi'i gyflogi i ddarparu adroddiad rhagarweiniol.  Mae llawer o ansicrwydd ar hyn o bryd, er 
enghraifft canlyniadau Brexit a datblygu brechlyn addas yn erbyn lledaeniad Covid-19. 
 
Nododd y Cabinet y bydd y Cyfnod Adnewyddu yn cysylltu â'r Prif Gynlluniau, gan geisio 
cyflymu rhai prosiectau a amlinellir yn y cynlluniau, er mwyn annog a helpu’r adferiad. 

 
Diolchodd y Cabinet i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad a chynhaliwyd trafodaeth. 
 
Diolchodd yr Arweinydd i'r Swyddog am yr adroddiad a’r gwaith sylweddol a wnaed gan y Tîm 
Cymorth Busnes a Chyllid i rannu'r grantiau.  Yn ogystal, nodwyd bod gan staff mewn 
busnesau undebol fynediad i Gronfa Ddysgu Cymru, lle mae cyfleoedd hyfforddi ar gael. 
 
Gofynnodd Aelod o'r Cabinet, wrth nodi'r adroddiad cynhwysfawr, am ragor o wybodaeth am y 
cyllid sydd ar gael ar gyfer y Celfyddydau Creadigol.  Esboniodd swyddogion fod cyllid o 
ychydig o dan £60m ar gael i fusnesau ym maes y Celfyddydau Creadigol, sy'n cwmpasu nifer 
o feysydd, gan gynnwys gweithwyr llawrydd.  Gweinyddir y grantiau gan Gyngor Celfyddydau 
Cymru, Llywodraeth Cymru ac Awdurdodau Lleol, ac mae gwybodaeth ar gael ar-lein ynglŷn 
â'r meini prawf cymhwysedd.  Cytunodd swyddogion i ddarparu'r ddolen i’r meini prawf, i'r 
Aelodau ei rhannu.  
 
Gofynnodd Aelod o'r Cabinet am ragor o wybodaeth am ddiswyddiadau, yn enwedig y 
cymorth a'r cyfleoedd paru swyddi sydd ar waith ar gyfer peirianwyr medrus iawn a defnyddio 
swyddi gwag mewn busnesau yn Ardaloedd Prifddinas-ranbarth Caerdydd.  Esboniodd 
swyddogion fod gwaith ar y gweill i ystyried paru swyddi lle bo hynny'n bosibl a bod mentoriaid 
cyflogaeth a chymorth gan yr Adran Gwaith a Phensiynau yn cael eu defnyddio lle y bo'n 
bosibl.  Yn ogystal, nodwyd bod ffocws i gefnogi ailhyfforddi, yn enwedig yn y sector 
gweithgynhyrchu, lle mae bylchau wedi'u nodi a lle y gellir paru swyddi. 

 
Ar ôl ystyried a thrafod, cynigiwyd ac eiliwyd bod yr argymhelliad yn yr adroddiad yn cael ei 
gymeradwyo.  Drwy godi dwylo cytunwyd yn unfrydol ar hyn. 
 

PENDERFYNWYD am y rhesymau a geir yn adroddiad y swyddog: - 
 

i) Dylid nodi ymateb sylweddol y llywodraeth a chyflwyniad cyflym y cymorth 
ariannol a busnes sydd wedi digwydd yn y Cyfnod Ailgychwyn, er mwyn helpu 
busnesau yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol; 

 
ii) Dylid nodi'r ymchwil sy'n cael ei wneud yn ystod y Cyfnod Adfywio i ddeall 

unrhyw effeithiau parhaol Covid a'r posibilrwydd o Brexit heb gytundeb ar yr 
economi leol; 

 
iii) Cytuno ar y Cyfeiriad Strategol a gynigir ar gyfer y Cyfnod Adnewyddu. 

 
 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 11.35. 
 

Cymeradwywyd a llofnodwyd y cofnodion fel cofnod cywir yn amodol ar unrhyw gywiriadau a 
wneir yn y cyfarfod a gynhelir ar 14 Hydref 2020. 
 

____________________ 
CADEIRYDD 

Page 5



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 6



Dyddiad 
Cabinet Teitl Materion Allweddol Awdur Aelod Cabinet 

14/10/2020 
10:30 Gweithio ystwyth/hyblyg 

Cynnig model gweithio hyblyg ar gyfer y 
Cyngor Edmunds, Richard (Addysg); 

Y Cynghorydd 
Gordon, Colin J; 

14/10/2020 
10:30 

Cynnig ar gyfer diwygio dull y 
Cyngor o ran ymdrin ag arian 
parod 

Rhoi'r mecanweithiau angenrheidiol ar waith i 
sicrhau bod modd casglu arian parod yn y 
tymor byr yn ogystal â gwneud nifer o gynigion 
i newid dull y Cyngor o ran ymdrin ag arian 
parod o’r tymor canolig i’r tymor hir. Harris, Stephen R; 

Y Cynghorydd 
Stenner, Eluned; 

14/10/2020 
10:30 

Adroddiad Cydraddoldeb 
Blynyddol 2018/19 

Ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cabinet ar gyfer yr 
adroddiad Statudol Blynyddol 2018/19 Cullinane, Anwen; 

Y Cynghorydd 
Stenner, Eluned; 

14/10/2020 
10:30 Arlwyo heb arian parod 

Diweddaru Aelodau ar y sefyllfa bresennol 
mewn perthynas â dull arlwyo heb arian parod 
mewn ysgolion y Cyngor a cheisio 
cymeradwyaeth cyllid i ehangu'r ddarpariaeth. Richards, Sue; 

Y Cynghorydd 
Whiting, Ross; 

28/10/2020 
10:30 

(16) Polisi Trosglwyddo Asedau 
Cymunedol  

Cynllun Strategol - Datblygu polisi ac opsiynau i 
ddarparu fframwaith ar gyfer trosglwyddo 
asedau cymunedol 

Peters, Kathryn;Broadhurst, 
Timothy; 

Y Cynghorydd 
Phipps, Lisa; 

28/10/2020 
10:30 

Gweithdrefn Recriwtio fwy 
Diogel 

Er mwyn i'r Cabinet ystyried y weithdrefn 
recriwtio fwy diogel a'r polisi Gwasanaeth 
Datgelu a Gwahardd sy'n amlinellu'n glir 
ymrwymiad y Cyngor i recriwtio mwy diogel ac 
ymarfer Gwasanaeth Datgelu a Gwahardd ac 
atebolrwydd swyddogion er mwyn sicrhau 
hynny. Mae'r polisi Gwasanaeth Datgelu a 
Gwahardd mewn perthynas ag ysgolion yn 
dangos ymrwymiad i sicrhau ymarfer 
Gwasanaeth Datgelu a Gwahardd cadarn 
mewn ysgolion Donovan, Lynne; 

Y Cynghorydd 
Gordon, Colin J 

P
age 7 E

item
 A

r Y
r A

genda 4



28/10/2020 
10:30 

Rhyddid y Fwrdeistref - Y Lleng 
Brydeinig Frenhinol 

Ceisio cymeradwyaeth y Cyngor i gyflwyno 
Rhyddid y Fwrdeistref i'r Lleng Brydeinig 
Frenhinol Forbes-Thompson, Cath 

Y Cynghorydd 
Marsden, Philippa; 

28/10/2020 
10:30 Trwyddedau Palmentydd 

Adolygu a diweddaru dull y Cyngor o ran 
cyflwyno trwyddedau palmentydd ar gyfer 
gosod eitemau a masnachu ar y briffordd. Williams, Mark S; 

Y Cynghorydd 
Ridgewell, John; 

 

P
age 8



 
 

CABINET – 14 HYDREF 2020 
 

PWNC: CYNLLUN CYDRADDOLDEB STRATEGOL – ADRODDIAD 
MONITRO A GWELLA BLYNYDDOL 2018-2019 

 

ADRODDIAD GAN: CYFARWYDDWR CORFFORAETHOL – ADDYSG A 
GWASANAETHAU CORFFORAETHOL 

 

 
1. DIBEN YR ADRODDIAD 
 
1.1 I hysbysu'r Cabinet am y cynnydd a wnaed yn ystod y flwyddyn ariannol 2018-2019 yn erbyn 

targedau yng Nghynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol cyfredol y Cyngor, ac i'r Cabinet ei 
gymeradwyo i'w gyflwyno i'r Comisiwn Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol a'i gyhoeddi ar-lein. 

 
 
2. CRYNODEB 
 
2.1 Mae dyletswydd statudol ar y Cyngor i baratoi adroddiad monitro blynyddol ar faterion sy'n 

ymwneud â Chydraddoldebau o dan y ddeddfwriaeth gyfredol.  Mae'r gofynion yn fanwl iawn 
o ran pa wybodaeth berthnasol y mae'n rhaid ei chynnwys yn yr adroddiad monitro a gwella 
blynyddol (a atodir yn llawn fel atodiad). 

 
2.2 Felly cyflwynir y wybodaeth er mwyn sicrhau bod y corff rheoleiddio dan sylw (y Comisiwn 

Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol) yn cael tystiolaeth lawn o gydymffurfiaeth y Cyngor â'r 
dyletswyddau statudol hynny a'i ymrwymiad iddynt.  

 
2.3 Rhaid i'r Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol - Adroddiad Monitro a Gwella Blynyddol gael ei 

gyhoeddi erbyn 31 Mawrth y flwyddyn ganlynol.  Ym mis Mawrth eleni ysgrifennodd y 
Comisiwn Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol at bob awdurdod lleol i gynghori eu bod wedi 
gwneud y penderfyniad i atal eu gwiriad cydymffurfio wrth gyhoeddi adroddiadau blynyddol a 
Chynlluniau Cydraddoldeb Strategol tan fis Hydref.  Cymerwyd y penderfyniad hwn fel 
cydnabyddiaeth o'r amgylchiadau anhygoel o anodd y mae cyrff rhestredig yn gweithredu 
ynddynt oherwydd Pandemig Covid-19. 

 
 
3. ARGYMHELLION 
 
3.1 I'r Cabinet gymeradwyo'r adroddiad monitro a gwella blynyddol i'w gyflwyno i'r Comisiwn 

Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol a'i gyhoeddi ar-lein. 
 
 
4. RHESYMAU DROS YR ARGYMHELLION 
 
4.1 Mae'n ofynnol i'r Cyngor o dan Reoliadau Deddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 (Dyletswyddau Statudol) 

(Cymru) 2011 baratoi adroddiad monitro blynyddol ar y camau a gymerwyd ganddo i gyflawni 
dyletswydd cydraddoldeb y sector cyhoeddus a'i Amcanion Cydraddoldeb ei hun.  

 
 

Page 9

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 5



5. YR ADRODDIAD  
 
5.1 O dan Ddyletswydd Cydraddoldeb y Sector Cyhoeddus yng Nghymru, mae'n rhaid i adroddiad 

blynyddol ar y Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol gael ei gyhoeddi o fewn 12 mis ar ôl diwedd y 
flwyddyn ariannol y mae a wnelo'r adroddiad hwnnw â hi. 

 
5.2 Atodir Adroddiad Monitro a Gwella Blynyddol 2018-2019  y Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol i'r 

adroddiad hwn.  
5.3 Fodd bynnag, i grynhoi, dylid nodi'r wybodaeth ganlynol am berfformiad sy'n ymwneud â'r  

flwyddyn ariannol dan sylw: 
 

 Yn ein cyflwyniad yn 2018 i Fynegai Cydraddoldeb Addysg Stonewall, parhaodd 
Caerffili i fod ar y brig yng Nghymru o ran ymarfer cynhwysol a symudodd o safle 21 i 
safle 19 yn y DU.  Mae'r mynegai yn ystyried y gwaith a wnaed gennym i fynd i'r afael 
â bwlio homoffobig, deuffobig a thrawsffobig mewn ysgolion.   

 Cyhoeddwyd ein Datganiad ar y Bwlch Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau ar gyfer 2018.  
Dangosodd y data fod Bwlch Cyflog Cymedrig o 7.4% rhwng y Rhywiau ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn. 

 Defnyddiwyd £90,000 o gyllid ar gyfer gwaith gwella mynediad i bobl anabl, a oedd yn 
cynnwys gwella mynediad i dderbynfeydd a phrif fynedfeydd canolfannau hamdden, 
clybiau ieuenctid a chanolfannau dydd.  Gosodwyd drysau awtomatig, rampiau, 
canllawiau a lifftiau hefyd mewn rhai ysgolion lle y nodwyd bod eu hangen. 

 Ar ôl archwiliad llawn o wefan y Cyngor, cynyddodd cynnwys tudalennau gwe 
dwyieithog i 100%.  Mae nifer o is-wefannau sy'n parhau i fod yn Saesneg yn cael eu 
huwchraddio drwy raglen waith er mwyn sicrhau eu bod yn ddwyieithog ac yn hygyrch. 

 Cymerwyd rhan yn Pride Cymru 2018 ac ymunodd aelodau o'r staff, Llysgenhadon 
LHDT a'r Maer yn yr orymdaith am y tro cyntaf o dan y faner 'Cyngor Balch'. 

 Mewn partneriaeth â Menter Iaith Caerffili a phartneriaid Fforwm y Gymraeg, 
datblygwyd llyfryn i rieni a darpar rieni er mwyn iddynt ystyried addysg cyfrwng 
Cymraeg i'w plant.  Mae''r gwaith yn gweithredu ar gam yn Strategaeth y Gymraeg y 
fwrdeistref sirol. 

 Cawsom Wobr Arian yn gydnabyddiaeth am ein hymrwymiad i'r Gymuned Amddiffyn 
a'r Lluoedd Arfog.  Roedd y wobr yn cydnabod y gwaith a wnaed gennym i sicrhau bod 
polisïau a gweithdrefnau adnoddau dynol ar waith i roi hyblygrwydd o ran 
ymrwymiadau hyfforddiant ac ymgynnull a chanolbwyntio ar wella cyfleoedd cyflogaeth 
i aelodau o'r Lluoedd Arfog. 

 
5.4 Casgliad           
 
 Mae'r adroddiad yn dangos cynnydd y Cyngor yn ystod y flwyddyn ariannol 2018-2019 yn 

erbyn targedau yng Nghynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol cyfredol y Cyngor.  
 
 
6. RHAGDYBIAETHAU 
 
6.1 Ni wnaed unrhyw ragdybiaethau wrth baratoi'r adroddiad hwn. 
 
 
7. CYSYLLTIADAU Â PHOLISÏAU PERTHNASOL Y CYNGOR 
 
7.1 Cynllun Corfforaethol 2018-2023  
 
 Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn cyd-fynd ag amcanion canlynol Cynllun Corfforaethol 2018-2023; 
 
 Amcan 1 - Gwella cyfleoedd addysg i bawb 
 Amcan 2 - Galluogi cyflogaeth 

Amcan 6 - Helpu dinasyddion i barhau i fod yn annibynnol a gwella eu llesiant 
 

Page 10



7.2 Ceir hefyd nifer o strategaethau cenedlaethol neu reoliadau gan Lywodraeth Cymru y mae 
gwaith Cydraddoldebau'r Cyngor yn gysylltiedig â nhw;  
 

 “Ffyniant i Bawb ” a “Cynllun Cyflawni Cenedlaethol Cydlyniant Cymunedol” - 
Strategaethau Cydlyniant Cymunedol Llywodraeth Cymru  

 “Mynd i'r Afael â Throseddau a Digwyddiadau Casineb: Fframwaith Gweithredu" 
ymrwymiad Llywodraeth Cymru i herio gelyniaeth a rhagfarn, gyda'r nod o ysgogi mwy o 
arweiniad a gwaith partneriaeth yng Nghymru er mwyn herio troseddau casineb a mynd i'r 
afael â nhw.   

 “Teithio at Ddyfodol Gwell” – Fframwaith Gweithredu a Chynllun Cyflawni Llywodraeth 
Cymru i Sipsiwn a Theithwyr;   

 “Cymraeg 2050: Strategaeth y Gymraeg” – fframwaith Llywodraeth Cymru i gefnogi ac 
ehangu'r defnydd o'r Gymraeg, ac agweddau amrywiol ar reoliadau Cynllunio, Trwyddedu 
ac Adeiladu. 

 
 
8. LLESIANT CENEDLAETHAU'R DYFODOL 
 
8.1 Mae materion sy'n ymwneud â Chydraddoldebau yn themâu trawsbynciol y Nodau Llesiant yn 

Neddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015 ac maent yn effeithio ar holl bolisïau, 
swyddogaethau a gweithdrefnau'r Cyngor, gan gwmpasu'r rhai sydd wedi'u hanelu at y 
polisïau cyhoeddus a mewnol sy'n cwmpasu aelodau o staff y Cyngor.  Mae'r adroddiad yn 
cyfrannu at y Nodau Llesiant canlynol: 

 

 Cymru sy'n fwy cyfartal* 

 Cymru o gymunedau cydlynus* 

 Cymru â diwylliant bywiog lle mae'r Gymraeg yn ffynnu* 
 

 Hirdymor – Sicrhau bod y Cyngor yn darparu gwasanaethau sy'n cael eu cyflwyno yn unol 
ag anghenion ei breswylwyr. 

 Atal – Mae'r adroddiad yn rhoi tystiolaeth o'r gwaith a wnaed er mwyn sicrhau bod y staff 
yn cael eu hyfforddi a bod gwasanaethau yn cael eu darparu mewn ffordd gynhwysol nad 
yw'n gwahaniaethu. 

 Integreiddio – Bydd integreiddio Cydraddoldebau a'r Gymraeg â'r polisïau a'r cynlluniau 
sydd ar waith gan y Cyngor yn sicrhau cysondeb o ran cyflawni amcanion a chyflwyno 
adroddiadau ar ddyletswyddau ac yn meithrin perthynas gydgysylltiedig a chryfach rhwng 
gwasanaethau. 

 Cydweithredu – mae'r adroddiad yn rhoi tystiolaeth o'r gwaith a wnaed drwy gydweithio â 
nifer o bartneriaid y Cyngor. 

 Cynnwys – mae'n bwysig iawn ein bod yn cynnwys pobl a phartneriaid yn y gwaith a 
wnawn, fel y bydd y gwaith yn gydgysylltiedig ac yn gyson ond hefyd fel y gall pobl o 
gefndiroedd amrywiol ddylanwadu ar newid drwy ddarparu gwasanaethau a rhoi polisïau 
ar waith. 

 
 
9. GOBLYGIADAU CYDRADDOLDEBAU 
 
9.1 Cynhaliwyd asesiad llawn ac ymgynghoriad ar Gydraddoldebau mewn perthynas â'r Cynllun 

Cydraddoldeb Strategol wrth iddo gael ei ddatblygu, felly ni wnaed asesiad llawn o'r adroddiad 
blynyddol hwn. Mae'r adroddiad ei hun yn asesu'r hyn a gyflawnwyd gan y Cyngor o dan y Cynllun. 

 
 
10. GOBLYGIADAU ARIANNOL 
 
10.1 Nid oes unrhyw oblygiadau ariannol uniongyrchol i'r adroddiad hwn am fod yr adroddiad 

blynyddol yn cwmpasu gwaith a wnaed eisoes yn y flwyddyn ariannol flaenorol. 
 

Page 11



11. GOBLYGIADAU O RAN PERSONÉL 
 
11.1 Nid oes i'r adroddiad hwn unrhyw oblygiadau o ran personél, ond parheir i adolygu hyn wrth i'r 

gwaith a nodwyd yn y Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol fynd rhagddo. 
12. YMGYNGHORIADAU 
 
12.1 Mae'r adroddiad yn seiliedig ar ddata a gasglwyd ym mhob maes gwasanaeth ar weithredu'r 

Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol yn ystod 2018-2019.   
 
12.2 Anfonwyd yr adroddiad hwn at yr Ymgyngoreion a restrir isod ac mae'r holl sylwadau a 

gyflwynwyd wedi'u hadlewyrchu yn yr adroddiad hwn. 
 
 
13. PŴER STATUDOL  
 
13.1 Rheoliadau Deddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 (Dyletswyddau Statudol) (Cymru) 2011 
 Rheoliadau Deddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 (Dyletswyddau Penodol ac Awdurdodau Cyhoeddus) 2017 

Mesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011 
Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) 2015  
Deddf Hawliau Dynol 1998 
Mesur Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) 2011 

 
 
Awdur: Anwen Cullinane, Uwch Swyddog Polisi – Cydraddoldeb, y Gymraeg ac 

Ymgynghori – cullima@caerffili.gov.uk 
 
Ymgyngoreion: Christina Harrhy – Prif Weithredwr 

Richard Edmunds – Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Corfforaethol 
Y Cynghorydd Eluned Stenner – Aelod y Cabinet dros Gyllid – Perfformiad a Chynllunio 
Y Cynghorydd James Pritchard – Cadeirydd Pwyllgor Craffu Polisi ac Adnoddau 
Sue Richards – Pennaeth Cynllunio Addysg a Strategaeth 
Stephen Harris – Pennaeth Cyllid Corfforaethol a S151 
Robert Tranter – Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Swyddog Monitro 
Lynne Donovan – Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Pobl 
Keri Cole – Prif Swyddog Addysg 
Mark Williams – Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Eiddo Dros Dro 
Kathryn Peters – Rheolwr Gwella Gwasanaethau a Phartneriaethau 
Ros Roberts – Rheolwr Gwella Busnes 
Christopher Hunt – Cydlynydd Cydlyniant Cymunedol  (Gorllewin Gwent) 

 Elizabeth Sharma – Swyddog Ymgynghori ac Ymgysylltu  
Siân Wolf-Williams – Swyddog Polisi – Arweinydd Rhaglen Adleoli Syriaid 
Mark Jennings – Swyddog Strategaeth Dai 
Lisa Rawlings – Swyddog Rhanbarthol Cyfamod y Lluoedd Arfog 
Emma Bush – Seicolegydd Addysgol 
Lyndon Samuel – Cydlynydd Cyswllt Ysgolion Rhanbarthol, Heddlu Gwent 

 
 
Papurau Cefndir: 

 Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol 2016-2020 

 Amcanion a Chynllun Gweithredu ar gyfer Cydraddoldebau a'r Iaith Gymraeg 2016-2020 

 Hysbysiad Cydymffurfio – Adran 44 o Fesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011 

 Adroddiad i'r Cabinet ar 18 Ionawr 2017 – Strategaeth y Gymraeg 2017-2022 

 Dogfennau Canllaw Amrywiol (Mae'r rhain ar gael yn electronig er gwybodaeth drwy Borth y 
Fewnrwyd ac ar wefan y Cyngor yn https://www.caerffili.gov.uk/cydraddoldeb) 

 
Atodiadau: 
Atodiad 1 Adroddiad Blynyddol 2018-2019 y Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol 

Page 12

mailto:cullima@caerffili.gov.uk
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities?lang=cy-gb


 

 

 

Cyngor Bwrdeistref  
Sirol Caerffili 

Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol 
 

Adroddiad Monitro a Gwella 
Blynyddol 

2018 – 2019 
 

 
Mae'r Cyngor hwn yn cydnabod bod gan bobl anghenion, gofynion a nodau 
gwahanol, a byddwn yn gweithio yn erbyn pob math o wahaniaethu drwy 
hyrwyddo cysylltiadau da a chyd-barch o fewn ein cymunedau, ein preswylwyr, ein 
haelodau etholedig, y rhai sy'n gwneud cais i ni am swyddi a'n gweithlu a 
rhyngddynt. 
 
Byddwn hefyd yn gweithio i sicrhau bod gan bawb fynediad cyfartal at ein 
gwasanaethau, heb ystyried tarddiad ethnig, rhyw, oedran, statws priodasol, 
cyfeiriadedd rhywiol, anabledd, ailbennu rhywedd, credoau crefyddol neu ddiffyg 
ffydd, y defnydd o'r Gymraeg, iaith arwyddion Prydain neu ieithoedd eraill, 
cenedligrwydd, cyfrifoldeb am unrhyw ddibynyddion nac unrhyw reswm arall na 
ellir dangos bod cyfiawnhad drosto. 
 

 

Cyhoeddwyd 23 Hydref 2020 

Page 13



 

 

Cynnwys 
 

Rhagarweiniad ................................................................................ 2 

Delio â Thrais a Cham-drin ar sail Hunaniaeth ............................ 3 

Mynd i'r Afael â'r Bwlch Cyflog Rhwng y Rhywiau ..................... 9 

Gwella Mynediad Corfforol ........................................................ 111 

Gwella Mynediad Cyfathrebu..................................................... 122 

Ymgysylltu a Chyfranogiad Cynhwysol ................................... 144 

Cydymffurfio â Safonau'r Gymraeg .......................................... 166 

Cefnogi Cymunedau sy'n Gyfeillgar i Oed .... Error! Bookmark not 

defined.1 

Cefnogi Cyfamod y Lluoedd Arfog ........................................... 233 

Gweithio gyda Chymunedau Sipsiwn a Theithwyr .................... 26 

Amrywiaeth yn y Gweithlu ....................................................... 2727 

Cydymffurfiaeth Gorfforaethol .................................................. 333 

Arferion Da, Teilwra Gwasanaethau a Hyrwyddo ...................... 35 

Atodiad A - Crynodeb o'r Data ar y Gweithlu ........................... 411 

 

 
 

Mae'r cyhoeddiad hwn ar gael yn Saesneg.  Mae ar gael mewn ieithoedd a fformatau eraill ar gais. 
This publication is available in English.  It is available in other languages and formats on request. 

Page 14



 

 2 

 

Rhagarweiniad 
 

Mae'n ofynnol i'r Cyngor o dan Reoliadau Deddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 (Dyletswyddau 
Statudol) (Cymru) 2011 baratoi adroddiad monitro blynyddol ar y camau a gymerwyd i 
gyflawni dyletswydd cydraddoldeb y sector cyhoeddus a'i Amcanion Cydraddoldeb ei 
hun.  Llywodraeth Cymru oedd y llywodraeth gyntaf i osod dyletswyddau penodol ar 
wasanaethau cyhoeddus yn ychwanegol at y rhai sy'n ofynnol o dan y Ddeddf.  Mae'r 
Ddeddf yn gosod dyletswydd ar gyrff cyhoeddus i ystyried sut i gyfrannu'n gadarnhaol 
tuag at gymdeithas decach drwy ddarparu gwasanaethau gan roi sylw dyledus i ddileu 
gwahaniaethu.  Mae'r dyletswyddau penodol yn cwmpasu: 
 

 adroddiadau blynyddol  ymgysylltu 

 asesiadau o'r effaith ar gydraddoldeb  gwybodaeth am gydraddoldeb 

 gwahaniaethau o ran cyflog  caffael  

 cyhoeddi Cynlluniau Cydraddoldeb Strategol  hyfforddi staff 

 gwybodaeth am y gweithlu  
 

Mae pob adran o'r adroddiad hwn yn ystyried cynnydd y Cyngor yn ystod 2018-2019, 
gan gynnwys nifer o astudiaethau achos er mwyn dangos y gwaith y mae meysydd 
gwasanaeth wedi'i wneud i sicrhau cydymffurfiaeth a gwella'r ffordd y darperir 
gwasanaethau o flwyddyn i flwyddyn. 
 
Mae'r Cyngor yn parhau i weithio mewn partneriaeth â sefydliadau eraill, gyda rhai 
ohonynt yn aelodau o Fwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Caerffili.  Mae'r Bwrdd 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus yn dwyn cyrff cyhoeddus ynghyd i weithio i wella llesiant 
economaidd, cymdeithasol, amgylcheddol a diwylliannol Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili, rhan 
o’r gwaith hwn yw sicrhau bod y nod o 'Cymru sy'n fwy cyfartal' yn cael ei gyflawni.  
Mae'r aelodau, sy'n dod o'r sectorau cyhoeddus, gwirfoddol a phreifat, yn ymdrechu i 
fod yn greadigol ac arloesol wrth gyflawni eu dyletswyddau statudol.  
 

Caiff cryn dipyn o wybodaeth y Cyngor sy'n ymwneud â Chydraddoldebau ei gyhoeddi 
eisoes ar ffurf fanylach ar dudalennau Cydraddoldebau gwefan y Cyngor, lle y gallwch 
hefyd lawrlwytho fersiwn pdf o'r adroddiad hwn: www.caerffili.gov.uk/cydraddoldeb. 
 

Mae'r Cyngor yn parhau'n ymrwymedig i sicrhau bod pawb ym mwrdeistref sirol 
Caerffili yn cael ei drin gyda'r un parch ac nad yw amgylchiadau unigolion yn eu 
rhwystro rhag cael y gwasanaethau sydd eu hangen arnynt gan y Cyngor neu ei 
bartneriaid. 
 

Er mwyn i'r Adroddiad Cydraddoldeb Blynyddol hwn gael ei ystyried yn briodol, aeth 
drwy broses gymeradwyo fewnol drwy'r Cabinet ar 14 Hydref 2020.  Yna, caiff yr 
adroddiad blynyddol ei gyflwyno i Swyddfa'r Comisiwn Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol 
erbyn 23 Hydref 2020. 
 

Christina Harrhy, Prif Weithredwr 
Y Cynghorydd Philippa Marsden, ArweinyddPage 15

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities?lang=cy-gb


 

 3 

 

Delio â Thrais a Cham-drin ar sail Hunaniaeth 
 

Gwaith Adrodd a Monitro Bwlio Gwahaniaethol mewn Ysgolion 2018-2019 
 

Mae Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol 2016-2020 yn cynnwys Amcan Cydraddoldeb 
penodol i 'Delio â Thrais a Cham-drin ar sail Hunaniaeth'.  Ei nod yw lleihau nifer yr 
achosion gwirioneddol neu ganfyddedig o gam-drin, bwlio, aflonyddu a thrais, 
troseddau casineb ac achosion casineb yn y fwrdeistref sirol. 
 
Er mwyn mesur yr amcan hwn yn unol â Chynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol 2016-2020, 
mae angen i ni sicrhau bod mesurau monitro ac adrodd gwell ar waith.  Bydd hyn yn 
arwain at gofnodion mwy cywir a gall arwain at gynnydd yn nifer yr achosion a 
gofnodwyd. 
 
Caiff data eu casglu a'u cofnodi mewn ffyrdd amrywiol er mwyn nodi tueddiadau, 
targedu cymorth a dangos bod y Cyngor a'r ysgolion yn cydymffurfio â dyletswyddau 
cyfreithiol ynglŷn â'r materion hyn.  Ar gyfer unrhyw ddata a gesglir ac unrhyw 
adroddiadau a gyhoeddir, defnyddir cyfansymiau wedi'u hanonymeiddio, gyda dim ond 
enghreifftiau o arferion da gan ysgolion unigol, neu'r rhai sydd wedi cael hyfforddiant 
pwrpasol yn cael eu henwi'n benodol ar unrhyw adeg. 
 
Mae bwlio gwahaniaethol yn achos pryder i bob awdurdod lleol. Mae'r adroddiad hwn 
yn nodi bod Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili a'i bartneriaid yn mynd ati i fonitro'r 
sefyllfa a mynd i'r afael â'r materion drwy weithio gyda sefydliadau er mwyn gwneud 
cynnydd cadarnhaol bob blwyddyn.  
 
Mae 88 o sefydliadau addysgol yn cyflwyno data monitro i'r Gyfadran Addysg, a cheir 
crynodeb o'r achosion a gofnodwyd yn Nhabl 1: 
 

Tabl 1 – Tabl o Achosion a Gofnodwyd 
 Tymor yr  

Hydref 
Tymor y 

Gwanwyn  
Tymor yr  

Haf 
 

2
0

1
6

-1
7

 

2
0

1
7

-1
8

 

2
0

1
8

-1
9

 

2
0

1
6

-1
7

 

2
0

1
7

-1
8

 

2
0

1
8

-1
9

 

2
0

1
6

-1
7

 

2
0

1
7

-1
8

 

2
0

1
8

-1
9

 

Gofalu 1 - - - - - - 2 - 
Diwylliannol 4 - 2 9 4 - 5 - 1 

Anabledd 1 2 1  1 3 1 - 2 
Rhywedd 2 4 1 3 - 2 2 1 2 

Homoffobig 20 8 9 18 2 10 4 12 9 

Iaith  9 - - - 2 1 - - 1 
Cenedligrwydd 1 - 4 8 - 1 - - - 

Hil 18 25 21 21 8 44 22 24 16 
Crefydd neu Gred 2 1 1 3 - 12 2 4 2 Page 16



 

 4 

 

Arolwg o Fwlio 2018-2019 
 

Cafwyd data gan 804 o ddisgyblion ym Mwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili o flynyddoedd 4, 5 a 6 
rhwng tymor yr haf 2018 a thymor yr hydref 2019.  Cafwyd llai na 10 ymateb gan ysgolion 
uwchradd.  Teimlai penaethiaid ysgolion uwchradd fod arolwg Rhwydwaith Ymchwil 
Iechyd Ysgolion yn rhoi digon o ddata ar fwlio iddynt, ochr yn ochr â mesurau llesiant 
eraill, a bod hwn yn fwy o flaenoriaeth i'w gwblhau o ystyried yr anawsterau logistaidd o 
ran sicrhau y gallai niferoedd mawr o ddisgyblion gael mynediad at arolwg ar-lein.  Er bod 
yr arolwg hwn yn rhoi gwybodaeth am fwlio (h.y. canran y disgyblion sydd wedi cael eu 
bwlio yn ystod y flwyddyn ddiwethaf) nid yw'n datgyfuno'r wybodaeth hon ar sail bwlio 
sy'n seiliedig ar hunaniaeth neu fwlio oherwydd nodwedd warchodedig.  Nid yw data'r 
arolwg wedi cael eu cynnwys yn yr adroddiad hwn. 

 
Tynnwyd data ar gyfer 34 o ddisgyblion o'r arolwg gan nad oeddent yn gallu dweud bod 
yr ymddygiad yn gyfystyr â bwlio (o blith dewis).  
 
O'r disgyblion hynny a oedd yn deall beth yw bwlio  

 dywedodd 523 o ddisgyblion (68%) nad oeddent wedi cael eu bwlio yn ystod y 

flwyddyn ddiwethaf. 

 dywedodd 247 o ddisgyblion (32%) eu bod wedi cael eu bwlio yn ystod y flwyddyn 
ddiwethaf.  

 
O'r rhai a oedd wedi cael eu bwlio 

 teimlai 31% eu bod yn cael eu bwlio am eu bod yn gwneud rhywbeth yn dda/wael 

 teimlai 31% eu bod wedi cael eu bwlio oherwydd eu hymddangosiad  

 dywedodd 28% eu bod yn cael eu bwlio oherwydd eu grŵp o gyfeillion.  

 17% oherwydd y dillad y maent yn eu gwisgo 

 13% oherwydd teulu neu darddiad  

 8% crefydd 

 10% fy anabledd 
 

Roedd y plant yn gallu ticio mwy nag un blwch er mwyn nodi rhesymau gwahanol dros 
gael eu bwlio.  
 
Nododd dadansoddiad o'r data fod angen newid yr holiadur er mwyn casglu data cliriach 
o ran nodweddion gwarchodedig (er enghraifft, gallai'r ymadrodd "fy ymddangosiad" 
gyfeirio at nifer o nodweddion gwahanol).  Caiff ein harolwg ar gyfer 2019-2020 ei 
ddiwygio yn unol â hynny. 
 
Mae'r canlyniadau'n awgrymu bod angen datblygu gwell ffordd o helpu pobl ifanc i 
dderbyn amrywiaeth mewn ysgolion a'r angen am strategaethau atal bwlio.  Cafodd yr 
ysgolion unigol a gymerodd ran yn yr arolwg ddata yn seiliedig ar ysgol ac argymhellion i 
fynd i'r afael â bwlio. 
 Page 17



 

 5 

 
Mae cyfanswm y nifer o achosion o wahaniaethu a gofnodwyd yn Nhabl 1 yn isel ac nid 
yw'n awgrymu bod llawer o achosion o wahaniaethu, ond ymddengys nad yw hyn yn  
gyson â nifer yr adroddiadau gan ddisgyblion eu hunain (fel y'u casglwyd yn yr Arolwg o 
Fwlio). 
 
Bydd angen gwneud rhagor o waith er mwyn sicrhau bod prosesau adrodd yn gyson ac 
yn unol â'r canllawiau a roddwyd i ysgolion.  Mae dadansoddiad yn dangos bod cynnydd 
wedi bod yn nifer yr achosion o wahaniaethu a oedd yn ymwneud â hunaniaeth 
ddiwylliannol ac iaith a gallai hyn adlewyrchu poblogaeth sy'n newid neu dueddiadau 
cenedlaethol.  Mae'r ALl yn gweithio gyda phartneriaid megis y Tîm Cydlyniant 
Cymunedol rhanbarthol i helpu plant i werthfawrogi amrywiaeth yn eu hysgolion (er 
enghraifft, drwy brosiect gyfeillio ysgolion).  Mae'r gwasanaeth Anghenion Dysgu 
Ychwanegol hefyd yn gweithio gydag ysgolion i ddiwallu anghenion disgyblion sy'n 
ffoaduriaid ac ystyried sut i fynd i'r afael â safbwyntiau gwahaniaethol. 
 
Mae'r awdurdod yn mynd i'r afael â thueddiadau eraill mewn ysgolion unigol ac mae 
cynlluniau gweithredu wedi cael eu llunio. 
 
 
Hyfforddiant ar gyfer Ysgolion a lleoliadau Pobl Ifanc 

 

Mae ysgolion ym mwrdeistref sirol Caerffili yn cael hyfforddiant drwy Raglen Graidd 
Cyswllt Ysgolion Cymru Gyfan a ddarperir gan Heddlu Gwent.  Mae'r sesiynau hyn yn 
ymdrin â phynciau megis parch, bwlio a materion sy'n ymwneud ag amrywiaeth mewn 
ysgolion cynradd ac uwchradd yn y fwrdeistref sirol i'r myfyrwyr. 
 
Mae'r rhaglen yn enghraifft o Weithio mewn Partneriaeth rhwng Llywodraeth Cymru a 
phedwar Heddlu Cymru ac mae'n cynnwys cyfres o fewnbynnau Atal Troseddu / rhoi 
gwersi a mentrau Plismona Cefnogol mewn Ysgolion sydd â'r nod o wneud y canlynol: 

 addysgu plant a phobl ifanc am y niwed y mae camddefnyddio sylweddau yn ei 
achosi i'w hiechyd, eu teuluoedd a'r gymuned ehangach 

 hyrwyddo egwyddorion dinasyddiaeth gadarnhaol drwy gyfrwng addysg 

 sicrhau gostyngiad mewn lefelau troseddu ac anhrefn ymhlith ein cymunedau ifanc. 
 

Bydd yr holl sesiynau yn parhau i gael eu cyflwyno drwy apwyntiad wedi'i drefnu ymlaen 
llaw â Swyddog Cymuned Ysgol yr Heddlu. Mae Swyddogion Cymuned Ysgol yr Heddlu yn 
darparu amrywiaeth o weithgareddau Plismona Cefnogol mewn Ysgolion a diogelu, gan 
gynnwys datrys achosion drwy ddefnyddio'r Polisi Trechu Troseddau Mewn Ysgolion a 
dulliau adferol.  Mae Swyddogion Cymuned Ysgol yr Heddlu hefyd wedi cyflwyno 
amrywiaeth o wasanaethau ysgol sy'n briodol o ran oedran. 

 
Rhagwelir y bydd rôl diogelu ychwanegol yn meithrin cysylltiadau rhwng y cymunedau 
lleol a'r cymunedau ysgol yn ogystal ag asiantaethau partner, e.e. y Gwasanaeth 
Troseddau Ieuenctid, Gwasanaethau Diogelu ac ati.  Mae hyn yn berthnasol iawn i  Page 18



 

 6 

 
achosion o fwlio gwahaniaethol sy'n seiliedig ar hunaniaeth lle mae troseddau wedi cael 
eu cyflawni hefyd o bosibl. 
 
Cefnogir Rhaglen Graidd Cyswllt Ysgolion Cymru Gyfan yn llawn gan wefan benodol – 
dolen i Wefan School Beat sy'n cynnwys rhagor o wybodaeth a chanllawiau i athrawon, 
disgyblion a rhieni. 
 
Yn ystod 2018-2019, cyflwynwyd 1,050 o wersi, gan greu 28,045 o gysylltiadau â 
disgyblion.  Cyflwynwyd 372 o wersi a oedd yn ymdrin â bwlio, amrywiaeth, gorfodi a 
pharch neu ddiffyg parch, gan greu 10,148 o gysylltiadau â disgyblion. 
 
Yn ogystal â'r hyfforddiant a gyflwynir gan Heddlu Gwent o dan Raglen Graidd Cyswllt 
Ysgolion Cymru Gyfan, mae'r Cyngor hefyd wedi rhoi hyfforddiant a chanllawiau 
penodol ar gydraddoldebau i staff ysgolion.  Mae cydraddoldebau wedi bod yn eitem 
reolaidd yng nghyfarfod Arweinwyr Bugeiliol Tymhorol.  Mae'r pynciau a drafodwyd 
wedi cynnwys y canlynol:  

 Parch a Gwrthsafiad  

 Trais yn erbyn Menywod  

 Iechyd Meddwl 

 Cefnogi Grwpiau sy'n Agored i Niwed 

 Cydnabod a rhoi gwybod am Achosion o Wahaniaethu  

 Cefnogi pobl ifanc LHDTC+. 
 
Er mwyn cefnogi'r gwaith hwn, mae'r Cyngor wedi rhoi canllawiau ysgrifenedig i 
ysgolion sy'n hyrwyddo cyd-barch a mynediad at bob gwasanaeth yn benodol ac sy'n 
amlinellu'n glir y ddyletswydd gyfreithiol ar ysgolion i baratoi eu cynlluniau 
cydraddoldeb eu hunain a rhoi gwybod am achosion o wahaniaethu.  Mae'r Cyngor wedi 
rhoi Cynllun Cydraddoldeb enghreifftiol i ysgolion ac mae canllawiau ar gydraddoldebau 
wedi'u cynnwys mewn dogfennaeth ganllaw arall e.e. Polisi Ymddygiad Enghreifftiol, 
Strategaeth Atal Bwlio. 
 
Mae Tîm Cydraddoldebau, y Gymraeg ac Ymgynghori’r Cyngor wedi rhoi hyfforddiant i 
staff a llywodraethwyr ysgolion ac wedi mynd ati i hyrwyddo digwyddiadau sy'n codi 
ymwybyddiaeth megis Mis Hanes LHDT, Mis Hanes Pobl Dduon ac ati. 
 
Mae staff y Cyngor yn ymwybodol o asiantaethau partner ac maent yn gallu cyfeirio 
ysgolion a gweithwyr ieuenctid at adnoddau megis gweithdai a deunyddiau cwricwlwm 
gan asiantaethau megis Umbrella Cymru, Stonewall Cymru, Dangos y Cerdyn Coch i 
Hiliaeth, Gwasanaeth Lleiafrifoedd Ethnig Gwent (GEMS) a'u helpu i gael gafael arnynt. 
 
Mae'r Cyngor yn gweithio gyda rhanddeiliaid (ysgolion, gwasanaeth ieuenctid, pobl 
ifanc, awdurdodau cyfagos, asiantaethau partneriaeth ac ati) i ddatblygu canllawiau sy'n 
adlewyrchu newidiadau i ofynion cyfreithiol neu anghenion pobl ifanc yn yr awdurdod,  

Page 19

http://www.schoolbeat.org/


 

 7 

 
e.e. datblygu cynlluniau a pholisïau mewn perthynas â newidiadau i’r cwricwlwm 
Addysg Bersonol, Gymdeithasol ac Iechyd er mwyn mynd i’r afael ag addysg rhywioldeb, 
iechyd a chydberthnasau sy’n cyfeirio’n amlwg at rywioldeb a rhywedd, mewn ffyrdd 
sy’n briodol o ran oedran. 
 
 
Mae Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid y Cyngor yn rhedeg Grŵp Ieuenctid LHDTC+ a elwir yn 
“Guys, Gals and Non-binary Pals” (GGNP).  Mae'r grŵp yn fenter unigryw sy'n cefnogi 
pobl ifanc rhwng 11 a 25 oed sy'n uniaethu fel LHDTC+. Mae'r prosiect llawn amser hwn 
yn rhoi mynediad at gymorth, gwybodaeth ac eiriolaeth i bobl yn y fwrdeistref sirol a'r 
ardaloedd cyffiniol.  Cynigir amgylchedd diogel a chyfrinachol i bobl ifanc fynegi eu 
hunain a chael cyfle i ymgysylltu a chymdeithasu â phobl ifanc sy'n rhannu'r un 
profiadau a heriau. 
 
 
Mynegai Cydraddoldeb Addysg – Stonewall  Cymru 
 

Mae Mynegai Cydraddoldeb Addysg Stonewall yn sicrhau bod mesurau ar waith a bod 
camau cadarnhaol yn cael eu cymryd i gefnogi pobl ifanc Lesbiaidd, Hoyw, Ddeurywiol a 
Thrawsrywiol sy'n byw yn y gymuned leol. Mae'r mesurau yn ymwneud â pha mor dda y 
mae awdurdodau lleol yn gwneud y canlynol:  

 helpu a chefnogi ysgolion i fod yn gynhwysol  

 dathlu gwahaniaeth  

 atal a mynd i'r afael â bwlio homoffobig, deuffobig a thrawsffobig. 
 
Mynegai Cydraddoldeb Addysg Stonewall yw'r unig adnodd cenedlaethol a ddefnyddir i 
feincnodi'r cynnydd sy'n cael ei wneud yn y maes hwn.  Mae'n ffordd effeithiol o 
ddangos arferion da ond hefyd sylweddoli beth yw'r bylchau lle mae angen gwella a'u 
deall. 
 
Mae Caerffili ar y brig yng Nghymru o ran arferion cynhwysol, ac yn safle 21 ledled y DU 
yn 2016 a 2017.  Yn 2018, cadwon ein safle ar y brig yng Nghymru a gwellodd ein safle 
yn y DU, gan gael ein rhoi yn safle 19.  
 
Yn 2017, enillodd Caerffili "farciau llawn" o ran ei ganllawiau ysgrifenedig a gafodd radd 
"gwyrdd" (h.y. da) mewn perthynas ag ymgysylltu cymunedol a gwasanaeth ieuenctid.  
Nododd yr adborth a roddwyd ar gyflwyniad 2017 fod angen i'r Cyngor fonitro profiadau 
pobl ifanc o fwlio yn fwy cadarn.  O ganlyniad, mae'r Cyngor wedi datblygu'r Arolwg 
Bwlio o brofiadau plant o fwlio, gan gynnwys bwlio sy'n ymwneud â rhyw, hil a 
hunaniaeth (gweler Tudalen 4 – Arolwg Bwlio).  Nodwyd ein gwelliannau o ran monitro 
profiadau pobl ifanc gan Stonewall Cymru ac maent yn gyson â'r fersiwn ddiweddaraf o 
Ganllawiau Atal Bwlio Llywodraeth Cymru. 
 
  Page 20



 

 8 

 
Trais yn erbyn Menywod, Cam-drin Domestig a Thrais Rhywiol (VAWDASV) 
 

Mae Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili wedi gwneud cynnydd sylweddol tuag at fodloni 
ei ofynion o dan y Fframwaith Hyfforddiant Cenedlaethol. Gweler Adran 10. 
Amrywiaeth yn y Gweithlu am fanylion am hyfforddiant. 
  

Page 21



 

 9 

 

Mynd i'r Afael â'r Bwlch Cyflog Rhwng y Rhywiau 
 

Cyhoeddodd y Cyngor ei ail Ddatganiad am y Bwlch Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau ar gyfer 2018.  
Mae’n ofynnol o dan Reoliadau Deddf Cydraddoldeb 2010 (Dyletswyddau Penodol ac 
Awdurdodau Cyhoeddus) 2017 i bob sefydliad a restrir yn Atodiad 2 sy'n cyflogi dros 250 o 
gyflogeion gyflwyno adroddiad blynyddol ar ei fwlch cyflog rhwng y rhywiau.  Cyhoeddir y 
data ar wefan y Cyngor ac un o wefannau'r llywodraeth erbyn 30 Mawrth bob blwyddyn. 
 
Mae'r rheoliadau hefyd yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i gyflogwyr gyfrifo a chyhoeddi adroddiad 
ar y bwlch tâl bonws rhwng y rhywiau ond nid oes gan y Cyngor gynllun bonws ar waith.  
 
Cyfanswm Nifer y Cyflogeion a gynhwyswyd yn y data hyn: 6848 
 

Nifer y Menywod:  4820 (70.4%) 
Nifer y Dynion:  2028 (29.6%) 
 
Tabl 2 – Crynodeb o'r Bwlch Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau 

 % 

1.  Bwlch cyflog cymedrig rhwng y rhywiau – Cyflog arferol 7.4% 
2.  Cyfradd gymedrig yr Awr – Cyflog arferol 

(Dynion/Menywod) 
(£12.29 / £11.38) 

3.  Bwlch cyflog canolrifol rhwng y rhywiau – Cyflog arferol 11.7% 

4.  Cyfradd ganolrifol yr awr – Cyflog arferol 
(Dynion/Menywod) 

(£11.38 / £10.05) 

1. Bwlch cyflog cymedrig rhwng y rhywiau – Tâl bonws yn 
y 12 mis yn dod i ben 31 Mawrth 

0% 

4.  Bwlch cyflog canolrifol rhwng y rhywiau – Tâl bonws yn 
y 12 mis yn dod i ben 31 Mawrth  

0% 

5.  Cyfran y cyflogeion sy'n ddynion ac yn fenywod y talwyd 
bonws iddynt yn y 12 mis yn dod i ben 31 Mawrth: 

Dynion0 
Menywod 0 

 

Noder: Yn Nhabl 2‚ ystyr 'Cyflog Arferol' yw cyflog sylfaenol; lwfansau; tâl am wyliau; a 
thâl premiwm ar gyfer sifftiau.  Nid yw'n cynnwys tâl goramser; tâl diswyddo; tâl yn lle 
gwyliau; na chydnabyddiaeth anariannol.  Nid yw'r Cyngor yn cynnig tâl fesul darn o 
waith na chynlluniau cymhelliant bonws.  

 

  

Page 22



 

 10 

 
Tabl 3 - Cyfran y cyflogeion gwrywaidd a benywaidd ym mhob chwartel 

Chwartel Benyw % (Pobl) Gwryw % (Pobl) 

Chwartel (isaf) cyntaf  
(£7.83 - £8.75)  

82% (1403)  18% (309)  

Ail chwartel  
(£8.75 - £10.43)  

72.1% (1235)  27.9% (477)  

Trydydd chwartel  
(£10.44 - £12.71)  

62.8% (1075)  37.2% (637)  

Pedwerydd chwartel (uchaf) 
(£12.72 - £74.61)  

64.7% (1107)  35.3% (605)  

 

Mae’r data yn Nhabl 3 yn dangos bod nifer sylweddol o fenywod na dynion yn llenwi 
swyddi ym mhob chwartel am mai gweithlu benywaidd yn bennaf yw gweithlu'r Cyngor.  
 

Fel cyfran, dengys y data o ran y gweithlu gwrywaidd (2028): 

 bod 15.23% yn llenwi swyddi yn y chwartel isaf,  

 23.52% yn yr ail chwartel,  

 31.41% yn y trydydd chwartel a  

 29.83% yn y pedwerydd chwartel. 
 

Mewn cymhariaeth, ymhlith y gweithlu benywaidd (4820): 

 mae 29.1% yn llenwi swyddi yn y chwartel isaf,  

 mae 25.62% yn yr ail chwartel,  

 22.3% yn y trydydd chwartel ac  

 mae 23% yn y pedwerydd chwartel.  
 

Mae'r Cyngor yn hyderus nad yw'r blwch cyflog rhwng y rhywiau i'w briodoli i'r ffaith ei 
fod yn talu cyflogau gwahanol i gyflogeion gwrywaidd a benywaidd am wneud yr un 
gwaith neu waith cyfatebol.  Mae'r bwlch cyflog rhwng y rhywiau i'w briodoli i rolau y 
mae dynion a menywod yn gweithio ynddynt ar hyn o bryd a'r cyflogau a delir am 
gyflawni'r rolau hyn. 
 
Mae ein bwlch cyflog rhwng y rhywiau yn adlewyrchu achosion o fwlch cyflog rhwng y 
rhywiau a welir mewn cymdeithas.  Er enghraifft, mae ymchwil yn nodi, er bod rhieni yn 
gynyddol hyblyg, mae cyfrifoldeb gofal plant yn dal i ddisgyn yn aghymesur ar fenywod.  
Mae'n ffaith yn y data hyn fod y mwyafrif helaeth o'r swyddi rhan-amser yn cael eu dal 
gan fenywod ac mai'r swyddi hyn yw'r rhai lle y telir cyflogau yn y chwartelau isaf.  
 

Mae gwasanaethau'r Cyngor yn amrywiol ac yn cynnwys glanhau, arlwyo, casglu sbwriel 
ac ailgylchu, tai, gwasanaethau cymdeithasol/gwasanaethau gofal, hamdden, ieuenctid, 
llyfrgelloedd, gwasanaethau addysg, gan gynnwys addysg oedolion, gwasanaethau 
technegol, cynllunio a phriffyrdd. 
 

I weld y datganiad llawn - Datganiad CBSC ar y Bwlch Cyflog rhwng y Rhywiau 2018  Page 23

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/GenderPayGapStatement2018.aspx


 

 11 

 

Gwella Mynediad Corfforol 
 

Rhaglen Waith Mynediad i Bobl Anabl 
 

Mae Is-adran Gwasanaethau Eiddo Corfforaethol y Cyngor yn parhau i gyflwyno 
gwelliannau er mwyn sicrhau bod adeiladau cyhoeddus yn hygyrch i bawb drwy Raglen 
Waith Mynediad i Bobl Anabl.  Bob blwyddyn, trefnir rhaglen waith er mwyn diweddaru 
a gwella'r gallu i gael mynediad ffisegol i amrywiaeth o adeiladau sy'n eiddo i'r Cyngor. 
 
Yn ystod 2018-2019, roedd cyllid gwerth £90,000 ar gael i gefnogi gwaith gwella 
mynediad i bobl anabl. 
 
Roedd y gwaith yn cynnwys y canlynol: 

 

 Ysgolion – darparu drysau awtomatig, rampiau, canllawiau a lifft – £66,000 
 

 Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol – gwella mynediad mewnol ac allanol - £19,000 
 

 Canolfannau Hamdden – gwella derbynfeydd – £2,000 
 

 Canolfannau Ieuenctid – gwneud prif fynedfeydd yn fwy hygyrch - £3,000 
 
Gwelliannau i Adeiladau Corfforaethol 
 

Gwnaed nifer o newidiadau i wneud adeiladau corfforaethol yn fwy hygyrch: 
 

 Mae goleuadau wedi cael eu newid i wella'r amgylchedd gwaith i aelodau o'r 
staff, yn enwedig y rhai ag anableddau neu nam ar eu golwg. 

 

 Cafodd arwyddion mewn swyddfeydd corfforaethol eu hadolygu a'u gwella i 
gydymffurfio â gofynion safonau'r Gymraeg ac ystyried anghenion pobl â 
dementia a nam ar y golwg. 

 

 Toiledau hygyrch: gan ystyried anghenion pobl ag anableddau anweladwy/pobl 
nad ydynt yn uniaethu â rhyw, mae arwyddion ar gyfer toiledau wedi cael eu 
newid.  

 
  

Page 24



 

 12 

 

Gwella Mynediad Cyfathrebu 
 

Gwefan y Cyngor 
 

Mae'r wefan yn gwbl ddwyieithog o ran cynnwys tudalennau gwe; ond, mae rhai 
tudalennau lle mae'r cynnwys Saesneg wedi cael ei ddiweddaru ond nid y cynnwys 
Cymraeg.  Rydym wedi cynnal archwiliad llawn o'r wefan ac rydym wrthi'n unioni'r 
anghysondebau hyn er mwyn sicrhau bod gwefan y Cyngor yn gwbl ddwyieithog.  

 
Cafodd y wefan gyfredol ei gwirio gan y Ganolfan Hygyrchedd Digidol (Dolen i wefan 
Digital Accessibility Centre) er mwyn cyflawni Cydymffurfiaeth 2.0 Lefel AA â'r 
Canllawiau ar Hygyrchedd Cynnwys Gwefannau (WCAG).  

 
Ar y wefan, o dan yr opsiwn 'Hygyrchedd', rhoddir dolenni i ganllawiau ar y meysydd 
canlynol: 

 gwneud eich llygoden yn haws i'w defnyddio 
 defnyddio'ch bysellfwrdd i reoli'ch llygoden 
 dulliau amgen yn lle defnyddio bysellfwrdd a llygoden 
 mwyhau maint y testun yn eich porwr gwe 
 newid lliwiau testun a chefndir 
 sut i chwyddo'ch sgrin 
 darllenwyr sgrin a phorwyr sy'n siarad. 
 
 

Gweithio Mewn Partneriaeth 
 

Mae gwaith yn mynd rhagddo o ran Strategaeth Cyfathrebu ac Ymgysylltu'r Bwrdd 
Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus y mae CBSC wedi ymrwymo iddi.  Mae grŵp Cyfathrebu ac 
Ymgysylltu'r Bwrdd Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus bellach yn cynnwys cynrychiolaeth o 
nifer o sefydliadau, gan gynnwys Menter Iaith Caerffili a'r Fforwm 50+. 
  

Page 25

https://digitalaccessibilitycentre.org/
https://digitalaccessibilitycentre.org/


 

 13 

 
Nam ar y Synhwyrau – Canllaw Cyfathrebu  

 

Y llynedd, datblygwyd y Canllaw ar Nam ar y Synhwyrau gan dîm Cartrefi Caerffili'r Cyngor 
ar y cyd â'r grŵp Nam ar y Synhwyrau.  Mae'r canllaw yn helpu staff i wella'r ffordd y 
maent yn cyfathrebu â phobl sydd â nam ar y synhwyrau. 
 
Yn sgil lansio'r canllaw, gwnaeth tîm Cartrefi Caerffili  drefnu a rhedeg dau grŵp ffocws.  
Gwahoddwyd tenantiaid, yn benodol pobl sydd â nam ar y golwg neu ar y clyw, i ddod er 
mwyn casglu eu safbwyntiau ar y gwasanaethau a ddarperir.   

 
 
Bu'n gyfle i denantiaid sydd â nam ar y clyw neu ar y golwg gynnig awgrymiadau ynglŷn â 
sut y gellid gwella ein gwasanaethau er mwyn sicrhau eu bod yn hygyrch i bobl sy'n byw 
gyda nam o'r fath. 
 
Nododd y grwpiau ffocws nifer o feysydd yr oedd angen eu hystyried ymhellach, felly mae 
tîm Cartrefi Caerffili yn bwriadu cynnal 'sesiwn sydyn' yn y gymuned er mwyn cynnal 
arolwg a chasglu mwy o safbwyntiau cyn nodi themâu allweddol. 
 
 
Gwasanaeth Tanysgrifio i Fwletinau Newyddion dros yr E-bost 
 

Mae'r gwaith ar wella'r gwasanaeth a sicrhau bod tanysgrifwyr i fwletinau e-bost Gov 
Delivery yn cael y wybodaeth yn eu dewis iaith er mwyn sicrhau cydymffurfiaeth â 
gofynion Safonau'r Gymraeg, yn parhau. Gall preswylwyr ddewis a thanysgrifio i'r pynciau 
yr hoffent glywed mwy amdanynt.  Pan fydd diweddariad, bydd tanysgrifwyr i'r system yn 
cael diweddariad e-bost yn awtomatig yn eu dewis iaith.  Mae 284 o danysgrifwyr i'r 
fersiwn Gymraeg o'r gwasanaeth ar hyn o bryd.  

  

Page 26



 

 14 

 

Ymgysylltu a Chyfranogiad Cynhwysol 
 

Er mwyn atgyfnerthu’r cysylltiadau rhwng cydraddoldebau ac ymgynghori ac ymgysylltu 
yn y Cyngor, symudodd rôl y Swyddog Ymgynghori ac Ymgysylltu â'r Cyhoedd o'r Uned 
Gyfathrebu i'r tîm Cydraddoldebau a'r Gymraeg ym mis Medi 2019.  

 
Hyrwyddir gweithgareddau ymgynghori ac ymgysylltu byw ar dudalen flaen gwefan y 
Cyngor.  Cofnodir rhagor o fanylion am weithgareddau ymgysylltu cyfredol (gan 
gynnwys dolenni i arolygon byw lle y bo'n briodol) a chanlyniadau gweithgareddau 
ymgysylltu diweddar ar wefan CBS Caerffili hefyd dolen i wefan Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol 
Caerffili  

 
Mae gweithgarwch ymgynghori/ymgysylltu corfforaethol allweddol a gynhaliwyd yn 
ystod y flwyddyn diwethaf, "Sgwrs Caerffili – Ymgynghoriad ar y Gyllideb 2019-2020" yn 
enghraifft o'r ffordd mae'r Cyngor yn defnyddio amrywiaeth o ddulliau o annog 
cyfranogiad, hyrwyddo ymgynghoriadau a sicrhau bod pob sector o'r gymuned yn gallu 
lleisio barn. 

 
Roedd holl ddeunydd hyrwyddo a gohebiaeth yr ymgynghoriad ar gael yn ddwyieithog.  
Cafodd gweithgareddau wyneb yn wyneb, gan gynnwys ymgysylltu yng nghanol 
trefi/mewn archfarchnadoedd, sesiynau galw heibio mewn llyfrgelloedd ym mhob rhan 
o'r fwrdeistref a chyfarfod Panel Safbwynt, eu cefnogi drwy gyfryngau digidol (gan 
gynnwys Facebook, Twitter a NewsOnline), cynnwys fideo a gwe, Newsline, negeseuon 
e-bost wedi'u targedu at randdeiliaid ac arolygon papur ac ar-lein. 

 
Hwylusodd Menter Iaith Caerffili grŵp trafod Cymraeg yng nghyfarfod wyneb yn wyneb 
y Panel Safbwynt. Roedd aelodau o Rwydwaith Rhieni Caerffili ac aelodau o'r Fforwm 
Ieuenctid yn bresennol hefyd.  Anfonwyd gohebiaeth ysgrifenedig at bob grŵp 
allweddol fel y rhestrir yng Nghanllawiau Ymgynghori a Monitro'r Cyngor.  Ar gyfer 
sesiynau galw heibio, gofynnwyd i breswylwyr a oedd ganddynt unrhyw ofynion 
penodol, megis mynediad, dolen sain, cyfleusterau cyfieithu neu ddymuniad i 
ddefnyddio'r Gymraeg, i gysylltu â ni ymlaen llaw.  

 
Ceir adroddiad cryno llawn yma: Sgwrs Caerffili - Adroddiad Llawn  
  

Page 27

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/involved/Consultations.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/involved/Consultations.aspx
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/involved/Consultations/Budget-Consultation-2019-2020


 

 15 

 
Pride Cymru 2018 – Cynghorau Balch 

 

 
Roedd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili yn falch o gael ei gynrychioli ym Mhenwythnos 
Mawr Pride Cymru yng Nghaerdydd o dan y faner 'Cynghorau Balch'. 
 
Penwythnos Mawr Pride Cymru yw'r dathliad mwyaf o amrywiaeth, cynhwysiant a'r 
gymuned LHDT+ yng Nghymru, ac mae'n gyfle i bawb, ni waeth beth yw eu hoedran, 
rhyw, rhywedd neu hil ddod ynghyd a dathlu'r cyfan sy'n gwneud Cymru yn lle mor 
groesawgar. 

 
Nododd Pride Cymru 2018 bumed flwyddyn rhwydwaith 'Cynghorau Balch', sy'n dwyn 
ynghyd nifer o gynghorau yn y de, gan dynnu sylw at y gwaith partneriaeth y mae 
cynghorau yn y rhanbarth yn ei wneud er mwyn hyrwyddo cydraddoldeb yn y de a dathlu 
amrywiaeth yn ein cymunedau. 
 
Trefnodd Cynrychiolwyr o Gyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili, stondin 'Cynghorau Balch' 
yn ystod Penwythnos Mawr Pride Cymru.  Ymgysylltodd staff ag ymwelwyr er mwyn 
trafod sut y gall cynghorau wella ymhellach ar y gwaith y maent yn ei wneud i sicrhau 
cydraddoldeb i breswylwyr a chyflogeion LHDT+, yn ogystal â chyfeirio pobl at 
wasanaethau a gynigir gan gynghorau a phartneriaid. 
 
Cymerodd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili, fel rhan o Gynghorau Balch, ran ym Mhared 
Pride Cymru am y tro cyntaf gan orymdeithio a dathlu ar strydoedd canol y ddinas.  

 
Mae Cynghorau Balch yn ymrwymedig i hyrwyddo cydraddoldebau mewn 
gwasanaethau cyhoeddus a dileu'r rhwystrau a wynebir gan bobl LHDT.  Mae cynlluniau 
ar y gweill ar gyfer Pride Cymru 2019 lle bydd cyfraniad 'Cynghorau Balch' hyd yn oed yn 
fwy. 

 
Datganiad i'r wasg: Datganiad i'r Wasg gan CBSC - Cyngor Balch Awst 2018 

 
Post ar Facebook: Post CBSC ar Facebook - Cynghorau Balch Awst 2018  

 
Post ar Twitter: Post CBSC ar Twitter - Cynghorau Balch 2018  
  

Page 28

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/News/News-Bulletin/August-2018/Caerphilly-is-a-PROUD-Council
https://www.facebook.com/CaerphillyCBC/posts/caerphilly-county-borough-council-is-once-again-proud-to-be-represented-at-pride/1856103971134691/
https://twitter.com/caerphillycbc/status/1032923717045821441


 

 16 

 

Cydymffurfio â Safonau'r Gymraeg 
 

Safonau'r Gymraeg 
 

Disodlwyd Deddf yr Iaith Gymraeg 1993 gan Fesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011 ac fel rhan o'r 
ddeddfwriaeth newydd, yng Nghymru mae i'r Gymraeg yr un statws cyfreithiol â Saesneg a 
rhaid peidio â'i thrin yn llai ffafriol.  Rhaid i gyryff cyhoeddus gydymffurfio â chyfres 
genedlaethol o Safonau'r Gymraeg. 
 
 
Mae Comisiynydd y Gymraeg wedi cyhoeddi Hysbysiad Cydymffurfio sy'n nodi pa rai o'r 
176 o safonau yn y ddeddfwriaeth sy'n gymwys i'r awdurdod lleol, ynghyd ag unrhyw 
eithriadau. 
 
Cofnodir ein cynnydd bob blwyddyn yn Adroddiad Blynyddol Safonau'r Gymraeg 2018-
2019, a gyhoeddir ar ein gwefan ar dudalen Safonau'r Gymraeg. 
 
 
Cydymffurfio â Safonau'r Gymraeg 
 

Cyhoeddir adroddiad monitro blynyddol ar wefan y Cyngor bob haf er mwyn rhoi 
adroddiad ar ei gydymffurfiaeth â Safonau'r Gymraeg. 
 
Mae'r adroddiad blynyddol yn cwmpasu pedwar maes sy'n ofynnol o dan y fframwaith 
rheoleiddio ac yn dangos ymrwymiad parhaus y Cyngor i ddarparu gwasanaethau 
dwyieithog i'r cyhoedd ac aelodau o'r staff. 
 
Mae'r pedwar maes y mae'n rhaid cyflwyno adroddiad arnynt fel a ganlyn: 

 

 Cwynion gan y Cyhoedd 

 Sgiliau Iaith Staff 

 Darparu Hyfforddiant cyfrwng Cymraeg 

 Recriwtio i Swyddi Gwag 
 

Mae pedwar o'r Amcanion Cydraddoldeb Strategol yn cynnwys materion sy'n ymwneud 
â'r Gymraeg yn benodol, sef: 
 
Amcan Cydraddoldeb 4 Gwella Mynediad Cyfathrebu 
Amcan Cydraddoldeb 6 Cydymffurfio â Safonau'r Gymraeg 
Amcan Cydraddoldeb 10 Amrywiaeth yn y Gweithlu 
Amcan Cydraddoldeb 11 Cydymffurfiaeth Gorfforaethol 

 
  

Page 29

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Equalities/Welsh-language-Standards?lang=cy-gb


 

 17 

 
Strategaeth y Gymraeg 2017-2022 
 

Un o ofynion Safonau'r Gymraeg yw cyhoeddi Strategaeth y Gymraeg dros bum mlynedd 
2017-2022.  Mae'r strategaeth yn nodi sut mae'r awdurdod lleol, ar y cyd â'i bartneriaid, 
yn bwriadu hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg a hwyluso defnyddio'r Gymraeg ledled y sir.  Ceir rhagor 
o wybodaeth am y strategaeth ar ein gwefan hefyd Strategaeth y Gymraeg 2017-2022. 

 
Er mwyn monitro'r broses o ddatblygu Strategaeth y Gymraeg 2017-2022, cyhoeddwyd 
adroddiad cynnydd fel atodiad i Adroddiad Blynyddol Safonau'r Gymraeg 2017-2018.  
Mae'r adroddiad cynnydd yn tynnu sylw at y gwaith rhagweithiol mewn partneriaeth sy'n 
digwydd rhwng y Cyngor a sefydliadau trydydd parti.  Cliciwch yma i weld yr adroddiad 
llawn: Adroddiad Blynyddol Safonau'r Gymraeg 2018-2019   

 
Un darn allweddol o waith a ddatblygwyd fel cam gweithredu o dan Strategaeth y 
Gymraeg yw llyfryn i rieni a darpar rieni i ystyried addysg cyfrwng Cymraeg i'w plant.  
Mae'r llyfryn yn cynnwys atebion i gwestiynau cyffredin, yn ymdrin â phryderon rhieni ac 
yn tynnu sylw at fanteision bod yn ddwyieithog.  Mae'n mapio llwybr clir y bydd plant yn ei 
ddilyn o'r ysgol feithrin, yr ysgol gynradd, yr ysgol uwchradd a thu hwnt. 

 
Mae'r llyfryn wedi cael ei ddosbarthu'n eang drwy lyfrgelloedd, y Gwasanaeth 
Gwybodaeth i Deuluoedd, Dechrau'n Deg, Cymraeg i Blant, Menter Iaith Caerffili a nifer o 
sefydliadau partner eraill.  Mae'r llyfryn wrthi'n cael ei ddatblygu fel adnodd ar-lein i'w 
gwneud yn haws cael gafael arno. 

 

 
  

  

Page 30

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Strategies,-plans-and-policies/Equalities/Welsh-Language-Strategy?lang=cy-gb
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh_Language_Standards_Annual_Report_2018-2019_c.aspx


 

 18 

 
Diwrnod Shwmae / Su’mae 
 

 

 
Ymunodd staff Cyngor Caerffili â miloedd o bobl a sefydliadau ledled Cymru i nodi Diwrnod 
Shwmae / Su'mae (Dydd Llun 15 Hydref). 
  
Cymerodd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili gamau breision i ddod yn awdurdod 
dwyieithog fel rhan o Fesur y Gymraeg (Cymru) 2011.  Fel rhan o'r gwaith hwn, mae 
hyrwyddo Diwrnod Shwmae / Su'mae gyda'r staff, y gymuned ac ysgolion wedi rhoi cyfle i 
bawb yn y fwrdeistref ddathlu'r Gymraeg. 
 
Dathlodd llyfrgelloedd ledled y fwrdeistref sirol Ddiwrnod Shwmae/Su'mae drwy 
ddefnyddio hunlun i atgoffa ac annog staff ac ymwelwyr i ddweud 
“#ShwmaeSumaeCaerffili”!  

 
Cafodd staff y Cyngor eu hannog i ddechrau pob sgwrs gyda Shwmae, a chafodd 
gwybodaeth ei harddangos a oedd yn cynnwys llinell amser ar gyfer y Gymraeg yn esbonio 
sut mae'r iaith wedi datblygu. 
  
Rhoddwyd gwybodaeth i'r staff am feddalwedd gorfforaethol newydd, sef Cysill.  Mae'r 
feddalwedd ar gael ar bob cyfrifiadur er mwyn helpu'r staff gyda'u Sgiliau Cymraeg ac 
annog dysgwyr i ddefnyddio eu sgiliau ysgrifenedig yn y gweithle.  Mae Cysill, sy'n gwirio 
sillafu, a Cysgeir, y geiriadur, yn adnoddau defnyddiol i'w defnyddio yn ôl yr angen. 
 
Mae darparu'r feddalwedd hon i'r staff yn ofyniad o dan Safon y Gymraeg 120: 
 
Rhaid ichi ddarparu meddalwedd gyfrifiadurol ar gyfer gwirio sillafu a gramadeg y 
Gymraeg i’ch staff, a darparu rhyngwynebau Cymraeg ar gyfer meddalwedd (pan fo 
rhyngwyneb ar gael). 
  

Page 31



 

 19 

 
Archwiliad Comisiynydd y Gymraeg ac Ymarfer Siopwr Cudd Menter Iaith Caerffili  
 

Yn ystod 2018-2019, gwnaeth swyddfa Comisiynydd y Gymraeg waith dilysu er mwyn 
nodi meysydd o arfer da a gwelliant ym mhob sefydliad a gwmpesir gan Safonau'r 
Gymraeg. Cafodd y canfyddiadau eu dadansoddi a'u defnyddio i lywio adroddiad 
sicrwydd blynyddol y Comisiynydd. 
 
Mae un maes arfer da a nodwyd yn adroddiad sicrwydd (2018-19) Comisiynydd y 
Gymraeg yn ymwneud â'r asesiad annibynnol a gafodd ei gomisiynu gan yr awdurdod 
lleol a'i gynnal gan Fenter Iaith Caerffili i gadarnhau pa mor gynhwysol yw 
gwasanaethau'r Cyngor i'r rhai sydd am ddefnyddio'r gwasanaethau hynny drwy 
gyfrwng y Gymraeg.  
 
Dangosodd yr asesiad annibynnol, ar y cyfan, fod yr ymateb i ymholiadau a cheisiadau 
am wasanaethau cyfrwng Cymraeg yn gadarnhaol, yn effeithiol ac yn rhagweithiol.  
Dangosodd y rhan fwyaf o'r staff ymwybyddiaeth glir hefyd o ran y broses o ddarparu 
gwasanaeth cyfrwng Cymraeg pan nad oedd siaradwyr Cymraeg na dysgwyr ar gael o 
fewn tîm penodol.  
 
Roedd gwasanaethau dros y ffôn drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg yn hynod effeithiol yn 
gyffredinol ac roedd gwasanaethau yn dangos yn glir eu dealltwriaeth o'r broses 
angenrheidiol o ran trosglwyddo galwadau i siaradwr Cymraeg. 
 
Ymdriniwyd â gohebiaeth e-bost yn eithaf effeithiol ar y cyfan, gyda meysydd 
gwasanaeth yn trefnu i negeseuon e-bost gael eu cyfieithu yn ôl yr angen, ond nid oedd 
rhai meysydd gwasanaeth yn dilyn y weithdrefn gywir.  
 
Fodd bynnag, nodwyd nad oedd staff mewn rhai meysydd gwasanaeth yn gallu 
cyfathrebu wyneb yn wyneb drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. 
 
Yn ystod yr ymarfer, arsylwyd ar lawer o ddysgwyr Cymraeg ymroddedig ac roeddent yn 
barod ac yn awyddus iawn i ddefnyddio eu sgiliau iaith a rhaid eu canmol.  Yn ystod yr 
ymarfer, nodwyd bod rhai siaradwyr rhugl mewn meysydd gwasanaeth ac mai nhw 
oedd yr unig siaradwyr Cymraeg yn y gwasanaeth hwnnw ac nad oeddent wedi cael 
llawer o gyfleoedd i ddefnyddio eu sgiliau iaith.  Byddai datblygu cymorth i'r aelodau 
hyn o'r staff a hyrwyddo eu hymdrechion yn fuddiol. 
 
Mae her recriwtio gweithlu dwyieithog yn un amlwg; fodd bynnag, byddai effaith 
datblygu gweithlu o'r fath yn sylweddol ac yn trawsnewid gallu'r Cyngor i ddarparu 
gwasanaeth cwbl ddwyieithog. 
  

Page 32



 

 20 

 
Bydd canfyddiadau'r ddau ymarfer, asesiad y Comisiynydd ac asesiad Menter Iaith 
Caerffili yn cael eu rhoi'n adborth i'r meysydd gwasanaeth a chaiff arferion da eu rhannu 
o fewn y sefydliad gyda'r nod o wella'r ffordd y darperir y gwasanaeth Cymraeg.  
Ymhlith yr awgrymiadau ar gyfer gwella mae'r canlynol: 
 

1. Arddangos mwy o arwyddion dwyieithog  
2. Arddangos mwy o arwyddion sy'n annog ac yn croesawu cyfathrebu drwy 

gyfrwng y Gymraeg  
3. Sicrhau bod pob aelod o'r staff yn ymwybodol o'r broses o drefnu i ohebiaeth 

gael ei chyfieithu  
4. Yr angen i greu gweithlu dwyieithog er mwyn sicrhau y gallwn ddarparu 

gwasanaethau iaith Gymraeg yn y dyfodol  
5. Helpu siaradwyr Cymraeg a dysgwyr sy'n gweithio i'r Cyngor i ddefnyddio a 

datblygu eu sgiliau. 

  

Page 33



 

 21 

 

Cefnogi Cymunedau sy’n Gyfeillgar i Oed 
 

Y Comisiynydd Pobl Hŷn 
 

Ym mis Ionawr 2019, ymwelodd Heléna Herklots CBE, y Comisiynydd Pobl Hŷn newydd 
ei phenodi â Fforwm 50+ Caerffili, er mwyn cyfarfod a siarad â'r aelodau am ei 
blaenoriaethau fel Comisiynydd; y broses o ddatblygu ei rhaglen waith; a chlywed gan yr 
aelodau am sut y gallwn wneud Cymru yn lle gorau'r byd i fynd yn hŷn. 

 
Bu'r trafodaethau yn ystod y cyfarfod yn ddefnyddiol iawn ac roedd yn amlwg bod yr 
aelodau yn ymrwymedig i ddefnyddio eu cyfoeth o wybodaeth a phrofiad i sicrhau bod 
gan bobl hŷn lais cryf a'u bod yn gallu dylanwadu ar bolisïau ac ymarfer, yn lleol ac yn 
genedlaethol, er mwyn gwella bywydau pobl hŷn. 

 
 

Gweithio gyda grwpiau cymunedol eraill 
 

Ym mis Hydref 2018, ymwelodd aelodau'r Fforwm â Chymdeithas Strôc Coed Duon, gan 
barhau â'i raglen o gyfarfod â grwpiau pobl hŷn ledled y sir.  Yn ystod ei ymweliad cyntaf 
rhoddwyd cyflwyniad am y Fforwm, ac esboniwyd ei ddiben. 

 
Daeth yn amlwg bod gan y grwpiau ddiddordeb mewn dysgu sut i ddefnyddio dyfeisiau 
digidol a threfnodd y Fforwm sesiwn ddilynol, a gyflwynwyd ym mis Ionawr 2019, ar y 
rhyngrwyd a sut i gadw'n ddiogel ar-lein. 

 
 

Ymateb i ymgynghoriadau  
 

Ymatebodd y Fforwm i ymgynghoriad Llywodraeth Cymru ar unigrwydd ac ynysu.  Mae 
cyfoeth o dystiolaeth sy'n dangos bod unigrwydd ac ynysu cymdeithasol yn broblemau 
sylweddol sy'n effeithio ar ein poblogaeth hŷn.  Mae dros 50,000 o bobl hŷn yng 
Nghymru yn unig.  Dengys amcangyfrifon y bydd cynnydd o 50% yn nifer y bobl dros 50 
oed sy'n unig, sy'n gallu bod yn ffactor afiechyd ddwywaith yn fwy na gordewdra.  Am 
ragor o wybodaeth am y prif bwyntiau a godwyd yn ymateb y Fforwm, neu i weld pa 
weithgareddau eraill y mae'r Fforwm wedi ymgymryd â nhw, darllenwch Cylchlythyr 
Gwanwyn 2019. 
  

Page 34

https://www.caerphillyover50.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/63/2019/05/Spring-2019-Natter-that-Matters.pdf
https://www.caerphillyover50.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/63/2019/05/Spring-2019-Natter-that-Matters.pdf


 

 22 

 
Chatty Café 
 

Ar ddechrau 2019, cyfarfu aelodau o Fforwm 50+ Caerffili â Martin Cook, sef Rheolwr 
Canolfan 'Croeso Caerffili'.  Bu Martin yn gyfrifol am drawsnewid y Ganolfan yn endid 
bywiog a phroffidiol.  Roedd y Fforwm yn awyddus i gyflwyno'r cysyniad o "Chatty Café" 
i Martin am ei fod yn teimlo bod gan y Ganolfan Croeso yr holl nodweddion priodol i 
sicrhau bod Chatty Café yn llwyddiant.  Roedd Martin yn frwd iawn am y cysyniad a 
rhoddwyd cynlluniau ar waith i'w gyflwyno ar ddiwedd mis Mawrth 2019. 

 
Beth yw bwrdd "Chatter & Natter"?  Rhywle rydych yn gwybod bod unrhyw un sy'n 
eistedd yno yn barod i ryngweithio a chael sgwrs; rhyngweithio dynol fel y bu.  
Teimlwyd bod lolfa goffi'r Ganolfan Croeso yn lleoliad delfrydol i gyflwyno'r cysyniad 
hwn. 

 
 

Llyfrgelloedd sy’n Dementia-Gyfeillgar 
 

Mae Llyfrgelloedd Caerffili yn ymrwymedig i helpu i gefnogi'r rhai sy'n byw gyda 
dementia yn y fwrdeistref sirol.  Gan weithio mewn partneriaeth â Chymdeithas 
Alzheimer, mae Gwasanaeth Llyfrgelloedd Caerffili wedi hyfforddi staff llyfrgell i ddod yn 
'Ffrindiau Dementia'. 
 
Esboniwyd y cyflwr i'r staff er mwyn iddynt gael gwell dealltwriaeth o bobl y mae 
dementia yn effeithio arnynt a gwella profiad y cwsmer.  Yn ogystal â chreu amgylchedd 
croesawgar a chefnogol, mae'r gwasanaeth yn sicrhau ei fod yn darparu'r amrywiaeth 
orau o adnoddau ar gyfer y rhai sy'n byw gyda dementia, yn ogystal â'r adnoddau i 
gefnogi'r rhai sy'n gofalu amdanynt.  Mae hyn yn cynnwys ehangu'r casgliad o lyfrau 
'Pictures to Share' sydd eisoes yn boblogaidd, sydd ar gael mewn llyfrgelloedd, neu y 
gellir eu dosbarthu i gartref unigolyn neu gartref gofal.  

 
Mae pob un o'r 18 llyfrgell yn cymryd rhan ym mhrosiect 'Darllen yn Well ar gyfer 
Dementia yng Nghymru' gan sicrhau bod gwybodaeth a chyngor ar gael i bobl sy'n byw 
gyda dementia, yn ogystal â ffuglen, cofiannau a llyfrau ffotograffau a ddefnyddir mewn 
therapi hel atgofion. 
 
Mae'r gwasanaeth llyfrgell wedi datblygu 20 o Fagiau Cof Dementia sydd ar fenthyg i 
gwsmeriaid.  Mae'r adnoddau hyn ar gael i gwsmeriaid llyfrgell, er mwyn sicrhau gwell 
dealltwriaeth o ddementia a newid canfyddiadau'r gymuned drwy drawsnewid y ffordd 
y mae preswylwyr yn y fwrdeistref yn meddwl am y cyflwr ac yn ei drafod.  
  

Page 35



 

 23 

 

Cefnogi Cyfamod y Lluoedd Arfog 
 

Y Lluoedd Arfog yng Nghaerffili 
 

 
 
Yng Nghymru, amcangyfrifir bod 385,000 o aelodau o Gymuned y Lluoedd Arfog. Mae 
hyn yn cyfateb i 12% o'r boblogaeth.  Mae hyn yn cynnwys aelodau presennol, aelodau 
wrth gefn a chadetiaid yn ogystal â'u teuluoedd a chyn-aelodau o'r Lluoedd Arfog. Bydd 
llawer wedi cael profiad o ryfel, yn uniongyrchol neu'n anuniongyrchol, a'r heriau y gall 
godi yn ei sgil. Gwyddys i 14,700 o bobl adael Lluoedd Arfog Rheolaidd y DU yn 2018. 
Amcangyfrifir bod 3000 wedi ymgartrefu yng Nghymru. 
 
Roedd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili yn un o'r awdurdodau lleol cyntaf yng Nghymru 
i lofnodi Cyfamod y Lluoedd Arfog a chadw at ei addewid i gefnogi Cymuned y Lluoedd 
Arfog. 
 

Bu'n flwyddyn gynhyrchiol iawn o ran codi proffil Cyfamod y Lluoedd Arfog ym 
Mwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili ac ardal ehangach Gwent.  Cyflawnwyd hyn drwy newid 
polisïau, hyfforddiant, digwyddiadau a chyhoeddusrwydd.  Cafodd swydd Swyddog 
Rhanbarthol Cyfamod y Lluoedd Arfog ei hestyn tan fis Mawrth 2023, gyda chyllid gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru. 
 
 

Hyfforddiant 
 

Mae pecyn e-ddysgu Cyfamod y Lluoedd Arfog wedi cael ei ryddhau ac mae ar gael 
drwy'r fewnrwyd i'r staff ac ar wefan CBSC.  Mae hyfforddiant pwrpasol wedi cael ei roi i 
adrannau ond mae angen ymestyn hynny i staff rheng flaen yn fwy cyffredinol a 
bwriedir gwneud hynny yn y misoedd sydd i ddod. 
  

Page 36



 

 24 

 
Ymwybyddiaeth ymhlith y Cyhoedd 
 

Mae'r gwaith o godi ymwybyddiaeth ymhlith y cyhoedd o'r gwaith y mae'r awdurdodau 
lleol yn ei wneud o ran y Lluoedd Arfog yn mynd rhagddo'n dda.  Mae'r dudalen Facebook 
(Gwent Armed Forces Community) a Twitter @GwentAFC sy'n hyrwyddo'r gwaith a'r 
digwyddiadau ar gyfer Cymuned y Lluoedd Arfog wedi cael tipyn o sylw ac mae'r gwaith 
dadansoddi yn gadarnhaol. Mae'r cylchlythyr chwarterol sy'n cael ei baratoi a'i anfon at 
bob meddygfa, canolfan waith a llyfrgell a'r gymuned ehangach yn cael derbyniad da iawn 
ac maent yn llwyddo i gyrraedd y rhai yn y gymuned ehangach nad oes ganddynt fynediad 
at y rhyngrwyd o bosibl. Mae sefydliadau yn y trydydd sector, BIPAB, sesiynau galw heibio 
cymunedol, gan gynnwys clybiau brecwast ar wahân i gyn-aelodau o'r lluoedd arfog hefyd 
yn cyfrannu at gynnwys y cylchlythyr.  
 
Mae Cyfeiriadur Cymorth Gwent i'r Lluoedd Arfog wedi cael ei lunio a chaiff ei 
ddosbarthu i'r staff rheng flaen, meddygfeydd a chanolfannau gwaith.  Bydd y ddogfen 
ar gael ar  wefan CBSC i'r cyhoedd. 
 
 
Diwrnod y Lluoedd Arfog Caerffili 

 

Mae gan Gyngor Bwrdeistref  Sirol Caerffili hanes hir o gefnogaeth i'r Lluoedd Arfog ac 
mae wedi'i dangos drwy gynnal Diwrnod y Lluoedd Arfog De Cymru am flynyddoedd 
lawer.  Mae hwn wedi mynd o nerth i nerth a dengys ffigurau 2017 fod tua 12,000 o 
breswylwyr ac ymwelwyr wedi dod allan ar strydoedd Caerffili i ddangos eu cefnogaeth i 
Gymuned y Lluoedd Arfog.  Gwnaeth y digwyddiad gwych hwn bara dros ddeuddydd yn 
2019.  Roedd 'Diwrnod i'w Gofio' y Lluoedd Arfog wedi'i anelu at goffau digwyddiadau’r 
Rhyfeloedd Byd a phontio'r bwlch rhwng gwasanaethau  milwrol a bywyd cymunedol sifil.  
Helpodd y digwyddiad i herio canfyddiadau o'r lluoedd arfog, yn enwedig ymhlith pobl 
ifanc a theuluoedd, er mwyn helpu i bontio bwlch rhwng y cenedlaethau a'r bwlch rhwng 
pobl sifil a milwrol er budd pawb.  
 
Hefyd, gwnaeth yr awdurdod drefnu a chynnal 'Cyngor Caerffili'n Cofio' a oedd yn coffau 
canmlwyddiant y Rhyfel Byd Cyntaf. Roedd hyn yn cynnwys gosod plac i goffau 
cyflogeion llywodraeth leol ac aelodau o'r gymuned a fu farw; prosiect ysgol; yn ogystal 
â dadorchuddio plac sy'n coffau cyfraniad milwyr wrth gefn i'r Lluoedd Arfog a 
chymdeithas heddiw. 
 
 
Gwobrau Cyn-filwyr Cymru 

 

Roedd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili yn falch o gyrraedd y rhestr fer ar gyfer 
Gwobrau Cyn-filwyr Cymru yng nghategori Cyflogwr y Flwyddyn a noddwyd gan Student 
Digz.  Cynhaliwyd y seremoni wobrwyo yng Ngwesty a Chlwb Hamdden y Village Hotel 
Abertawe ar 26 Mehefin 2019.  
  Page 37

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Armed-forces/Armed-Forces-advice,-help-and-support


 

 25 

 
Cynllun Cydnabod Cyflogwyr Amddiffyn 

 

Cafodd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili Wobr Arian yn gydnabyddiaeth am ei 
ymrwymiad i'r Gymuned Amddiffyn a'r Lluoedd Arfog. 
 
Mae'r Wobr Arian yn canolbwyntio ar gyfres o egwyddorion y mae Cyngor Bwrdeistref 
Sirol Caerffili yn eu dilyn.  Fel awdurdod, mae Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili wedi 
ymrwymo i fod yn rhagweithiol wrth ymdrin â Chymuned y Lluoedd Arfog.  Mae polisïau 
a gweithdrefnau adnoddau dynol ar waith sy'n rhoi hyblygrwydd ar gyfer ymrwymiadau 
hyfforddi ac ymgynnull a bu ffocws ar wella cyfleoedd cyflogaeth i aelodau o'r Lluoedd 
Arfog. 

 

 
Y Cyng Andrew Whitcombe (Hyrwyddwr y Lluoedd Arfog, Cyngor Caerffili) gyda Kath 
Peters (Rheolwr Polisi Corfforaethol Cyngor Caerffili) yn y Seremoni Wobrwyo Arian ERS 
yn Amgueddfa Hanes Sain Ffagan 

 
 

Cynllun Gwarantu Cyfweliad 
 

Bydd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili yn gwarantu cyfweliad i'r rhai sy'n gadael y 
Lluoedd Arfog, aelodau wrth gefn, cyn-aelodau a'u gwyr a'u gwragedd ar gyfer swyddi 
gwag, ar yr amod eu bod yn bodloni meini prawf hanfodol y rôl. 
 
Nid yw'r Cynllun Gwarantu Cyfweliad yn gwarantu bod rhywun yn cael ei benodi i swydd 
wag – mae gweithdrefnau dethol yn dal i sicrhau mai'r ymgeisydd gorau ar gyfer y 
swydd sy'n cael ei benodi. 

  

Page 38



 

 26 

 

Gweithio gyda Chymunedau Sipsiwn a Theithwyr 
 

Mae Grŵp Sipsiwn a Theithwyr y Cyngor yn cyfarfod ddwywaith y flwyddyn i fonitro 
newidiadau yn y sefyllfa leol ers cyhoeddi'r  Asesiad o Anghenion Llety Sipsiwn a 
Theithwyr a gafodd ei gwblhau yn 2015 a'i gymeradwyo gan Lywodraeth Cymru yn 2016. 
Mae'r grŵp yn defnyddio data ac adroddiadau gwasanaethau i weld a yw'r sefyllfa wedi 
newid ers yr hyn a nodwyd yn yr Asesiad o Anghenion Llety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr 2016. 
 
Mae Cyngor Caerffili yn aelod o Fforwm Llety Sipsiwn a Theithwyr Cymru Gyfan, sy'n 
cael ei gydlynu gan Lywodraeth Cymru ac sy'n cyfarfod 3/4 gwaith y flwyddyn. 
 
Mae'r rhaglen Cefnogi Pobl wedi cwblhau prosiect peilot yn ddiweddar ym maes 
Cymorth sy'n gysylltiedig â Thai, ac er ei bod yn amlwg bod pobl mewn angen yn y 
fwrdeistref, ni thybir ei fod yn ddigon i neilltuo gweithiwr ar gyfer y rôl hon. O fis Ebrill 
2019, bydd Cefnogi Pobl yn parhau i dderbyn atgyfeiriadau ar gyfer cymunedau Sipsiwn 
a Theithwyr a rhoi cymorth drwy wasanaethau cymorth cyffredinol yn gysylltiedig â thai. 
  

Page 39



 

 27 

 

Amrywiaeth yn y Gweithlu 
 

Gwelliannau i Ddata ar Weithlu CBSC 
 

Mae'n rhaid i'r Cyngor gadw gwybodaeth gyfredol am ei holl gyflogeion ar ei gronfa 
ddata adnoddau dynol er mwyn sicrhau y gall gyfathrebu â staff yn effeithiol a 
chyflawni ei rwymedigaethau cytundebol fel cyflogwr.  Mae'n rhaid i'r Cyngor gasglu 
gwybodaeth am gyflogeion o dan y gyfraith, er enghraifft eu sgiliau Cymraeg a data ar 
gydraddoldebau sy'n helpu'r Cyngor i ddeall proffil y gweithlu er mwyn cyflawni 
Dyletswydd Cydraddoldeb y Sector Cyhoeddus. 

 
Mae'r gallu i gofnodi gwybodaeth am y Gymraeg o ran data staff a gwaith dadansoddi 
yn rhan annatod o'r system gyflogres yng Nghyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili.  Dangosir 
ffigurau diwedd y flwyddyn ariannol hyd at 31 Mawrth 2018 isod a throsodd. 

 
O gymharu â'r llynedd, mae nifer y siaradwyr Cymraeg a gofnodwyd wedi cynyddu'n 
sylweddol.  Gellir esbonio'r cynnydd yn rhannol drwy arolwg o'r staff a gynhaliwyd gan 
Wasanaethau Pobl yn ystod haf 2017, a ofynnodd i'r staff nodi eu sgiliau Cymraeg yn 
seiliedig ar Lefelau 1-5 ALTE (Cymdeithas Profwyr Iaith yn Ewrop).  Mae'r broses barhaus 
o gasglu data ar sgiliau staff hefyd yn seiliedig ar lefelau sgiliau a amlinellir yn yr arolwg 
o'r staff. 
 
Ar adeg ysgrifennu’r adroddiad, dangoswyd cyfanswm nifer y staff a siaradwyr Cymraeg 
yn y sefydliad yn Nhabl 4: 
 
Tabl 4 – Cyfanswm nifer y staff a siaradwyr Cymraeg a gofnodwyd ar iTrent 

 
Wrth gynnal yr arolwg o'r staff i gadarnhau sgiliau Cymraeg y staff, manteisiwyd ar y 
cyfle hefyd i lanhau a diweddaru data'r staff o ran cydraddoldebau a ddelir ar system 
rheoli cyflogaeth adnoddau dynol y Cyngor.  Mae'r data a gyhoeddir yn gyfredol ac yn 
cael eu casglu'n barhaus ac mae'n ofynnol i ddechreuwyr newydd ddarparu'r data hyn 
pan fyddant yn dechrau gweithio gyda'r sefydliad. 
  

 Cyfanswm y staff  Siaradwyr Cymraeg % 

2016-2017 8,682 402 4.63 
2017-2018 8,767 436 4.97 

2018-2019 8,533 1,581 18.53 

Page 40



 

 28 

 
Trosolwg o Raglen Hyfforddiant Cydraddoldebau 2018-2019 
 

Bu rhaglen hyfforddiant gynhwysfawr a ddarparwyd ar gyfer staff ac aelodau etholedig 
ar gydraddoldebau a'r Gymraeg, sy'n cynnwys cyrsiau i ddysgu Cymraeg ac Iaith 
Arwyddion Prydain, yn llwyddiant mawr unwaith eto eleni. 

 
Cofrestrodd cyfanswm o 820 o aelodau o staff i fynychu cyrsiau cydraddoldeb penodol 
a’u rhestrir yn Nhabl 5: 
 
Tabl 5 – Staff a gofrestrwyd i fynychu cyrsiau ynglyn â chydraddoldebau 

Teitl y Cwrs Presenoldeb 
Niferoedd a  

dynnwyd yn ôl 
Iaith Arwyddion Prydain (lefelau 1-4) 17 1 

Hyfforddiant Ffrindiau Dementia 467 0 
Asesiad o'r Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb 134 13 

Ymwybyddiaeth Cydraddoldeb 32 0 

Tuedd ar sail Rhyw (Aelodau) 21 0 
Masnachu Pobl 21 0 

Ymwybyddiaeth Ofalgar 6 0 
Prevent (Gwrthderfysgaeth) 122 0 

 

Un maes gwaith allweddol eleni oedd gwella eu gallu i gynnal Asesiadau cadarn o'r 
Effaith ar Gydraddoldeb wrth gynllunio neu ystyried lleihau / terfynu unrhyw un o 
wasanaethau, polisïau, swyddogaethau, strategaethau neu brosiectau'r Cyngor.  Y 
sbardun i hyn oedd Dyfarniad Adolygiad Barnwrol lle y tybiwyd bod Asesiad o'r Effaith ar 
Gydraddoldeb yn annigonol.  
 
Un llwyddiant allweddol oedd cyflwyno hyfforddiant Ffrindiau Dementia a'r system 
"hyfforddi i hyfforddi" ar gyfer Hyrwyddwyr Dementia.  Mae Hyrwyddwyr Dementia 
hefyd yn rhoi hyfforddiant Ffrindiau Dementia yn eu meysydd gwasanaeth eu hunain 
bellach. 
  

Page 41



 

 29 

 
Hyfforddiant Trais yn erbyn Menywod, Cam-drin Domestig a Thrais Rhywiol 
(VAWDASV)  
 

Mae Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili wedi gwneud cynnydd sylweddol tuag at fodloni 
ei ofynion o dan y Fframwaith Hyfforddiant Cenedlaethol.  Bu ffocws ar gyfer 2018/19 o 
hyd ar gydlynu a chyflwyno hyfforddiant Grŵp 1 (Codi Ymwybyddiaeth) a Grŵp 2 (Gofyn 
a Gweithredu).  Mae'r gallu i roi hyfforddiant yn fewnol hefyd wedi cael ei ddatblygu.  

 
Ar ddechrau 2019, cafodd ein Cynllun Hyfforddiant ar Drais yn erbyn Menywod, Cam-
drin Domestig a Thrais Rhywiol ei adolygu a'i ddiweddaru i adlewyrchu'r cynnydd a 
wnaed ers 2016/17 a manylu ar ein nodau hyfforddiant hyd at 2022.  Cyflwynwyd y 
cynllun hyfforddiant newydd i'r Tîm VAWDASV Rhanbarthol ym mis Mawrth 2019. 

 

Mae nifer y staff a gafodd hyfforddiant yn uchel iawn, sy'n adlewyrchu maint ein 
gweithlu.  

 
Cynnydd Grŵp 1:  

 Ar ddiwedd mis Mawrth 2019, roedd 3,295 o gyflogeion presennol wedi cwblhau 
hyfforddiant Grŵp 1 (Codi Ymwybyddiaeth).  Mae'r ffigur hwn yn cyfateb i 42% 
o'r gweithlu (wedi cynyddu o 28% 31/3/2018) 

 
Cynnydd Grŵp 2: 

 Ar ddiwedd mis Mawrth 2019, roedd 427 o'r staff wedi cwblhau hyfforddiant 
Grŵp 2 (Gofyn a Gweithredu),  sef 24% o'r staff y nodwyd bod angen yr 
hyfforddiant arnynt (wedi cynyddu o 11% 31/3/2018) 

 
Grŵp 6 (Aelodau Etholedig) cynnydd: 

 Ar ddiwedd mis Mawrth 2019, roedd 72 o'r Aelodau Etholedig (99%) wedi 
cwblhau hyfforddiant Grŵp 6 (wedi cynyddu o 89% 31/3/2018) 

 
Yn y dyfodol, caiff sesiynau hyfforddiant Grŵp 1 a Grŵp 2 eu cynnal drwy gydol 
2019/20.  Caiff hyfforddiant ei gyflwyno hefyd i'r staff sy'n gweithio mewn ysgolion a 
lleoliadau blynyddoedd cynnar.  

 
  

Page 42



 

 30 

 
Hyfforddiant Iaith Gymraeg  

 

Un o ofynion Safonau'r Gymraeg mewn perthynas â hyfforddiant staff yw bod cyrsiau 
hyfforddiant iaith Gymraeg yn cael eu darparu. 

 
Ers 2001, mae 1811 o staff y Cyngor a staff sefydliadau partner wedi mynychu 
dosbarthiadau Cymraeg Llafar, yn amrywio o gyrsiau rhagflas i ddechreuwyr, hyd at a 
chan gynnwys cyrsiau Safon Uwch. 

 
Mae'r Safonau perthnasol fel a ganlyn: 

130 Rhaid ichi ddarparu cyfleoedd yn ystod oriau gwaith—  
(a) i’ch cyflogeion gael gwersi Cymraeg sylfaenol, a  
(b) i gyflogeion sy’n rheoli pobl eraill gael hyfforddiant ar ddefnyddio’r 
Gymraeg yn eu rôl fel rheolwyr.  

131 Rhaid ichi ddarparu cyfleoedd i’ch cyflogeion sydd wedi cwblhau  
hyfforddiant Cymraeg sylfaenol gael hyfforddiant pellach yn rhad ac am 
ddim er mwyn datblygu eu sgiliau yn yr iaith.  

132 Rhaid ichi ddarparu cyrsiau hyfforddi er mwyn i’ch cyflogeion 
ddatblygu—  
(a) ymwybyddiaeth o’r Gymraeg (gan gynnwys ymwybyddiaeth am 
hanes yr iaith a’i  

lle yn niwylliant Cymru);  
(b) dealltwriaeth o’r ddyletswydd i weithredu yn unol â safonau’r 

Gymraeg;  
(c) dealltwriaeth am y modd y gellir defnyddio’r Gymraeg yn y gweithle.  

 
Bu cynnydd sylweddol yn nifer y staff a fynychodd hyfforddiant iaith Gymraeg ar gyfer y 
flwyddyn dan sylw, gyda'r Cyngor yn trefnu hyfforddiant Cymraeg llafar a chodi 
ymwybyddiaeth i'r staff ac aelodau etholedig. 
 
Dengys Tabl 6 y data ar y cyrsiau a gynigiwyd i staff CBS Caerffili ac a fynychwyd 
ganddynt yn ystod y flwyddyn academaidd 2018-2019: 
 
Tabl 6 - Cyrsiau Iaith Gymraeg a gynigiwyd i staff CBS Caerffili ac a fynychwyd 
ganddynt ar gyfer y flwyddyn academaidd 2018-2019 

TEITL Y CWRS 
A GYNIGIWYD 

NIFER Y CYRSIAU 
A GYNIGIWYD 

NIFER O STAFF A 
FYNYCHODD Y CWRS 

30 wythnos 37 53 

Cwrs Blas ar y Gymraeg Deuddydd 3 14 

Cwrs Blasu’r Gymraeg Ar-lein 10 Awr 3 75 

Say Something in Welsh (Ar-lein) 1 2 

Tynnodd yn ôl 6  
Page 43



 

 31 

 
Lansiwyd Cwrs Iaith Gymraeg Ar-lein 10 a elwir yn Cymraeg Gwaith yn ystod gwanwyn 
2018 ac fe’i datblygwyd i'w ddefnyddio gan y rhai sy'n darparu gwasanaethau derbynfa 
rheng flaen.  Cafodd y cwrs hwn ei dargedu at y meysydd gwasanaeth hynny y mae 
Safon 64 yn effeithio arnynt yn uniongyrchol yn y lle cyntaf. 
 
Safon 64 

Rhaid i unrhyw wasanaeth derbynfa yr ydych yn ei gynnig yn 
Saesneg hefyd fod ar gael yn Gymraeg, a rhaid i unrhyw berson 
sydd am gael gwasanaeth derbynfa Cymraeg beidio â chael ei drin 
yn llai ffafriol na pherson sydd am gael gwasanaeth derbynfa 
Saesneg. 
 
Rhaid cydymffurfio â safon 64 mewn perthynas â’r isod erbyn 30 
Medi 2017: 
 

 Prif wasanaeth derbynfa’r corff. 
 
Rhaid cydymffurfio â safon 64 mewn perthynas â’r isod erbyn 30 
Medi 2018: 
 

 Llyfrgelloedd Bargod, Rhisga, Rhymni, Coed Duon, Caerffili ac 
Ystrad Mynach;  

 Canolfan Croeso Caerffili;  

 Maenordy Llancaiach Fawr;  

 Gwasanaethau Cofrestru yn Nhŷ Penallta;  

 Canolfannau hamdden Caerffili, Heolddu, Trecelyn a Rhisga.   

30/09/17 

 
Gellir dilyn y cwrs ar gamau ac mae'n tywys y dysgwr drwy gyfres o sefyllfaoedd ac 
wedyn gyfres o gwestiynau.  Ar ôl cwblhau'r cwrs, anfonir tystysgrif at y dysgwyr dros yr 
e-bost.  Mae cwrs dilynol hefyd ar gael bellach a chaiff hwn ei gyflwyno i'r rhai a 
gwblhaodd y 10 awr gyntaf yn haf 2019. 

 
Mae cyrsiau ar-lein eraill o'r fath ar gael bellach ar gyfer meysydd gwasanaeth penodol, 
gan gynnwys gofal cymdeithasol a busnes a fydd hefyd yn cael eu cyflwyno i'r meysydd 
gwasanaeth perthnasol yn haf 2019. 

 
Ni chafwyd unrhyw gais i gyrsiau gael eu cyflwyno drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg; felly, nid 
oes unrhyw ffigurau hyfforddiant staff i'w cofnodi. 

 
  

Page 44



 

 32 

 
Recriwtio a’r Gymraeg  

 

Un o ofynion yr Adroddiad Blynyddol ar y Gymraeg yw bod yn rhaid nodi ein cynnydd o ran 
recriwtio a'r Gymraeg. 

 

Safon 136 
 

Pan fyddwch yn asesu’r anghenion ar gyfer swydd newydd neu swydd wag, 
rhaid ichi asesu’r angen am sgiliau yn y Gymraeg, a’i chategoreiddio fel swydd 
pan fo un neu ragor o’r canlynol yn gymwys –  
(a) bod sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn hanfodol;  
(b) bydd angen dysgu sgiliau Cymraeg i weithio yn y swydd hon;  
(c) bod sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn ddymunol; neu  
(ch) nad yw sgiliau yn y Gymraeg yn angenrheidiol.  
 

 

Hysbysebwyd cyfanswm o 632 o swyddi gwag a swyddi newydd rhwng 31 Mawrth 2018 
a 31 Mawrth 2019.  Roedd y gofynion ynglyn â'r Gymraeg ar gyfer y swyddi hyn fel a 
ganlyn: 

 

(i) roedd sgiliau Cymraeg yn hanfodol 
 

6 
 

(ii) roedd angen dysgu sgiliau yn y Gymraeg pan benodir rhywun i’r swydd 
 

1 
 

Mae cyrsiau hyfforddiant iaith Gymraeg wedi bod ar gael i bob aelod o'r staff am ddim 
ers y flwyddyn academaidd 2001-2002 (gweler Adran 3) 

 

(iii) Roedd sgiliau Cymraeg yn ddymunol 
 

626 
 

(iv) Nid oedd angen sgiliau Cymraeg 
 

1* 
 

*Aseswyd nad oedd angen sgiliau Cymraeg ar gyfer y swydd hon oherwydd sgiliau 
Cymraeg yr aelodau eraill o'r tîm.  Fodd bynnag, hysbysebir bod Cymraeg yn 
ddymunol o leiaf ar gyfer pob swydd wag. 
 

Ar gyfer pob swydd wag neu swydd newydd rhaid cynnal Asesiad o Sgiliau Cymraeg (yn 
unol â Safon 136 ac wedi'i gofnodi gan Wasanaethau Pobl ers mis Hydref 2016).  
Hysbysebir pob swydd fel Cymraeg yn ddymunol fel gofyniad safonol.  Mae'r asesiad yn 
ystyried a oes angen newid hynny i Cymraeg yn hanfodol.  Yna, mae'r asesiad a'r 
dystiolaeth ategol yn rhan o'r achos busnes sydd ei angen i gael caniatâd i lenwi swyddi 
gwag neu greu rhai newydd.  

 

Gweler hefyd Atodiad A – Crynodeb o Ddata Gweithlu CBSC am ragor o fanylion a 
dadansoddiad o weithlu'r Cyngor. 
  Page 45



 

 33 

 

Cydymffurfiaeth Gorfforaethol 
 

Dadansoddiad o'r cwynion a gyflwynwyd yn ystod 2018 - 2019  
 

Mae adran 4 o Gynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol 2016-2020 yn diffinio'r hyn a ystyrir yn 
gŵyn o ran materion sy'n ymwneud â Chydraddoldebau a'r Gymraeg, a hynny er mwyn 
bod yn gyson wrth ymdrin ag unrhyw gŵyn o'r fath gan fod y Cyngor yn gweithredu 
gwasanaeth integredig ar gyfer Cydraddoldebau a'r Gymraeg.  
 
v) Cwynion 
 

4.10 Gall cwyn gael ei diffinio fel sefyllfa lle nad yw aelod o'r cyhoedd, neu grŵp, yn 
fodlon ar safon gwasanaeth, neu weithredu neu ddiffyg gweithredu gan y Cyngor 
neu aelod o'r staff.  
 

4.11 Ymdrinnir â phob cwyn yn unol â'r polisi Cwynion corfforoaethol, ond gyda'r 
angen ychwanegol i gyfieithu pob gohebiaeth i mewn ac allan ar y mater yn unol â 
Chanllawiau ar Gyfieithu Iaith Cymraeg 2016 ac unrhyw broblem arall o ran 
cyfieithiad, dyluniad neu fformat.  
 

4.12 Caiff cwynion eu monitro'n llawn yn ôl categori o Gydraddoldeb ac ym mha 
 bynnag iaith neu fformat a gyflwynwyd i ddechrau. 
 

4.13 Gellir gwneud cwynion yn ysgrifenedig, dros y ffôn neu drwy e-bost igyfeiriad  
 e-bost penodol y Cyngor cwynion@caerffili.gov.uk. 
 

4.14 Ceir rhagor o ganllawiau yn y Canllawiau ar Gwynion 
 ynghylch Cydraddoldebau a'r Gymraeg sydd ar ein gwefan. 
 

Mae cwynion ynglyn â Chydraddoldebau a'r Gymraeg yn rhan o'r adroddiad chwarterol 
i'r Pwyllgor Archwilio fel rhan o'r broses ar gyfer Cwynion Corfforaethol lle y bo'n 
briodol, ac mae'r Uwch-swyddog Polisi (Cydraddoldebau, y Gymraeg ac Ymgynghori) 
bellach yn aelod o'r Grŵp Dysgu o Gwynion corfforaethol sy'n cyfarfod bob chwarter i 
drafod cwynion penodol a thrawsbynciol. 

 
Cwynion Corfforaethol yw'r rhai sydd o ganlyniad i fethiant proses neu fethiant i 
weithredu polisi'r Cyngor yn gywir.  Mae'r rhain yn gwynion a allai gael eu hanfon 
ymlaen yn y pen draw at yr Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus neu Gomisiynydd y 
Gymraeg er enghraifft.  Ymdrinnir â materion ynglyn ag ymddygiad neu agwedd aelodau 
o'r staff o dan y Cod Ymddygiad drwy brosesau adnoddau dynol mewnol. 

 
Mae cwynion ynglyn â Chydraddoldebau a'r Gymraeg yn rhychwantu'r ddau fath o gŵyn 
yn yr ystyr y gall methiant proses fod o ganlyniad i agweddau neu safbwyntiau aelod o'r 
staff tuag at grŵp penodol er enghraifft. 
  

Page 46

mailto:cwynion@caerffili.gov.uk
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Information-and-guidance
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/My-Council/Equalities/Information-and-guidance


 

 34 

 
Yn ystod 2018-2019, ni chafwyd unrhyw gwynion ynglyn â chydraddoldebau; cawsom 4 
cais am wasanaeth a oedd yn ymwneud â chydraddoldebau.  Cyfeiriodd tri o'r ceisiadau 
hyn at destun yr oedd angen ei ddiweddaru ar ein gwefan oherwydd newid yn y 
derminoleg a ddefnyddir.  Roedd y pedwerydd cais am wasanaeth gan unigolyn a oedd 
am gael ei holl ohebiaeth yn Saesneg yn unig. 

 
Yn ystod 2018-2019, cawsom 4 cais am wasanaeth a 4 cwyn ynglyn â'r Gymraeg.  
Ymatebwyd i bob un o fewn yr amserlen ofynnol a chadarnhawyd pob un ohonynt.  
Roedd un o'r pedwar cais am wasanaeth yn ymwneud â marciau ffordd ac roedd y tri 
arall yn ymwneud ag arwyddion.  Roedd y pedair cwyn ynglyn â'r Gymraeg yn ymwneud 
â thorri Safonau'r Gymraeg, gan gynnwys methiant i ddarparu gwasanaeth cyfrwng 
Cymraeg mewn llyfrgell, cydymffurfiaeth peiriannau parcio car a meysydd gwasanaeth 
lle nad oedd staff Cymraeg i ymdrin ag ymholiadau. Ymatebwyd i'r pedair cwyn a 
gyflwynwyd o fewn yr amserlen gorfforaethol. 

 
Yn Adroddiad Blynyddol 2018-2019 ar Safonau'r Gymraeg, nodwyd ein bod wedi bod 
yn destun chwe ymchwiliad newydd gan Gomisiynydd y Gymraeg.  Caewyd tri o'r 
ymchwiliadau hyn gan swyddfa'r Comisiynydd; dau am fod yr achwynydd wedi methu ag 
ymateb i geisiadau am wybodaeth ychwanegol a'r trydydd am nad oedd yn rhaid i'r  
Cyngor gydymffurfio â'r Safon dan sylw a dorrwyd ar yr adeg y daeth y gŵyn i law. 

 
O'r tri ymchwiliad arall, mae pob un o'r camau gweithredu a nodwyd yn yr adroddiad 
terfynol ar gyfer un o'r ymchwiliadau wedi cael eu cymryd ac mae'r Comisiynydd wedi 
cael copi o'r dystiolaeth.  Mae un ohonynt wedi cael ei gyflawni ac roedd angen cymryd 
rhagor o gamau mewn perthynas â gwefan y Cyngor a darparu gwybodaeth i'r staff.  
Mae'r ymchwiliad olaf yn parhau ac rydym wrthi'n aros am ymateb y Comisiynydd i'n 
hymateb ninnau i'r hysbysiad o dystiolaeth a gafwyd. 
  

Page 47

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/Equalities/Welsh_Language_Standards_Annual_Report_2018-2019_c.aspx


 

 35 

 

Arferion Da, Teilwra Gwasanaethau a Hyrwyddo 
 

Mae'r straeon canlynol yn dangos sut mae meysydd gwasanaeth y Cyngor wedi teilwra eu 
gwaith o ddydd i ddydd yn unol â gofynion ac anghenion defnyddwyr gwasanaeth unigol.  
Mae pob un yn enghraifft ardderchog o roi egwyddorion Cydraddoldebau a'r Gymraeg ar 
waith yn ymarferol er budd pobl yn y fwrdeistref sirol. 
 
 
Mis Hanes LHDT 

 
 
Dathlodd Cyngor Caerffili Fis Hanes LHDT drwy gydol mis Chwefror, gyda nifer o 
weithgareddau a digwyddiadau i ddathlu amrywiaeth a chynhwysiant. 
  
Roedd y faner enfys yn cyhwfan y tu allan i Dŷ Penallta drwy gydol y mis, a chafodd yr 
adeilad ei oleuo yn lliwiau'r enfys hefyd. 
 
Ar 22 Chwefror 2019, cynhaliodd y Cyngor ddigwyddiad marchnad yn Nhŷ Penallta lle 
roedd busnesau a sefydliadau megis Heddlu Gwent, Chwarae Teg a Gwasanaeth Llyfrgell 
Caerffili wrth law i hyrwyddo Mis Hanes LHDT, codi ymwybyddiaeth ohono a'i ddathlu 
yn ogystal â chyfeirio pobl at wasanaethau cymorth y mae angen iddynt siarad â nhw o 
bosibl er mwyn cael cyngor. 
 
Cafodd ysgolion hefyd eu hannog i gymryd rhan ym Mis Hanes LHDT.  Gofynnwyd i holl 
ddisgyblion ysgol uwchradd gymryd rhan mewn cystadleuaeth dylunio i hyrwyddo 
prosiect (gwaith celf, model neu rywbeth cyffelyb) sy'n cynrychioli beth mae LHDT yn ei 
olygu iddynt. Cafodd disgyblion eu hannog hefyd i ystyried y thema eleni, sef 'heddwch, 
gweithredu a chymodi' fel rhan o'r dyluniad. 
 
Mae Mis Hanes LHDT yn dathlu cyflawniadau bywydau pobl lesbaidd, hoyw, ddeurywiol 
a thrawsrywiol heddiw ac yn y gorffennol.  Mae'r mis yn cynnig modelau rôl, yn meithrin 
cymuned ac yn cynrychioli datganiad hawliau sifil ynglyn â chyfraniadau'r gymuned 
LHDT. 

 
  

Page 48



 

 36 

 
Ysgol sy'n Dementia-Gyfeillgar 
Dathlodd Ysgol Gyfun Heolddu ym Margod ar ôl dod yn ysgol uwchradd gyntaf y 
fwrdeistref i gael gwobr Ffrindiau Dementia.  Cyflwynwyd y wobr i'r ysgol gan y 
Cynghorydd Carol Andrews a oedd, ochr yn ochr â'i merch Megan, wedi gweithio'n agos 
iawn gyda'r ysgol i gyflawni ei nod o ddod yn Dementia-Gyfeillgar.  Roedd hyn yn 
cynnwys rhoi hyfforddiant a sesiynau codi ymwybyddiaeth i bob plentyn.  
 

 
 
Am ragor o wybodaeth am Ffrindiau Dementia ewch i www.dementiafriends.org.uk 
 
 
"Walkies for Autism" 
Cynhaliodd Ysgol Gyfun Gymunedol Rhisga ei hail daith gerdded â chŵn i godi arian 
ddydd Sul, 7 Ebrill yng Nghoedwig Cwmcarn.  Taith gerdded dwy filltir yw 'Walkies for 
Autism' yng Nghoedwig Cwmcarn, i ddathlu a chodi ymwybyddiaeth ac arian i Ganolfan 
ASD Ysgol Gyfun Rhisga ar ddiwedd Wythnos Ymwybyddiaeth Awtistiaeth y Byd, a 
gynhaliwyd 1-7 Ebrill 2019 eleni. 
 
Mae'r Ganolfan ASD yn cefnogi pobl ifanc 11 i 16 oed mewn lleoliad prif ffrwd. Ar hyn o 
bryd, mae 14 o fyfyrwyr yn mynychu'r ganolfan ASD yn Ysgol Gyfun Gymunedol Rhisga, 
lle y cânt eu help gan weithiwr allweddol i fynd i wersi a hefyd dreulio amser yn y 
ganolfan er mwyn canolbwyntio ar sgiliau allweddol.  Mae'r ganolfan ASD hefyd yn 
helpu myfyrwyr i ddatblygu sgiliau cymdeithasol a bywyd hanfodol i baratoi disgyblion 
ar gyfer bywyd y tu allan î'r ysgol. 
 
Drwy'r arian a godwyd gan y daith gerdded y llynedd bu modd datblygu ystafell sgiliau'r 
ganolfan, gan greu lleoliad sy'n meithrin annibyniaeth a sgiliau trefnu hanfodol sy'n 
golygu bod myfyrwyr yn dysgu arferion a sgiliau hanfodol y bydd eu hangen arnynt yn y 
dyfodol.  Mae'r sgiliau ymarferol bywyd go iawn yn hollbwysig er mwyn sicrhau bod 
myfyrwyr yn teimlo'n hyderus ac yn datblygu hunan-barch.  Roedd yr arian hefyd wedi 
helpu i osod cegin newydd yn y ganolfan lle y gellir dysgu sgiliau coginio a fydd yn dysgu 
ein myfyrwyr sut i baratoi a bwyta bwyd iach, dysgu sut i fyw'n annibynnol a gweithio 
gydag eraill ac ochr yn ochr â nhw. 
 
 

Page 49



 

 37 

Bydd yr arian a godir gan daith gerdded 2019 yn helpu'r ysgol i brynu tŷ gwydr, ardal 
eistedd, mwy o hadau a chwblhau'r ardal ymdawelu yn yr ardd feithrin. 
 
Darllenwch ein Cwestiynau Cyffredin (PDF) i ddarganfod mwy am y daith gerdded neu i 
gael mwy o wybodaeth am y digwyddiad, e-bostiwch taffyterrier@gmail.com 
 
 
Diwrnod Rhyngwladol y Menywod 
Cynlluniodd Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili nifer o weithgareddau i ddathlu Diwrnod 
Rhyngwladol y Menywod.  Mae'r diwrnod byd-eang, a gynhaliwyd ar 8 Mawrth 2019, yn 
dathlu cyflawniadau cymdeithasol, economaidd, diwylliannol a gwleidyddol menywod. 
Thema Diwrnod Rhyngwladol y Menywod eleni oedd 'Cydbwysedd er Gwell', a oedd yn 
canolbwyntio ar ymdrechu i sicrhau byd tecach a  mwy cytbwys o ran y rhywiau, lle y 
gall menywod fanteisio ar bob cyfle sydd ar gael i ddynion a gweithlu mwy cytbwys o 
ran y rhywiau. 
 
Roedd y gweithgareddau a gynlluniwyd gan y cyngor yn cynnwys digwyddiad 
rhwydweithio yng Ngwesty Bryn Meadows, a drefnwyd mewn partneriaeth â Chwarae 
teg, lle y gallai menywod rannu profiadau a straeon llwyddiant ag unigolion a chwmnïau 
o'r un anian o bob rhan o fwrdeistref sirol Caerffili. Yn ystod y digwyddiad, lansiwyd 
rhaglen newydd o ddigwyddiadau Menywod sy'n  Gweithio ar gyfer y flwyddyn sydd i 
ddod. 

 
Drwy gydol y diwrnod, defnyddiodd y Cyngor ei sianel cyfryngau cymdeithasol i rannu 
straeon ysbrydoledig gan gyflogeion benywaidd sydd wedi dewis gyrfaoedd mewn rolau 
a gyflawnwyd gan ddynion yn bennaf yn draddodiadol. 
 

 
 

 Christina Harrhy (Prif Weithredwr) - Clip YouTube o Christina Harrhy 

 Anouska Beaumont (Uwch-beiriannydd Cynorthwyol) - Clip YouTube o Anouska Beaumont 

 Nichola Tiley (Arolygydd Priffyrdd) - Clip YouTube o Nichola Tiley 

 Liz Lucas (Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cwsmeriaid a Digidol) - Clip YouTube o Liz Lucas 

 Karen Price (Clerc Gwresogi Gwaith) - Clip YouTube o Karen Price 

 Rhian Kyte (Pennaeth Adfywio a Chynllunio) - Clip YouTube o Rhian Kyte 
 
Cynhaliwyd digwyddiad iechyd menywod, 'Menywod y Byd' hefyd ddydd Mercher, 13 
Mawrth 2019 yn Llancaiach Fawr. Page 50

https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/CaerphillyDocs/News/FAQsDogWalkRisca-(1).aspx
mailto:taffyterrier@gmail.com
https://youtu.be/sT4Gi36RgTc
https://youtu.be/tx_vHVuHstY
https://youtu.be/FYdMFFYoreY
https://youtu.be/JDugitQcPaE
https://youtu.be/giM3qdXOSZU
https://youtu.be/fmo2jevR2UY


 

 38 

 
Dangosodd y digwyddiad waith Tim Adfywio Cymunedol y Cyngor a oedd yn ymwneud â 
meysydd megis urddas yn ystod misglwyf, yn ogystal â rhoi cyfle i bobl gymryd rhan 
mewn gweithdai a oedd yn cynnwys hyder corff a gwasanaethau 
sgrinio/ymwybyddiaeth o sgrinio serfigol. 
 
 
Diwrnod Cofio'r Holocost 
Ddydd Gwener, 25 Ionawr 2019, nododd Cyngor Caerffili Ddiwrnod Cofio'r Holocost yn 
Amgueddfa'r Tŷ Weindio, Tredegar Newydd.  Roedd y digwyddiad yn cynnwys 
disgyblion o Ysgol Gynradd y Rhosyn Gwyn ac Ysgol 3-18 Idris Davies yn darllen cerddi, 
arddangosfa o waith celf gan ddisgyblion o Ysgol Gymraeg Caerffili, gweddi a chynnau 
cannwyll yn symbolaidd. 
 
Diwrnod cofio rhyngwladol i ddioddefwyr yr Holocost ac achosion eraill o hil-laddiad yw 
Diwrnod Cofio'r Holocost. Mae'r diwrnod hwn yn talu teyrnged i'r goroeswyr ac yn 
cofio'r rhai a fu farw. Mae hefyd yn gyfle i fyfyrio ar y ffordd rydym yn byw ein bywydau 
heddiw. 
 
 
Iechyd Meddwl 
Lansiodd Amser i Newid Cymru ymgyrch newydd i annog dynion i siarad am eu hiechyd 
meddwl heb ofn cael eu barnu. Mae 'Talkng is a Lifeline' yn pwysleisio mai siarad am 
iechyd meddwl yw un o'r pethau mwyaf dewr y gall dyn ei wneud 
 
Nod yr ymgyrch yw grymuso dynion i fod yn agored am eu trafferthion gydag iechyd 
meddwl a chymerodd Lee Carpenter (Swyddog Iechyd yr Amgylchedd) o Gyngor Caerffili 
ran yn y fideo a'r deunyddiau ffotograffig a ddefnyddiwyd i hyrwyddo'r ymgyrch. 
 
Canfu ymchwil gan Amser i Newid Cymru fod hunan-stigma a diffyg dealltwriaeth o 
iechyd meddwl yn atal llawer o ddynion rhag siarad â theulu a ffrindiau am eu 
problemau iechyd meddwl oherwydd ofn a phryderu am ganlyniadau negyddol.  Mae 
llawer o ddynion wedi dweud wrth Amser i Newid Cymru bod y pwysau i 'ymddwyn fel 
dyn' a 'bod yn gadarn' wedi golygu eu bod wedi dioddef yn fud. 
 
Mae'r ymgyrch yn cynnwys cyfres o fideos byr sy'n tynnu sylw at bwysigrwydd siarad â'r 
bobl o'ch amgylch pan nad ydych yn teimlo cant y cant. 
 
Mae gwefan Amser i Newid Cymru yn llawn gwybodaeth a chyngor am Iechyd meddwl. 
Ewch i timetochangewales.org.uk i wylio fideos ‘Talking is a Lifeline’. Dangoswch eich 
cefnogaeth i'r ymgyrch drwy lawrlwytho adnoddau oddi ar y wefan. Gallwch ddilyn yr 
ymgyrch ar Twitter, Facebook ac Instagram. 
  

Page 51



 

 39 

 
10 Diwrnod at Lesiant 
Roedd cyfres o weithdai a sesiynau gwybodaeth ar gael i bob aelod o'r staff, a oedd yn 
llawn ffyrdd o wella a chynnal llesiant corfforol a meddyliol cyn Diwrnod Iechyd Meddwl 
y Byd. 
 
Roedd y sesiynau yn cynnwys: 
 Sesiwn blas ar Ymwybyddiaeth Ofalgar  
 Stondin gwybodaeth am bolisïau adnoddau dynol 
 MOT Iechyd  
 Ioga ac Ymlacio  
 Maeth a bwyta'n iach  
 'Gwneud bob diwrnod gwaith yn ddiwrnod iach!  
 Fit Friday  
 Her Llesiant  
 Dileu rhwystrau iechyd meddwl yn y gweithle  

 

Her Llesiant | 10 diwrnod tuag at Lesiant (PDF) 
 
 

Llwyddiant i Ofalwyr Cysylltu Bywydau De-ddwyrain Cymru yn Seremoni Wobrwyo 
Gofalwyr Cymru 
Cafodd tair set o Ofalwyr Cysylltu Bywydau wobrau ar ôl i enillwyr Gwobrau Gofalwyr 
Cymru gael eu cyhoeddi. 
 
Mae'r cynllun cydweithredol yn cwmpasu chwe awdurdod lleol, sef Blaenau Gwent, Sir 
Fynwy, Torfaen, Merthyr Tudful, Casnewydd a Chaerffili, lle y caiff ei gynnal. 
 
Nod y gwobrau hyn, a gynhelir gan Fforwm Gofal Cymru, yw dathlu gofalwyr sy'n cynnig 
rhagoriaeth yn eu meysydd ac eleni cafodd gofalwyr eu dewis i gydnabod eu gwaith 
caled, eu hymrwymiad a'u hymroddiad. 
 
 

Wythnos Ddiogelu 
Nododd y Cyngor Wythnos Ddiogelu (12-16 Tachwedd 2018) drwy atgoffa ei holl 
gyflogeion, Aelodau Etholedig, gwirfoddolwyr a chontractwyr am eu dyletswydd 
gyfreithiol i weithredu os ydynt yn pryderu am lesiant unrhyw blentyn, person ifanc neu 
oedolyn sy'n agored i niwed. 
 
Mae cyfrifoldeb ar bob unigolyn i ddiogelu plant, pobl ifanc ac oedolion sy'n agored i 
niwed ac mae Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili yn ymrwymedig i greu cymunedau 
ofalgar lle mae'r rhai sy'n byw ynddynt yn teimlo'n ddiogel ac wedi'u diogelu. 
  

Page 52

http://sc-aptdegovp2/intranet/homepage/pdf/WellbeingIntranetStory.pdf


 

 40 

 
Cynhaliodd Gwasanaeth Ieuenctid Caerffili lansiad menter newydd sy'n hyfforddi 
gweithwyr ieuenctid ac yn codi ymwybyddiaeth o gaethwasiaeth fodern.  Mae'r rhaglen 
hyfforddiant genedlaethol yn rhoi'r sgiliau a'r wybodaeth i weithwyr ieuenctid  adnabod 
achosion o gaethwasiaeth fodern. 
 
 
Hwb Ariannol i Ysgolion Cyfrwng Cymraeg 
Mae'r Cyngor wedi croesawu'r newyddion y bydd pum ysgol gynradd Cyfrwng Cymraeg 
yn yr ardal yn cael dros £6 miliwn o gyllid gan Lywodraeth Cymru.  Drwy'r buddsoddiad, 
bydd 41 o brosiectau mewn 16 o ardaloedd awdurdod lleol yn cael tua £51 miliwn. 
 
Caiff y cyllid ei ddefnyddio i gynyddu nifer y lleoedd cyfrwng Cymraeg, gwella 
darpariaeth gofal plant, gwella cyfleusterau ystafell ddosbarth a'i gwneud yn bosibl i 
gael gwared ar ystafelloedd dosbarth dros dro ar lawer o'r safleoedd. 
 
 
Ras yr Iaith 
Ras yr Iaith yw'r unig ras yn y byd sy'n hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg.  Dechreuodd y ras yn 
Wrecsam ar 4 Gorffennaf, gan wneud ei ffordd ar hyd a lled y wlad a gorffen yng 
nghanol tref Caerffili ar 6 Gorffennaf. Mae'r digwyddiad yn cynnig tri diwrnod llawn o 
redeg, sŵn, egni a mwynhad, tra'n dathlu'r Gymraeg mewn amrywiol gymunedau ledled 
Cymru.  
 
Trefnir y ras gan Fentrau Iaith Cymru, a rheolir y rhan yng Nghaerffili gan Fenter Iaith 
Caerffili gyda chymorth Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Caerffili, Cyngor Tref a Chymuned 
Caerffili, busnesau lleol, ysgolion a'r gymuned. 
 
Mae gwahanol sefydliadau ledled Cymru hefyd yn cael budd o'r ras, am fod yr arian sy'n 
dod i law yn cael ei ddosbarthu ar ffurf grantiau i'r cymunedau dan sylw.  Cododd y ras 
ddiwethaf yn 2016 dros £42,000 a rannwyd rhwng 45 o fudiadau iaith Gymraeg yn yr 
ardaloedd yr ymwelwyd â nhw gyda'r nod o hyrwyddo'r Gymraeg yn eu hardaloedd. 
 

 
 

Am ragor o wybodaeth am Ras yr Iaith, ewch i gwefan Ras yr Iaith.  
  

Page 53

http://rasyriaith.cymru/


 

 41 

 

Atodiad A - Crynodeb o'r Data ar y Gweithlu 
 

Mae'r wybodaeth ganlynol yn ddata lefel uchel a oedd ar system gyflogres iTrent ar 31 
Mawrth 2019 mewn perthynas â phroffil gweithlu CBS Caerffili, o ran nodweddion 
gwarchodedig a gallu ieithyddol staff. 
 
Sylwer 
 

 Dangosir Rhyw, Ethnigrwydd ac Anabledd yn ôl Cyfadran ar hyn o bryd. 

 Dangosir data ar Grefydd neu Gred a Chyfeiriadedd Rhywiol yn ôl cyfansymiau 
Corfforaethol yn unig ar hyn o bryd.  Mae'r data wedi gwella yn ystod y flwyddyn 
ariannol ddiwethaf.  

 Mae Gallu Ieithyddol ar gael yn ôl Maes Gwasanaeth ond darperir y data hyn fel 
cyfansymiau Corfforaethol er gwybodaeth. 

 Nid oes gwybodaeth arall wedi cael ei chyflwyno gan nad oes unrhyw gofnodion yn y 
categorïau dan sylw. 

 

Rhyw yn ôl Cyfadran Dynion Menywod Heb ei 
ddatgelu 

Cymunedau 923 628 0 

Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol  904 4,300 0 

Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Thai 522 1,417 0 

Cyfanswm yr Awdurdod 2,300 6233 0 

 

Anabledd yn ôl Cyfadran Anabl Nifer Heb ei 
ddatgelu 

Amharod i 
Ddatgan 

Cymunedau 56 1,401 94 0 

Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol  75 4,425 704 0 

Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Thai 53 1,815 71 0 

Cyfanswm yr Awdurdod 181 7,489 863 0 

 

Cyfeiriadedd Rhywiol (cyfansymiau) Niferoedd 

Deurywiol 13 

Hoyw 34 

Heterorywiol 2,664 

Lesbiaidd 22 

Arall 22 

Heb ei ddatgelu 5,670 

Amharod i Ddatgan 108 

Cyfanswm yr Awdurdod 8,533 

  

Page 54



 

 42 

 

Ethnigrwydd yn ôl Cyfadran Gwyn Pobl Dduon a 
Lleiafrifoedd 

Ethnig 

Heb ei 
ddatgelu 

Amharod i 
Ddatgan 

Cymunedau 1,452 18 80 1 

Addysg a Gwasanaethau Corfforaethol 4,521 40 640 3 

Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Thai 1,867 32 40 0 

Cyfanswm yr Awdurdod 7,691 80 758 4 

  

Crefydd neu Gred (cyfansymiau) Niferoedd 

Bwdhaeth 6 

Cristnogaeth (Pob Enwad) 1,176 

Hindŵaeth 6 

Iddewiaeth 1 

Islam 2 

Siciaeth 2 

Dyneiddiol 3 

Dim Crefydd 1,463 

Heb ei ddatgelu 5,775 

Amharod i Ddatgan 66 

Arall 33 

Cyfanswm yr Awdurdod 8,533 

 

Cenedligrwydd  Niferoedd 

Prydeinig (Nid o Ynysoedd y Sianel nac Ynys Manaw) 963 

Seisnig 78 

Gwyddelig Gogledd Iwerddon 3 

Gwyddelig 6 

Cymreig 2,018 

Albanaidd 7 

Cernywaidd 1 

Arall 34 

Heb ei ddatgelu 5,418 

Amharod i Ddatgan 5 

Cyfanswm yr Awdurdod 8,533 
 
  

Page 55



 

 43 

 
Gallu Ieithyddol (Heblaw am Saesneg)  Niferoedd 

Arabeg 1 

Braille 2 

Llydaweg 0 

Iaith Arwyddion Prydain 51 

Croateg 1 

Iseldireg 1 

Ffrangeg 44 

Almaeneg 15 

Iaith Roeg 1 

Hebraeg 1 

Hindi 2 

Hwngareg 1 

Eidaleg 4 

Cwrdeg 1 

Iaith Arwyddion Makaton 1 

Malaialam 2 

Nepali 1 

Romaneg 2 

Rwsieg 1 

Serbeg 0 

Sbaeneg 13 

Tamil 1 

Twrceg 2 

Cymraeg 1,581 
(Ni chofnodir cyfanswm nifer y staff am fod rhai aelodau o'r staff yn siarad mwy na dwy 
iaith) 

 

Page 56



 
CABINET – 14TH OCTOBER 2020 

 
SUBJECT:  FLEXIBLE WORKING 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES 
 

 

 

1. PURPOSE 
 

The attached report was considered by the Policy and Resources Scrutiny 
Committee on 29th September 2020. The report sought the views of the Policy 
and Resources Scrutiny Committee of a more formal approach to flexible 
working that builds upon the progress made in respect of working in a flexible 
manner throughout the lockdown prior to its consideration and determination at 
Cabinet. 

 
2.        SUMMARY 
 
2.1  The Scrutiny Committee were advised that because of the speed and nature of 

the COVID-19 lockdown, the Council was required to equip and train a 
significant proportion of its workforce to work and to provide services remote 
from their usual places of work and, in many cases, from home. 
 

2.2  While the transformation to this new model of service delivery happened at a 
significant pace, the technology platforms that have formed the foundations of 
remote working have proven to be intuitive and stable. 
 

2.3  Some sections of the workforce have been operating remotely and very 
effectively since the beginning of lockdown and, over time, further services have 
been enabled and brought back online with much less of a reliance on buildings, 
premises and travel. 
 

2.4  This has enabled many services to the public to be delivered safely and 
continuously and for the Council’s employees to manage multiple aspects of 
their professional and personal lives in a way that has brought about a much 
greater balance than was possible previously. 

 
2.5  Of course, not everyone has found the isolated nature of working remotely a 

positive experience and the results of the Flexible Working survey provide a 
healthy note of caution. Whatever the Council does from here on in, must be 
truly flexible and meet the differing needs of its employees, as well as reducing 
any operating costs associated with service delivery. 

 
 
 

Page 57

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 6



 

2. SCRUTINY COMMITTEE COMMENTS  
 
2.1 The scrutiny committee received evidence from Mrs L Dallimore of Unison on the 

report and noted that the Trade Unions are committed to working with the 
Authority on the proposals and her thanks to senior officers for their 
engagement.  

 
2.2 Mrs Dallimore highlighted several issues that Unison wished members to be           

aware of when considering the proposals. She asked that Members consider 
who the beneficiaries of flexible working would be and how will the additional 
energy costs to staff that are home working can be mitigated. That further 
consideration of both the benefits alongside the drawbacks needs more 
consideration. The availability of staff working from home with clear boundaries 
put in place and the importance of establishing a culture that is embedded into 
the organisation. The differences between staff that carry out roles that are 
public facing and cannot be flexible was highlighted and how the flexible working 
hours system will work with this proposal. At present there is confusion and staff 
have been told they have to have managers approval to work beyond their 
contracted hours. This will mean many fundamental changes to many personnel 
policies and it was suggested that pilot schemes be established before policy 
changes are put forward alongside Equality Impact Assessments. 

 
2.3 Members agreed that management support is needed for staff and by colleagues 

supporting each other. It is important for staff to have a sense of belonging and 
regular contact via team meetings and informal methods, to ensure appropriate 
safeguarding. 

 
2.4 The committee were advised that this is the start of the process with a lot of work 

left to do and it should be noted that this is how the Authority has worked over 
the past 6 months. The views of trade unions are important for this process and it 
is appreciated that one size doesn’t fit all but the overall aim is to make the 
organisation fit for purpose going forward. Further reports and policies will follow 
and scrutiny will be involved receiving reports and policies. The staff survey 
indicated that the majority who responded were in favour of a 50/50 split of home 
and office-based work going forward. However, it was important to note that 
flexible working also includes working from other locations such as other council 
offices, or partners organisations. 

 
2.5 Members were assured that that managers have had the message that regular 

contact with staff must take place. The personnel manager has met regularly 
with the trade unions and there has been discussion on how authority and trade 
unions can work together to offer emotional support to staff. Members agreed 
that it was important to consider potential impact of working from home of those 
who may be isolated or perhaps at risk of domestic abuse. The need to consider 
how career paths and morale will be impacted was also mentioned.  

 
2.6 The scrutiny committee asked if plans to close office were premature and there 

is a need to ensure that the pros and cons were thoroughly considered first. 
Members asked if consideration has been given to which buildings may be sold 
off and the impact of communities if office staff are no longer using local shops 
and facilities. Members were assured that there are no plans at present to sell off 
any buildings and we would need to be sure this approach was working, and 
further reports would need to come forward with any detailed proposals.  

 

Page 58



2.7 Members also asked for assurance that the public were considered as part of 
this proposal, with 25% still not having digital skills there is still a need for them 
to access services. The committee were advised that this has happened over the 
past six months, services have been maintained and the public supported. 
Members were also reminded of the customer and digital strategy approved last 
year this has given us a flexible customer service and this flexible working 
approach would enhance this allowing us to provide a 24/7 service.  

 
2.8 The scrutiny committee appreciated that this is the start of the process and felt it 

was important that Members are kept fully informed and consulted going forward. 
The committee would like to see a report in January 2021 that will include details 
on the issues raised by staff in the consultation and highlighted by the trade 
unions on the impact upon staff, including their mental health with appropriate 
Equality Impact Assessments. The report to also include the potential impact on 
communities if offices close. 

 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Therefore, the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee recommend by the 

majority present that Cabinet approve the following recommendations as detailed 
in the attached officers report and for the reasons contained therein: - 

 
3.2 Cabinet acknowledge the benefits of the flexible working arrangements that have 

supported service delivery across the council since March 2020. 
 
3.3 Cabinet agree to formally adopt the flexible working principles set out at 

appendix 1 of the report to Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee as a core 
principle for supporting service delivery. 

 
3.4 Cabinet delegates authority to the Head of Paid Service, in consultation with the 

relevant Cabinet Member, to determine on a service by service basis the 
optimum approach to flexible working and accommodation requirements. 

 
3.5 Cabinet note the need to consider how the current flexi system can be aligned 

with and support the principles of flexible working through ongoing discussions 
with trade unions. 

 
3.6 Cabinet note the potential investment associated with the deployment of flexible 

working in relation to it equipment and furniture as well as the potential savings 
that can be generated through the rationalisation of buildings and reductions in 
other operating expenditure. 

 
3.7 Cabinet agrees to receive additional reports, as required, to agree funding and 

any associated hr and it policy changes that might be required. 
 
3.8 Cabinet endorse the proposal to set aside an initial one-off sum of £500k to be 

funded from capital earmarked reserves to ensure that the council can respond 
proactively in the short-term to commence the roll-out of new flexible ways of 
working. 

 
3.9 Cabinet endorses the development of an appropriate training and development 

programme for managers and staff to ensure the benefits of flexible working are 
maximised 

 
3.10 Cabinet note the additional recommendation made that the Policy and 

Page 59



Resources Scrutiny Committee hold a special meeting in order to consider in 
detail the principles of flexible working and its impact on staff and service users 
and communities. 

 

 
Author:  Catherine Forbes-Thompson, Scrutiny Manager – forbecl@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 
Appendices: Report to Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 29th September 2020 – 

Agenda Item 7 

Page 60



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

POLICY AND RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –  
29TH SEPTEMBER 2020 

 
 

SUBJECT:  FLEXIBLE WORKING 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To seek the views of the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee of a more formal 

approach to flexible working that builds upon the progress made in respect of working in a 
flexible manner throughout the lockdown prior to its consideration and determination at 
Cabinet. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Because of the speed and nature of the COVID-19 lockdown, the Council was required to 

equip and train a significant proportion of its workforce to work and to provide services remote 
from their usual places of work and, in many cases, from home. 

 
2.2 While the transformation to this new model of service delivery happened at a significant pace, 

the technology platforms that have formed the foundations of remote working have proven to 
be intuitive and stable. 

 
2.3 Some sections of the workforce have been operating remotely and very effectively since the 

beginning of lockdown and, over time, further services have been enabled and brought back 
online with much less of a reliance on buildings, premises and travel. 

 
2.4 This has enabled many services to the public to be delivered safely and continuously and for 

the Council’s employees to manage multiple aspects of their professional and personal lives 
in a way that has brought about a much greater balance than was possible previously. 

 
2.5 Of course, not everyone has found the isolated nature of working remotely a positive 

experience and the results of the Flexible Working survey provide a healthy note of caution. 
Whatever the Council does from here on in, must be truly flexible and meet the differing needs 
of its employees, as well as reducing any operating costs associated with service delivery. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 In terms of recommendations, Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee are asked to 

recommend that Cabinet: 
 

Appendix

Page 61



3.1.1 Acknowledge the benefits of the flexible working arrangements that have supported 
service delivery across the Council since March 2020.  

 
3.1.2 Agree to formally adopt the flexible working principles set out at Appendix 1 as a core 

principle for supporting service delivery.   
 

3.1.3 Delegates authority to the Head of Paid Service, in consultation with the relevant 
Cabinet Member, to determine on a service by service basis the optimum approach to 
flexible working and accommodation requirements.  

 
3.1.4 Note the need to consider how the current flexi system can be aligned with and 

support the principles of flexible working through ongoing discussions with Trade 
Unions.  

 
3.1.5 That Members note the potential investment associated with the deployment of flexible 

working in relation to IT equipment and furniture as well as the potential savings that 
can be generated through the rationalisation of buildings and reductions in other 
operating expenditure. 

 
3.1.6 Agrees to receive additional reports, as required, to agree funding and any associated 

HR and IT Policy changes that might be required 
 

3.1.7 Endorse the proposal to set aside an initial one-off sum of £500k to be funded from 
Capital Earmarked Reserves to ensure that the Council can respond proactively in the 
short-term to commence the roll-out of new flexible ways of working. 

 
 3.1.8 Endorses the development of an appropriate training and development programme for 

 managers and staff to ensure the benefits of flexible working are maximised 
 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The authority has gone through an unprecedented period of flexible working in relation to the 

current Coronavirus pandemic.  It is wholly evident that there are options to enhance the 
standard approach to office accommodation that will benefit staff, the Council, the residents of 
Caerphilly County Borough and the wider environment.   

 
4.2 The progress achieved over recent months in delivering services through flexible 

arrangements must now be captured and built upon to ensure services can remain 
sustainable over the long term, whatever challenges may emerge. 

 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The current pandemic has provided a stimulus to show the benefits of working in a more 

flexible manner. The progress made and the lessons learned over the last four months can 
directly shape the blueprint for future service delivery and redesign. Embedding flexible 
practices will enable the organisation to be ready to manage any future crisis as well as reflect 
the Council’s need to remain an attractive and progressive employer.  

 
5.2 It is acknowledged that it is not going to be possible to design a one size fits all approach and 

that flexible working models will need to be developed and tailored to each service area and, 
in some cases, these models will differ depending upon role. The core focus, however, will 
remain a reduction in the reliance of the workforce and services upon physical buildings. 

 
5.3 The success of any flexible implementation will be linked to a clear set of objectives, a 

consistently applied corporate approach, a strong communication and engagement plan as 
well as a suite of policies that support the new ways of working.  

Page 62



 
5.4 Team management and appropriate support will also be vital to the success of flexible 

working and Managers will need to be provided the necessary training and tools to be able to 
manage and support a distributed workforce while maintaining and optimising the benefits of 
team working.  

 
5.5 It should also be noted that flexible working is not simply home working. Home working will 

form part of a range of flexible arrangements. Some employees will use their home as their 
office base, some will operate across multiple office buildings and some may even take 
advantage of working at times from other buildings. The flexible working approach should 
support staff to work where and when it best suits them while still ensuring the needs of the 
business are supported.  

 
5.6 The introduction of a broader flexible working approach will be a move to a trust-based 

organisation with employees empowered to deliver their roles flexibly. Measures will still be in 
place, however, to ensure staff achieve their required tasks and outputs and fulfil their 
contracted hours.  

 
5.7 Organisations that have introduced ‘flexible working’ opportunities (such as the NHS, other 

local authorities, business in general), have confirmed improvements in the following areas:  
 

 For the employer:   
 

• Increased motivation and engagement of staff  
• Increased productivity and Efficiency 
• Improved business continuity – less disruption due to weather, office security issues, 

travel problems etc.  
• Reduction in organisational and personal carbon footprint  
• Reduced parking  
• Improved staff performance  
• Ability to attract and retain high quality talent  
• Reduced absenteeism and related costs  
• Reduced staff turnover with associated costs and reduction in lost knowledge, skills 

and experience 
• Asset rationalisation 
 

 For employees: 
 

• Reduced travel time and related cost.    
• Personal productivity linked to fewer distractions, improved focus, concentration, 

creativity, better use of skills and less frustration due to fewer barriers.  
• Improved work life balance  
• Increase in wellbeing, health and happiness linked to reduced stress, better sense of 

control, ability to integrate healthy eating, childcare responsibility, caring 
responsibilities and exercise into the day  

• Increased engagement as a result of the autonomy and trust at work  
 

5.8 One of the other gains typically witnessed through flexible working is around productivity. In 
many cases, productivity when working flexibly can be maintained, even enhanced, because 
commutes and office distractions are often gone.   

 
5.9  It is equally important to set out the potential negative impacts to flexible working.  Some of 

the downsides can include the following: 
 

• Communication difficulties 

• Longer working hours 

• Poor posture 

• Staff can be more difficult to oversee 

Page 63



• IT issues 

• Lone working issues 

• Different management skills required 

• Individual well-being 

• Manual handling 
 
5.10 Through effective and targeted training for managers and staff and appropriate investment in 

the tools and resources needed to work flexibly, many of these negatives can be addressed 
 
5.11 The appendices to this report contain a detailed exploration of some of the requirements of a 

flexible workforce as well as some of the key considerations. Some of the headlines from the 
appendices are set out over the coming paragraphs. 

 
5.12 Flexible Working Principles 
 
 The Council has in a place a set of ‘Agile Working Principles’ which set out guidance on 

working flexibly. These were introduced in 2019 as a means of encouraging the use of flexible 
working and providing the necessary guidance and support to staff and managers who wished 
to deliver their roles flexibly. These principles will need to be reviewed and adjusted as the 
numbers of staff working flexibly has increased exponentially. 

 
5.13 The New Normal? 
 
 The pandemic has created a new normal that has transformed the organisation and society 

alike. The use of flexible working approaches over recent months has demonstrated the 
opportunities that exist to create new services that meet specific needs, break down barriers 
across services, bring previously disparate resources together and quickly meet the changing 
needs of staff and residents. It has also become clear that a ‘one size fits all’ approach to 
flexible working should not be introduced.  Instead, a blended approach should be developed 
that ensures the needs of all staff and customers can be met. 

 
5.14 Foundations for a Successful Flexible Working Programme 
 
 Our staff will be key to the delivery of this major change programme and their buy in will be 

key to its success. What will be equally important will be the policies that support it, access to 
the right systems, tools and training and the communication strategy that will bring this new 
way of working to life. There will also be a need to develop management systems that get the 
best out of staff and managers, providing the necessary support and enabling the needs of 
the business to be met across a distributed workforce. 

 
5.15 A New Customer Interface - Public Interaction and Digital Capability 
 
 The restrictions on movement that have underpinned lockdown have demonstrated that many 

of our residents have the access and the skills to conduct many aspects of their daily lives 
online. The assessment of digital capability across Caerphilly explored in Appendix 4 identifies 
that 75% of the adult population in the Borough have all five of the basic digital skills required. 
While this provides an opportunity to increasingly engage our residents in new ways and 
across different hours of business, our services must continue to support those that do not 
have either the access or the digital skills at present.  

 
5.16 Health, Safety and Wellbeing Considerations 
 
 With a potential move to a more formal approach to flexible working there are multiple benefits 

that emerge in terms of Health and Wellbeing. Increases in productivity, being able to better 
balance the competing demands of increasingly busy work and home lives and the positive 
impact of feeling trusted to get the job done, have all been proven to enhance an individual’s 
wellbeing. Conversely, there are individuals whose wellbeing could be negatively impacted by 

Page 64



working remotely and the Council will need to work hard to strike the right balance, put in 
place the right support and ensure that the wellbeing needs of all of our staff are being met. 

 
5.17 Flexible Working Policy Considerations 
 
 The Council already has ‘Agile Working Principles’ in place to support flexible working 

approaches but their use has been sporadic to date. Similarly, the Council has a range of HR 
and IT policies designed to support work life balance and safe systems of work. Over the 
coming months, these policies will each need to be reviewed and potentially adjusted to 
support a broader application of flexible working. Any changes that result would be developed 
in consultation with staff and our Trade Union partners. 

 
 In the short term, and as a means of ensuring the ongoing wellbeing of our staff, those staff 

working away from the office will be asked to seek line manager approval in advance to work 
longer than their contracted hours. This interim adjustment will not restrict staff from being 
able to accrue time off in lieu, but it will help managers ensure that workloads are being 
appropriately balanced while staff are operating remotely. 

 
5.18 Environmental Impact 
 
 During the pandemic, there has been a significant reduction in the number of journeys 

undertaken by staff to and from work and travelling to and from meetings during the working 
day. This has resulted in a sizeable increase in the air quality, not just in Caerphilly, but 
across the world. An enhanced approach to flexible working would clearly provide these 
benefits over a sustained period as well as reducing the Council’s operating expenditure. 

 
5.19 IT and Equipment 
 
 As a result of the need to transition to flexible working arrangements in only a matter of days, 

many Council staff are working remotely at present using their own IT equipment, desk etc. As 
the Council moves to formalise its flexible working arrangements over the coming months 
Council staff must be provided with fit for purpose equipment, tools and systems that support 
them to do their job as efficiently and effectively as possible. It is likely that these packages 
will be linked to particular roles and separate reports will be brought forward over the coming 
months to provide a sustainable funding package. 

 
5.20 Investment and Property Requirements 
 

An initial exercise undertaken by Property Services has identified that currently there are circa 
2000 desks available within the authority for use by staff. If service provision was undertaken 
in a flexible manner, property portfolio rationalisation opportunities could emerge which could 
result in 8 buildings being surplus to requirements and savings being generated in terms of 
building occupancy and reduced running costs.   

 
5.21 Flexible Working Staff Survey June 2020 
 
 Nearly 1500 employees completed a flexible working staff survey during June 2020 giving 

some fantastic insights in to the benefits and challenges facing staff working remotely. There 
some very positive views shared on flexible working in overall terms as well as some 
concerns.  The overarching results are provided in Appendix 10. 

 
 The key aspects of the survey revealed that 50% of respondents would like to split their time 

between home and office working, 23% having a preference for working from home and 21% 
wanting to work from the office but have the option to work from home occasionally. These 
results clearly demonstrate that with the expansion of flexible working there is likely to be a 
surplus of office accommodation linking back to the outcome set out in 5.20. 

 
5.22 Conclusion 

Page 65



 
When considering the way the world has adapted and changed, particularly in the light of the 
current pandemic, it is wholly evident that a new way of working can and should be supported 
to ensure that the organisation remains as flexible as possible and is able to react to any 
future pandemics or similar events that would restrict service provision.  The organisation may 
well need to turn on and off services more frequently as we respond to the current pandemic. 

 
5.23 Flexible working has been proven to work in Caerphilly. Services provided by the Council 

have not “fallen over” or ceased, in fact, it has been possible to continue to deliver many of 
them as a direct result.  

 
5.24 The gains made over the last few months, albeit out of necessity, cannot now be lost.  Now is 

the time to embrace transformational change and shape an organisation that is able to meet 
the challenges of the 21st century head on. 

 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 There have been no assumptions made within this report.   
 
 
7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 Corporate Plan 2018-2023.   
 
7.1.1 The report links to the Council’s Corporate Plan 2018-2023, and contributes to the Well-being 

Objectives, as follows:  
 
7.1.2 Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all – Flexible working has and will continue 

to allow teachers to deliver lessons remotely. 
 

7.1.3 Objective 2 - Enabling employment – Flexible working promotes more autonomy over where 
and when staff work, thus affording flexibility for enabling balance between work, leisure, 
family and caring responsibilities.  This will open up more opportunities for people to apply for 
roles that may have previously been unsuitable due to the lack of flexibility around working 
hours and locations. 

 
7.1.4 Objective 3 - Address the supply, condition and sustainability of homes throughout the county 

borough and provide advice, assistance or support to help improve people’s health and well-
being – The ability to better balance the professional and personal aspects of our employees 
lives, combined with application of appropriate wellbeing and management support for these 
new ways of working should create an environment where employee health and well-being 
will flourish.  

 
7.1.5 Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that increases 

opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impacts on the environment - 
There are clear environmental benefits realised by flexible working in terms of office/asset 
rationalisation and lesser journeys attributed to commuting or work based travel.  This will 
assist in reducing the impact on the climate and improving air quality.  With less cars on the 
road it is already evident that more people are prepared to engage in active travel. 

 
7.1.6 Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with 

the sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 - Improving work life balance and reducing the need to commute utilising flexible 
working offers the opportunity for staff to partake in more social, sports and leisure activities 
and to utilise active travel options which will improve health and well-being. 
 

7.1.7 Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being – Flexible 

Page 66



working when linked into a digital transformation of service delivery will assist residents to 
access services at the time and location that suits them helping them to remain independent. 

  
7.2 There are further links to the TeamCaerphilly transformation strategy, firstly echoing the 

mantra - A new "whole-authority" operating model to ensure a resilient Caerphilly County 
Borough for the future. 

 
7.3 Further synergies include – “We will need to move away from traditional models of service 

delivery, embrace change, be prepared to innovate and take well managed risks. We will also 
need to modernise through harnessing emerging technologies and fully engaging with our 
workforce and communities”. 

7.4 The recognition of strong corporate will and clear strategy, with equal buy-in by the leadership 
team, is again reflected in the TeamCaerphilly transformation statement;  

“This ambitious programme of change articulates the combined vision of the Cabinet and the 
Corporate Leadership Team and has been developed over the last 12 months. In making this 
Strategy a reality, courageous political and officer leadership will be essential to ensure that 
we successfully deliver the outcomes that we are aiming to achieve.” 

 
7.5 Furthermore, the Cabinet commitments already defined, include: - 

• We will build on Caerphilly County Borough Council’s reputation as an innovative, high 
performing local authority. 

• We will ensure we have an engaged and motivated workforce. 
• We will always strive to ensure Caerphilly County Borough Council delivers value for 

money in everything it does. 

7.6 Similarly, the notion of harnessing the success of the recent transformation in view of 
flexible/digital working and customer interaction (equally with the corporate appetite for such) 
can be harmonised with the Customer and digital strategy; whereby the Cabinet Members 
foreword describes being brave / bold in approach to embracing technologies and innovation 
to deliver citizen centric services, including an flexible, iterative approach to our work.  

 
 
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 This report links directly to the Well–being goals within the Well-being of Future Generations 

Act (Wales) 2015:  
 

• A prosperous Wales 

• A resilient Wales 

• A healthier Wales 

• A more equal Wales 

• A Wales of cohesive communities 

• A globally responsible Wales 
 
8.2 It is consistent in all of the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development 

principle in the Act that it supports: 
 
8.2.1 Long-term – Flexible working promotes many long-term benefits for the organisation as a 

whole, with both employer and employee recognising substantial improvements as outlined 
within the report.  The introduction of flexible working will have a positive impact on future 
generations and primarily will offer safeguard in view of; improved business continuity, 
reduction in organisational and personal carbon footprint, improved work life balance and 
increase in wellbeing, health and happiness.  Equally, the Council’s customer-centric ethos 
will be enhanced and the needs and demands of Caerphilly’s citizens best met.   

Page 67



 
8.2.2 Integration – A flexible workforce will form an integral part of the Council’s overall 

transformation strategy and complements the suite of policies that serve to balance home and 
work life commitments.  There current crisis has provided opportunities for the many varied 
services of the authority to become truly “One Council”.  Each service area is clearly assisting 
others to ensure the highest priority objectives are delivered to the customer.  There is clear 
evidence that the flexible working approach has allowed true service integration across the 
council, with other service sectors and primarily with its residents and customers at the heart 
of its approach. 

 
8.2.3 Involvement – All staff need to be fully engaged in view of the flexible working transformation 

as not all roles and responsibilities are conducive to flexible working, and there will be a 
notable disparity between blue and white-collar workers and those that need to provide front 
line service delivery.  There needs to be an effective communication plan to ensure the 
strategy behind flexible working, along with the suitability of application, is transparent to all 
parties. This will require the involvement of staff (staff survey already conducted) and 
engagement with all relevant stakeholders. 
 

8.2.4 Collaboration – Flexible working not only brings the Council’s internal departments closer 
together to deliver the best working model  and to move to the “One Council” approach, it has 
also already promoted wider collaboration within the private / public sector due to the ease in 
which meetings and working arrangements have continued almost seamlessly with the 
utilisation of a digital approach. 
 

8.2.5 Prevention – Carefully prioritised and justified budget commitment for flexible working 
platforms will ensure confidence in both application and investment.  This will assist in 
ensuring service continuity, reducing the risk to service failure during any future crisis or 
emergency.   Embracing transformation to flexible working will ensure the Council is both 
resilient and flexible in terms of business continuity during adverse conditions and aligns with 
priorities to improve the way the council operates in order to protect the environment for future 
generations in many aspects but particularly from an impact on the climate. 

 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s Strategic Equality 

Plan and supplementary guidance. No potential for unlawful discrimination and/or low level or 
minor negative impact has been identified; therefore, a full EIA has not been carried out. The 
flexible working approach will allow more flexibility in where and how people undertake their 
roles which will assist in providing equality. 

 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Moving forward there will be far reaching financial implications from this report. The detailed 

financial implications will be firmed up in the medium to longer-term as specific requirements 
become clearer following further discussions with Heads of Service. Further reports will be 
prepared for Scrutiny and Cabinet which will include detailed costings and funding proposals, 
along with details of where revenue budget savings will arise from the new working models.  

 
10.2 It is also is vitally important that we are able to respond proactively in the short-term to 

commence the roll-out of new flexible ways of working. Cabinet is therefore asked to approve 
a proposal to set aside an initial one-off sum of £500k to be funded from Capital Earmarked 
Reserves.   

 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Page 68



11.1 There will be wide-ranging personnel implications from this report.  There will need to be 
consultations undertaken with the trade unions and staff in relation to policies and procedures. 

 
11.2 A staff survey has already been undertaken in relation to flexible working which identified 

overwhelming support for the initiative.  Details of the survey results are highlighted in 
Appendix 10. 

 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 A full list of consultees is included at the end of the report. Comments from all consultees are 

summarised below. 
 
12.2 The Consultations responses received from the Trade Unions have been included in full as a 

separate Response Pack attached to this report.  
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 Local Government Act 1972 and 2000 
 
 
Author: Marcus Lloyd, Head of Infrastructure 
 
Consultees: Cllr Philippa Marsden, Leader of the Council 
 Cabinet Members 
 Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive 
 Corporate Management Team 
 Leadership Team 

Cllr Jamie Pritchard, Chair of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
Cllr Gez Kirby, Vice Chair of Policy and resources Scrutiny Committee 
Cllr Colin Mann, Leader of the Plaid Group 
Cllr Graham Simmonds, Leader of the Independent Group 
Trade Unions 

 

Appendices: Appendix 1 – Caerphilly County Borough Council - Agile Working Principles 
Appendix 2 – The New Normal? 

        Appendix 3 – Some Foundations for a Successful Flexible Working Programme 
        Appendix 4 – A New Customer Interface - Public Interaction and Digital Capability 
        Appendix 5 - Health, Safety and Well-Being Considerations 
        Appendix 6 - Flexible Working Policy Considerations 
        Appendix 7 - Environmental Impact 
        Appendix 8 - IT and Equipment 
        Appendix 9 - Investment and Property Requirements 
        Appendix 10 – Flexible Working Staff Survey June 2020 
                              Appendix 11 – Trade Union Response Pack 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 69



Appendix 1 – Caerphilly County Borough Council - Agile Working Principles 

 
1  INTRODUCTION  
 
(i)  The concept of Agile Working  
 

Agile working is a transformational tool that enables organisations to work smarter by 
eliminating all barriers to working efficiently. It uses communications and information 
technology to enable people to work in ways which best suit their needs without the traditional 
limitations of where and when tasks must be performed.  

 
Agile working can support staff to:  

 

• Have more autonomy over where they work.  

• Have more autonomy over when they work.  
 
 Agile working is based on the complete flexibility of work to drive long-term organisational 

success. It can unlock value for both the employer and the employee.  
 
(ii)  The Benefits of Agile Working?  
 

Organisations that have introduced ‘agile working’ opportunities (such as the NHS), have 
confirmed improvements in the following areas:  

 
For the employer:  

 

• Increased motivation and engagement of staff  

• Increased productivity and Efficiency  

• Improved business continuity – less disruption due to weather, office security issues, 
travel problems etc.  

• Reduction in organisational and personal carbon footprint  

• Reduced parking  

• Improved staff performance  

• Ability to attract and retain high quality talent  

• Reduced absenteeism and related costs  

• Reduced staff turnover with associated costs and reduction in lost knowledge, skills and 
experience  

• Asset rationalisation  
 

For employees:  
 

• Reduced travel time and related cost.  

• Personal productivity linked to fewer distractions, improved focus, concentration, 
creativity, better use of skills and less frustration due to fewer barriers.  

• Improved work life balance  

Page 70



• Increase in wellbeing, health and happiness linked to reduced stress, better sense of 
control, ability to integrate healthy eating, childcare responsibility, caring responsibilities 
and exercise into the day  

• Increased engagement as a result of the autonomy and trust at work  
 

2.  AGILE WORKING IN THE CONTEXT OF CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH 
 COUNCIL (CCBC)  
 
 This section identifies why CCBC might consider starting an agile working programme.  
 
 (i)  Cabinet’s clear vision  
 
 Caerphilly’s Cabinet have set a clear vision for the Council with staff engagement at its 

core. The standards that underpin this vision that agile working could compliment, are 
highlighted in bold:  

 

• We will always do our best to protect jobs and services within the current 
challenging financial climate  

• We will build on Caerphilly County Borough Council’s reputation as an innovative, 
high performing local authority  

• We will ensure we have an engaged and motivated workforce  

• We will always strive to ensure Caerphilly County Borough Council delivers value 
for money in everything it does  

• We will help protect the most vulnerable people in our society and make 
safeguarding a key priority  

• We will always welcome feedback and consider the views of residents, staff and 
other key stakeholders  

• We will be open, honest and transparent in everything we do  
 

(ii)  The catalyst / drivers for agile working:  
 

 There are a number of catalysts that encourage further exploration of agile working 
and the benefits that it could bring to Caerphilly.  

 
  For CCBC the clear drivers are:  
 
  The Council’s need to keep up with the pace of change as a progressive 

 employer in the 21st Century.  
 

Our approach to working life is changing fast. Both men and women want to find a 
balance between work, leisure, family and caring responsibilities.  

 
 Studies commissioned by the Employment Human Rights Commission (EHRC) 

support that people (regardless of gender) want a wider range of flexible job 
opportunities in all types of jobs. They want policies that reflect the social and 
economic benefits of integrating work life balance and care.  

 
 Agile working methodologies that afford staff more autonomy over where and when 

they work can support this position.  

 

Page 71



  CCBC’s Business Continuity Plan Review (Inclement Weather)  
 

The Guardian Newspaper reported in 2018 that gridlocked motorways, multiple rail 
cancellations, a string of crashes on motorways, empty restaurants and idle diggers 
seen across Britain at that time could cost the economy at least £1bn a day.  

 
 In March 2018 the Council felt it was important to acknowledge the fantastic work 

undertaken by employees during the 4 days of difficult conditions. Without whom all 
our roads would not have been cleared, care could not have been provided to the 
most vulnerable in our society and emergency conditions could not have been dealt 
with to name just a few.  

 
 Conversely however, the inclement weather forced many staff to stay close to home 

and hundreds of Caerphilly staff did not attend work for this reason. The enforced 
office closures for health & safety reasons exacerbated this position.  

 
 In this context, many staff might have been equipped to work from home or nearer to 

home during the office closure period through the effective implementation of a refined 
business continuity plan that caters for such events, i.e. a plan that takes advantage of 
the technology and/or the office space at its disposal.  

 
 A truly agile workforce is a mobile one and there is great strength in a mobile 

workforce to meet the needs of the Council and its residents during periods of 
inclement weather. This was proven in the context of the hundreds of staff who did 
turn up to work and who did step out of role with transferrable skills to assist 
colleagues/residents to go about their business safely.  

 
 If a post suits agile working in terms of Location, the relevant service area can build 

this into its business continuity plan and extend the opportunity to staff to continue 
working safely during periods of inclement weather.  

 
  Savings targets / MTFP  
 
 Some of the most successful companies have led the way on re-assessing how their 

workplaces operate and have introduced flexible and agile options for their employees. 
They did this to improve their business but it has also got them in good shape for 
tougher times and fit to take on new opportunities in the future.  

 
 The Council’s vision for the future is ambitious against the MTFP target savings of 

£39m over the next four years. In meeting the MTFP targets, there is always the 
potential for asset rationalisation to be an outcome. The impact of any such asset 
realisation on office space is unknown at this time and cannot be predicted. It would 
however serve the Council well to know the extent to which agile working could extend 
across Services if necessary in the future.  

 
  The Gender Pay Gap  
 
 Flexible working and agile working methodologies are intrinsic in supporting the 

reduction of the gender pay gap. 
 
 The government has supported a series of incremental changes in statutory 

entitlements to increase men’s take up of family leave and make it better paid and 
more flexible, for example greater flexibility in how paternity and parental leave can be 
taken including shared parental leave. Organisations are being encouraged to raise 
awareness of entitlements and to open up flexible working/agile working opportunities 
particularly for men.    

Page 72



 
3  AGILE WORKING IN THE CONTEXT OF THE ONGOING WORKFORCE PLANNING 
 EXERCISE  
 
 The Council must ensure that it continues to have a workforce that is sustainable over the 

long term and is equipped with the necessary skills to meet the needs of our citizens as well 
as the changing demands for our services.  

 
 In July 2018, the Interim Chief Executive wrote to all staff inviting expressions of interest for 

reduction in our hours of work, flexible retirement or wish to leave the Council’s employment 
under the premise of Voluntary early retirement and/or Severance.  

 
 In the Autumn Term of 2018, all who have submitted a form will receive feedback on their 

expressions of interest. All expressions of interest will be carefully considered and those that 
can reasonably be supported will progress to the next stage.  

 
 The results of this workforce planning exercise will have an impact on the Council’s staffing 

structure. The extent of that impact is yet to be determined but will inevitably steer service 
managers to plan accordingly in support of staff who will continue to provide their service to 
the Council following it.  

 
4.  HOW FLEXIBLE ARE SERVICES  
 
 (i)  Is it reasonable to think that staff can be given more autonomy over where and 
  when they work?  
 
 Yes it is but one size methodology will not fit all. Major economic and technology-

driven shifts have caused significant social change. New technologies, data analytics 
and social networks have all had an impact on the way that people communicate, 
collaborate and work. The rapid acceleration of technology has changed what is 
possible in the workplace.  

 
 The way in which we think about office space, how and when we work has started to 

change. With the ownership of smartphones ever increasing, the internet, cloud 
communications and smart devices, it has never been easier to plug in and work from 
anywhere.  

 
 (ii)  Which jobs suit agile working?  
 
 Most jobs will have some scope for agility in the context of where staff work and/or 

when staff work.  
 
 The Council’s services however are diverse and include cleaning, catering, refuse and 

recycling, housing, social services/care services, leisure, youth, libraries, education 
services including adult education, technical services, planning and highways. 5  

 
 Before any service manager can advise on which posts suit agile working, a table top 

exercise should be undertaken to consider how much flexibility is available in each and 
every role in their Service Area. 

 
(iii)  What Heads of Service might consider in the table top exercise?  

 
  Heads of Service should consider if posts are:  
 

• Location Dependent or Location Independent  

• Time Dependent or Time Independent, i.e.  
 
 

Page 73



By mapping every job in their service area to identify how much flexibility can realistically be 
achieved for each role. For example: 
 

Post  Location 
Dependent  

Location 
Independent  

Time  
Dependent  

Time 
Independent  

Comment – 
Be clear on 
how much 
flexibility the 
post affords  

Post 1   X   X Offers full 
choice over 
where to 
work. 
Significant 
flexibility over 
when to work. 

Post 2  X   X  No choice of 
where to 
work. 
Working 
hours are set. 
Flexible 
working 
applications 
welcome.  

Post 3  X    X No choice 
over where to 
work but 
infrastructure 
supports 
significant 
time 
independence 

 
 

(iv)  Explanation of terms:  
 
  Location Dependent   Receptionist, home carer, refuse collector, highway  

    maintenance operative, youth worker and/or any other such post 
    that requires the member of staff to work from, or, at a specified 
    venue to carry out specific works.  

 
 These will mostly be front line facing posts that provide a service directly to/for the 

public from a fixed location and no other location will do. Location Dependent Posts do 
not support staff to have autonomy over where they actually work.  

 
  Location Independent A post is location independent if it does not fall within the  

    descriptor for location dependent.  
 
 These are posts that suit hot desking; drop in and work locations; Mobile working 

where technology supports staff to work remotely; Home working (substantial or ad-
hoc); mixed seating (where different roles are located together to gain efficiencies); 
multi-site (fixed or flexible).  

 
 As technology improves, the traditional limitations of having to report to a specific 

office or place of work to carry out the duties of location independent posts could 
become a thing of the past.  

 

Page 74



  Time Dependent  A post is time dependent if staff working hours are set and  
    immoveable. In such posts staff must be contactable and able to 
    commit to their post at a specified time and no other time will do.  

 
 Time Dependent Posts do not support staff to have complete autonomy over when 

they actually work.  
 
 Most posts however will afford some time autonomy. In Time Dependent Posts this is 

likely to take the form of part time hours or compressed hours, term time only working, 
i.e. agreed working patterns around which there is clarity and others are working 
alongside each other to meet the full needs of the service in terms of total time 
required to be covered.  

 
  Time Independent  A post is time independent if it supports staff to have complete 
     autonomy or part autonomy over when they work.  
 
 Most jobs lend themselves to part autonomy, which means that staff could to a greater 

or lesser extent determine their own working pattern throughout the week and/or hours 
throughout the day but that at certain times they would need to be available to attend 
scheduled meetings, training etc.  

 
 (v)  What might Heads of Service do with the results of the table top exercise?  
 
 The results of the table top exercise will give a good indication of how much flexibility 

is available in each role and lead to the development of an agile working model that 
suits that Service Area. One size will not fit all.  

 
 The Head of Service might also give consideration to the results of this desk top 

exercise in relevance to reviewing business continuity in the event of enforced 
Council/office closure in the case of Inclement weather, etc.  

 
5.  POLICIES THAT UNDERPIN FLEXIBLE WORKING  
 
 The Council already offers numerous benefits aimed at making it easier for employees to 

balance home and work life commitments including flexible working, home working, career 
breaks, adoption leave, carers’ leave, salary sacrifice childcare voucher scheme, job share, 
leave of absence, parental, shared parental and paternity leave, part-time working, shift/day 
swapping and term-time working opportunities.  

 
 Agile working in terms of offering more flexibility over when and where staff work, could 

complement this suite of policies.  
 
 The flexible working policy and the home working policy specifically lend themselves to agile 

working in the context explained. A review of these policies in the context of promoting agile 
working / mobile working could be prioritised.  

 
 Other policies/procedures requiring review within the context of agile working will include 

‘expenses’; ‘Insurance’; ‘Data Privacy and Guidelines’;  
 
6.  MANAGER RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
 (i)  Keep an open mind /a willingness to embrace change – Managing employees in a 

 flexible / agile working environment can be a challenge and this in itself can encourage 
 the continuation of traditional working patterns and rituals.  

 
 In an agile working environment where posts are largely Location Independent, 

employees will need to understand:  

Page 75



  The specific parameters of the agile working arrangement in respect of location and 
  time as appropriate.  
 

• What they are expected to do (will involve prioritising, planning ahead and clear 
objective setting)  

• The methodology for agreeing and monitoring workload  

• How success will be measured  

• How this feeds into the performance development cycle  

• What communication is required from them  

• How the line manager will communicate with them  
 
 Managers will need support too. Agile working will lead to a change in corporate 

culture that includes the dissipation of control frameworks in favour of ‘TRUST’  
 

(ii)  Develop a business plan – following the table top exercise, Service Managers might 
develop a business case – clarifying the business benefits and gains for their service 
area in relevance to the drivers/catalysts referred to in point 2 above. Within the 
business plan:  

 
Clarify the agile working model that will suit the area of service - This would be largely led by 
the results of the table top exercise and reference to point 4 above.  

 
 Identify the barriers and enablers that would support the introduction of agile working 

opportunities in the Service Area, for example:  
 

• Changes to working practices and IT support required.  

• Culture, performance management and training requirements  

• Policies required to support the new ways of working (note point 4 above)  

• Costs and benefits  

• Impact Assessment  

• Communication plans  

• Implementation timetable  
  

Page 76



Appendix 2 – The New Normal? 
 
Directors have all reviewed their services and have considered what a “New World Norm” could look 
like for the future.  The key outcome is a supportive approach to introduce flexible working as a 
normal part of service delivery going forward. Flexible working in many sectors is already seen as the 
norm and although Caerphilly could be seen as slightly behind the curve this is a great opportunity for 
the authority to embrace a truly positive transformational change.  
 
As a result of the pandemic response there has been much cross-fertilisation of teams across the 
Council which has demonstrated the benefits of skill sharing, synergies in projects and creating more 
diverse and responsive teams.  This style of working promotes opportunities to create more flexible 
service delivery to support customer needs and to help manage a more flexible and diverse 
workforce which could lead to greater retention, engagement and opportunities for staff. 
 
The co-location of services and delivery, at times and locations when residents are most likely to 
engage, could change our relationship with residents so that we are seen less as an institution and 
more as a supportive Council here to help and assist our communities. 
 
Increasing our use of digital tools to help support our staff and customers will help limit demand on a 
return to the previous "normal".  There is clear recognition amongst staff that the pandemic has 
proven the ability for technology to expand service capacity and that skills / tools now being employed 
should form the blueprint for future settings. 
 
It is important to recognise that sometimes face to face is the only method for some residents and 
such reassurance services (particularly for vulnerable/older people) should continue, particularly in 
areas such as social services.  There may always be requirements to send letters and paper forms, 
appreciating that there are those citizens that will not or cannot engage digitally.  However, to further 
promote / enable the digital front door to Caerphilly’s services, there is a recognised benefit to having 
Digital Champions and greater Wi-Fi / Mi-Fi provision in the community to support service needs. 
 
There is wider research that promotes the use of voice activated services to help those who wouldn’t 
engage with digital interface as it can be perceived as too hard.  This is an area that many 
organisations have already successfully introduced and will need further research and possible trials. 
 
Business continuity is key going forward. The Council has proven that it can and has delivered the 
vast majority of services remotely.  Although this has been through necessity it is evident that it can 
be achieved and that it works. It is essential that the momentum gained in the past few months must 
not be lost as services need to be responsive to further peaks in infection rates or even new 
pandemics that could occur in the future.  There is a need to maintain the ability to flex services or 
even turn on and off as the situation necessitates.  
 
Greater digital presence is called on to allow a more integrated and autonomous customer service 
offer, adopting new or building on existing initiatives.  There are many opportunities if suitably 
navigated in tandem with greater transparency of service provisions, to deliver improved customer 
relationships and lessen the burden of time-consuming complaints and service requests. 
 
In the medium to longer term there may be the opportunity to reduce office accommodation 
requirements.  This could produce ongoing revenue savings and possible one-off capital receipts that 
could be re-invested in service provision. 
 
To move to a more flexible and digitally focussed service provision there is a requirement for a 
significant financial investment which will need to be fully identified and funded. This could be 
considered on an invest to save basis. However, the savings are much wider than purely direct 
financial impacts. There are savings in regard fuel usage, carbon emissions, building requirements, 
etc that will impact positively on the residents of the borough. 
 
 
  

Page 77



Appendix 3 – Some Foundations for a Successful Flexible Working Programme 
 
Staff buy-in will be key to the success of any change in approach to service delivery. Staff will need to 
be provided with the equipment to allow them to work more flexible.  They will need to be trained 
appropriately and be clear on how they can best work in this manner.  Appropriate mechanisms for 
ensuring staff welfare will need to be introduced to ensure any required support is available and 
easily accessible 
 
Staff will need to understand that this new way of working will provide much more flexibility in how 
they undertake their roles.  There will be a clear need for outcome-based measures to be put in place 
along with many other support mechanisms such as HR, Manager and peer support, etc 
 
A culture change will be needed at all levels of the Council, from staff to Managers to Elected 
Members.  The days of doing what we have always done have gone.  A clear, effective 
communications and engagement strategy will be key.  This will also need to emanate out to the 
public interface. The customers will also need to understand the necessity for change. 
 
Not everyone will be equipped to work flexible.  There will be instances where the new working 
environment is not suitable for staff to undertake their roles.  This could be down to security and 
privacy from both a personal and work perspective.  Although the service may suit flexible working 
Managers will need to review each role and circumstance individually to ensure that it can be 
undertaken safely and appropriately. 
 
Social distancing requirements are likely to be in place for the longer term or at least until a proven 
vaccine is available and this could be a number of years away.  In order to facilitate social distancing, 
all staff working across buildings over a traditional 9 to 5 pattern is no longer an option.  New ways of 
working must be found and implemented.   
 
  

Page 78



Appendix 4 – A New Customer Interface - Public Interaction and Digital Capability 
 
Public interaction with services has been changing over the years with a reduction in face to face 
contact and an increase in telephony and online contact. This is likely to increase over the short term 
as residents become increasingly used to undertaking many everyday activities over the internet. The 
pandemic has proven that a significant proportion of the population is now digitally enabled.   
 
An assessment of the “Digital Capability Within Caerphilly Population” highlights the extent to which 
our residents are able to access digital services for many aspects of their lives. The move to support 
a more digitally enabled and aware customer fits neatly with the proposal to have a more flexible 
approach to service delivery. 
 
While the assessment highlights that 15% of adults in the wider Gwent region are not currently on-
line, it also highlights that 75% of the Caerphilly adult population have all 5 basic digital skills. 
 
Housing rent payments to the Council have seen a 20% reduction in the use of cash/cheque and now 
only 12% of rents are being paid in this way.  Conversely the Council has seen an increase of 8% in 
internet payments and 10% in telephone payments.  
 
Across our Customer First offices there has been a marked downturn in footfall for a variety of 
payments at these locations.  There has also been a significant increase in the use of the automated 
payment option – IVR (Integrated Voice Response).   
 
On average footfall has reduced by 19% between 2018/19 and 2019/20 and has resulted in an 
average reduction of 33% in the value of payments collected in person.   
 
Since March 2020 Customer services offices have been closed and all customer interactions have 
been via telephone or digital services.  There is a growing confidence and acceptance of on-line, real 
times services.   
 
For those that are not digitally enabled there are a variety of training options already in place and a 
variety of further initiatives are being considered to assist in moving them to a more appropriate 
payment channel.  
 
The authority has already obtained support to make Caerphilly and Blackwood town centres wi-fi 
enabled with funding from Brexit.  This is ready to be rolled out in the coming weeks/months.  There 
is no reason that this cannot be widened for other towns and villages to provide greater access 
opportunities for residents.  This could be coupled with community hub type locations where residents 
could attend to undertake online payments if they have limited wi-fi access at home and also obtain 
assistance in the early days on how to undertake this payment option at these facilities.  This could 
be centred around helping people to help themselves in the longer term.  
 
  
  

Page 79



Appendix 5 - Health, Safety and Well-Being Considerations 
 
Living and working through an unprecedented event such as the Coronavirus pandemic can be a 
worrying time for everyone.  It’s all too easy in uncertain times to neglect your health, especially when 
it’s necessary to reduce your social contact and time spent outdoors. 
 
Caerphilly County Borough Council employees all have access to the Care first Service.  Care first 
provides confidential, impartial advice and support 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.  Employees 
don’t need to ask permission from their manager before contacting Care first. 
 
When working from home there are clear guidelines that need to be considered and implemented to 
ensure staff feel confident and capable that they are able to manage the separation between work 
and homelife.  A good work life balance is essential to personal well-being. 
 
Caerphilly has implemented many support mechanisms for staff which are available via the HR 
intranet pages.  Weekly updates have been communicated to staff via e-mail entitled 
Wellbeing@work.  Line managers have ensured that those frontline staff not on e-mail are fully aware 
of the support mechanisms available. This support, advice and guidance for staff is invaluable and 
would be an area that would need to receive a key focus moving forward. 
 
It has become apparent during the pandemic that although there has been coronavirus, social 
distancing, childcare and shielding absences the authority general sickness absence levels have 
reduced significantly to just over 3%.  This is reflective of other sectors who have introduced flexible 
working principles.  By providing the flexibility to staff to work their hours to suit their personal 
circumstances sickness absence reduces. 
 
The authority already has flexible working principles (home working and lone working policies) and 
solutions that can be adapted to suit this new way of flexible working to ensure that staff health, 
safety and well-being is not compromised in any way. In-fact with more flexible working, risks of 
accidents, pressure, stress, etc are significantly reduced as staff will need to travel less and will not 
feel pressured to be present at an office for a set number of hours every day. 
 
Beyond the obvious business benefit of reduced office costs and environmental benefits, research 
also tells us that flexible working improves morale and reduces stress levels, increases staff retention 
and importantly widens and unlocks a bigger talent pool, wherein a business can recruit and retain a 
greater range of talent. 
 
  

Page 80



Appendix 6 - Flexible Working Policy Considerations 
 
There are a number of key policies such as but not limited to - use of IT equipment, IT security and 
flexible working principles that will need to be updated and amended to facilitate a flexible workforce. 
These will be reviewed and will be subject to the necessary consultation process.  
 
There are already flexible working and home working principles in place since 2015 and 2012 
respectively which will require updating accordingly alongside other well-being policies. 
 
Given the significant flexibility that results from flexible working, the Councils existing “Flexi Scheme” 
will need to be considered to ensure there is a seamless fit in approach.  As such, it is proposed to 
review the scheme to be more in line with the proposed flexible working approaches which in 
themselves provide employees with additional time management opportunities that can help balance 
work and personal commitments. 
 
To support the organisation with this transformation, it will be necessary to review the current flexible 
working scheme to ensure that it provides maximum opportunities to work in a more flexible way to 
support service delivery, which will benefit the Council and employees.  
 
Caerphilly is currently behind the curve in its approach to flexible working and this is a great 
opportunity to become a leading light in how services can be delivered in the future.  
 
  

Page 81



Appendix 7 - Environmental Impact 
 
Cardiff, London, Manchester, Birmingham and other cities across the UK have seen a huge decline in 
toxic nitrogen dioxide (NO2) levels, according to a study by the National Centre for Atmospheric 
Science (NCAS).  Nitrogen dioxide is a harmful gas released when fossil fuels are burnt, usually by 
power plants and motor vehicles.  Many of the activities that generate nitrogen dioxide are also 
responsible for the world’s carbon emissions and the current climate crisis. 

 
Comparing recent pollution levels to the average from the same period in the previous five years, 
NCAS states: “The air is definitely much healthier”. This is clearly evident from the chart below. 
 

 

Road traffic accounts for about 80% of nitrogen dioxide emissions in the UK, according to Paul 
Monks, Professor of Air Pollution at the University of Leicester, and former chair of the UK 
government’s science advisory committee on air quality. The average diesel car emits 52mg of 
polluting gas for every kilometre it travels, so it’s no surprise that the lockdown-induced reduction in 
traffic is leading to a substantial improvement in air quality. 
 
Caerphilly is one of only two councils in Wales (the other being Cardiff) that have been identified as 
having a significant air quality problem due to exceedances of permitted nitrogen dioxide levels on 
the A473 at Hafodrynys Hill.  
 

Page 82

https://ncas.ac.uk/en/18-news/3057-air-pollution-falling-across-uk-cities-latest-data-shows
https://ncas.ac.uk/en/18-news/3057-air-pollution-falling-across-uk-cities-latest-data-shows


Specifically considering the air quality changes for Hafodrynys between January to May 2019 to the 
same period this year it is evident that the reduced vehicle usage during lockdown has had a 
significant impact as illustrated below.  
 

 
 
Caerphilly has declared a climate emergency via a Notice of Motion by the Deputy Leader Cllr Sean 
Morgan. Cllr Morgan stated “The world is on the cusp of a climate catastrophe and the negative 
trends we are already seeing can only be halted by transformative change in every aspect of how 
humans interact with nature.  As a council we are continuously seeking ways to improve the way we 
do things to protect the environment for future generations.  We must also look to take advantage of 
the positive economic and wellbeing impacts that transformative change can bring, and I am pleased 
that the motion was supported as this is a hugely important cause that requires our action.”  
 
The motion sets out a clear commitment to reduce carbon by developing an energy plan and calling 
on the UK and Welsh Government to provide the necessary resources and support to enable 
effective carbon reduction, also to work with the Public Service Board and Cardiff Capital Region City 
Deal partners to develop opportunities to develop carbon savings. 
 
Moving to a more flexible platform for service delivery the authority makes a clear statement to 
supportive transformative change.  The authority is the county borough’s largest employer and has 
thousands of employees who make journeys to offices, to sit at desks to undertake their job. It has 
been proven that the vast majority of these roles can become a lot more flexible and can be 
effectively delivered from home or other settings drastically cutting vehicle journeys.  Enhancing the 
level of flexible working across the Council would have a significant and positive impact on the 
climate. 
 
It is estimated that the during 2018 the Council’s fleet of vehicles (including grey fleet):  
 

• drove 8.5 million miles,  

• produced 5,538 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e),  

Page 83



• consumed 22,298 megawatt hours of energy,  

• emitted up to 18.4 tonnes of nitrogen oxides (NOX),  

• and up to 245 kg of particulates (PM).  
 
The directly operated fleets (including Plant and “Unknowns”) burnt at least 1.77 million litres of fuel 
at an estimated cost of £1.79 million (based on 2018 average price, ex VAT) and produced 4,745 
tonnes of CO2e. Even a small percentage change of say 5% in vehicle mileage will make a 
significant difference to emissions and expenditure.  
 
If Caerphilly is serious about supporting transformational change that will benefit the climate and 
environment where we live, work and play then flexible working must have its place.  Flexible working 
can be deployed to make better use of people and space assets, which can greatly improve 
sustainability while reducing cost and a company’s carbon footprint.  If you allow for homeworking as 
part of the move to flexible working, then this potentially supports a significant reduction in car 
journeys.  What’s more, designing a new, flexible-ready office offers the opportunity to “go green”. 
 
  
  

Page 84



Appendix 8 - IT and Equipment 
 
Prior to March 2020, the Authority operated in a fairly traditional manner with administrative staff 
mainly working from office accommodation using static IT infrastructure and fixed location equipment.  
Flexible working across the Authority was ad hoc and to an extent limited.    
 
In March 2020 the Authority transformed overnight moving to become a fully flexible workforce.  The 
move from office based working to home working was completed almost overnight.   
 
Due to the relatively low levels of investment in flexible IT equipment such as laptops, surfaces and i-
pads to date, the Authority has encouraged some staff to use their own devices to access Corporate 
systems via secure virtual private network during the pandemic.  This has allowed the Council to 
maintain the delivery of vital community services.   
 
As flexible working becomes the “new norm” the Authority will need to ensure that it equips its flexible 
workforce with the appropriate IT tools and equipment to ensure they can undertake their roles as 
productively and safely as possible.    

 
In recent months, as part of the Customer and Digital Strategy implementation, Cabinet have already 
taken the decision to deploy modern software in the form of Microsoft Office 365, Abavus and 
Thoughtonomy.  These tools have been fundamental to the Council’s recent success in dealing with 
Covid 19 and maintaining key public services.  To maximize the use of these tools and flexible 
working the Authority will now need to invest in appropriate IT equipment and infrastructure.  

 
Digital Services are currently undergoing a strategic service review with the support of an external 
party.  The future direction of travel in terms of IT infrastructure and operating model will be subject to 
an additional Cabinet report during the autumn 2020.   

 
As a result of recent work it is estimated that the Authority will need to develop a full device strategy 
and future operating model which will require a significant investment in flexible working equipment. 

 
It is not possible to fully estimate the cost of this migration at this point but the development of a 
sustainable investment plan for this equipment will be required going forward if the Council is to 
ensure its staff can maintain these flexible approaches.  
 
In addition to the procurement of appropriate IT equipment the authority will need to consider options 
for additional support for equipment such as desks and chairs to ensure a safe working environment 
for all flexible workers who could potentially be using their home as their office base in the future. 
 
  
  

Page 85



Appendix 9 - Investment and Property Requirements 
 
The goals of organisations in adopting flexible working are to create a more responsive, efficient and 
effective organisation, which improves business performance and increases customer satisfaction.   
 
By empowering employees to work how, where and when they choose, there is evidence that 
productivity is increased and service improvement can be provided by employees working in a way 
that suits them best. This in turn provides savings for the organisation.  These savings should be 
seen as the investment needed to stimulate the transformational change. 
 
In an American based study, Global Workplace Analytics reports that the average business would 
save $11,000 per person per year if staff with remote-compatible jobs worked from home just half the 
time.   
 
A flexible Working Business Case was reported to Carmarthenshire County Council CMT in May 
2017, which concluded potential significant 5-year cumulative savings of £5.3m after an initial capital 
investment of £2.1 million.  This could be achieved from the implementation of flexible working, there 
would also be significant implications for the Council’s office accommodation portfolio in terms of 
potential release of buildings.  
 
Pembrokeshire County Council also moved to a flexible working approach in 2018 and identified that 
revenue savings in the order of £925k per annum could be achieved.  Further, Monmouthshire 
County Council have also moved to a flexible working model and their Headquarter building provides 
only 88 desks for 200 staff that can use the facility coupled with their flexible working option. 
 
This invest to save approach could be developed for a Caerphilly business case. The savings would 
not happen overnight. However, in the longer term the property portfolio could be rationalised and 
reconfigured to suit flexible working. The office layouts would need to change and be more aligned 
with flexible working principles. There would be limited desks and more docking type workstations to 
provide flexibility on when and where you could work. 
 
The current pandemic may limit the reduction on office space in the short term due to social 
distancing measures.  Longer term there would be significant savings if the accommodation 
requirements were halved as a result of flexible working.  There would be reduced annual running 
costs for the wider property portfolio and possible one-off capital receipts from the sale of assets that 
would no longer be required. 
 
An initial exercise undertaking by the Property Services has identified that currently there are circa 
2000 desks available within the authority for use by staff. If service provision was undertaken in a 
flexible manner, there could be a property portfolio rationalisation which could result in 8 buildings 
being surplus to requirements.   
 
Service provision would be delivered from 3 core locations, Ty Penallta, Tredomen and Tir y berth.  
This rationalisation would limit desk availability to approx. 1300 desks, a reduction of about one third.  
However, with social distancing requirements the availability of desk space will be significantly less 
than 1300. 
 
If the move to a flexible working platform is supported there will need to be a detailed property 
portfolio report presented detailing the options available along with the relevant cost implications.  
 
  
  

Page 86

http://globalworkplaceanalytics.com/telecommuting-statistics


Appendix 10 – Flexible Working Staff Survey June 2020 
 
The flexible working staff survey undertaken in June 2020 had 1483 respondents. Some of the main 
highlights from the survey include the following: 
 

• 83% worked in a flexible way during the coronavirus restrictions. 

• 95% worked away from the office full-time during this period. 

• 66% of respondents normally work from either Ty Penallta or Ty Tredomen. 

• 78% stated that they would like to work in a more flexible way in the future. 

• Only 8% stated that they did not want to work in a more flexible way in the future. 

• 98% stated that flexible working provided a better work-life balance for them. 

• 84% stated that flexible working demonstrated trust in staff from the organisation. 

• 84% stated that flexible working would allow them to achieve greater productivity. 

• 93% stated that flexible working would support better mental health and well-being. 

• 80% considered flexible working would provide a positive impact on the environment. 
 
However: 
 

• 74% stated that they thought that would have less effective teamworking. 

• 93% stated that it could be open to abuse. 

• 77% had concerns that the authority could see less productivity. 

• 78% stated that flexible working may have a negative impact on mental health. 

• 67% thought that lack of equipment may be an obstacle to flexible working. 
 

Overall: 
 

• 50% stated that they like to split their time between home and office working. 

• 23% had a preference for working from home 

• 21% wanted to work from the office but have the option to work from home occasionally. 

• Only 2% wanted to be office based. 
 
The analysis above provides a good indication that the staff preference is that the authority should 
work in a more flexible way. 73% preferred to work from home or have a balance between home and 
office working and only 2% preferred an office-based approach. 
 
There is support and concern in equal measure in relation to mental health and well-being. 93% have 
stated that flexible working would be better for mental health but 78% were also concerned over the 
effect that it would also have on mental health. 
 
Some of the other main outcomes indicate the positive impact that flexible working could have on 
productivity, 84% stating it would improve, along with the trust that this approach demonstrated in 
staff, 84% supporting this statement.  Again, this is balanced off with 93% indicating that this 
approach could be open to abuse and 77% stating that they would have concerns over productivity. 
 
The outcome is clear that 78% want to work in a more flexible way in the future and only 8% were 
against this approach. A fuller analysis of the survey and comments is included in appendix 2. 

Page 87



Appendix 11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Unite Feedback  

Flexible Working Report 

 
Flexible working and the benefits to the workforce is something Unite has 

argued for many years.  We very much welcome the CCBC approach to a move 

towards flexible working.  The crisis has highlighted that it can be done but 

changes on this level need to be carefully considered with EIAs and regular 

reviews with the trade unions.  We welcome this report but like our sister unions 

ask that this is done with the primary focus of staff well-being and not just with 

cost saving being the driving force.  If done properly CCBC can be seen as an 

attractive employer for those with caring responsibilities and those wanting a 

better work life balance.  

 

Individual preferences are important in making this a success and consideration 

to what support can be given for those who don’t have internet etc set up at 

home.  It shouldn’t be for managers to impose new ways of working but allow 

people to have choice.  

 

Ensuring positive use of services like access to work and real consideration of 

implementing to social model of disability will be just as important when moving 

towards a more flexible way of working and should always be considered.  The 

working environment wherever that may be is still governed by the same 

principles of being in an office environment. 

 

 

 

 

Page 88



We can never underestimate the benefits of socialising and personal interaction 

with colleagues and this approach should allow for this. 

 

There are serious benefits of flexible working.  However, the negative 

implications should always be given serious consideration on an individual basis.  

This crisis has highlighted a serious spike in domestic violence cases and 

homophobic incidents in the home.  There is also the serious impact on mental 

health, isolation and the inability for some people to know when to switch off. 

For some workers the workplace is their escape and safe haven.  The safe 

guarding of employees and personal Implications of this system of working can’t 

be overlooked.  

 

To conclude we look forward to working with the council and cabinet to allow 

workers more freedom and control over their work life balance. Careful 

monitoring and formal training of middle management will be critical to making 

it work for all.  

 

Page 89



 

 

Appendix 11 

GMB FEEDBACK ON AGILE WORKING REPORT. 

 

The GMB supports the principal of agile working, we believe it could be beneficial to, both staff, and 

the employer alike. The agile working report which has been created by Caerphilly CBC, for 

consideration by cabinet provides a great deal of information, however we believe the document 

could be more concise for Elected members to allow them to make  a decision on the future working 

arrangements, for employees of the Council. 

The GMB believe that the wellbeing and mental health of its members and all other employees should 

be at the forefront of Elected Members and CMT minds when making their decision on agile working. 

The report covers the positives and not so positives with moving to these new working arrangements, 

in order to support those staff who could be working from home, we should ensure that there will be 

regular contact from Managers, through both, team meetings using the virtual technology available, 

and face to face office meetings, where Managers can offer support and staff can interact with their 

colleagues, thus reducing the feeling of isolation. 

The GMB believe that the Council could realise some significant savings that can be made through 

staff not attending the offices on a daily basis, lighting and heating would have a reduced usage. 

Mileage expenses would significantly reduce.  

Several policies will need to be reviewed, including the mileage policy, we would ask that HR consider 

if there would be any HMRC implications for staff, and to advise the Trade Unions accordingly. 

GMB would also propose a 6 month or annual review of agile working policy as there may be areas 

which this is not working, and a review would be able to pick up any issues that are being raised.  

Page 90



Appendix 11 

 
Flexible Working Cabinet Report  30 September 2020 – Consultation 
Feedback from Caerphilly Unison 
 

Foreword 
 
As the largest trade union in Caerphilly County Borough Council (CCBC) we are fully committed to 
working with the leadership team on this proposal and believe that significant gains can be made for 
the organisation and its staff as a result.  However, we also have a responsibility to our membership 
to put forward their concerns and to highlight those issues that we believe may pose a challenge for 
the organisation and will require partnership discussion and debate. 
 
It is our intention throughout this time to be a critical friend to CCBC and hope that our comments are 
taken in the constructive manner in which they are offered to achieve the best possible outcomes for 
all. 
 
Accordingly, given the significance of this report for the workforce and the organisation, we have 
taken the time to consider each paragraph of the report in detail and offer our comments below.  Our 
comments are shown directly under each paragraph and coloured purple. 
 
Lianne Dallimore 
Branch Secretary Caerphilly Unison  
 

Juan-Antonio Garcia 
Branch Chair Caerphilly Unison 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

CABINET 22ND JULY 2020 
 
 

SUBJECT:  FLEXIBLE WORKING 
 
REPORT BY: RECOVERY GROUP 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To seek Cabinet endorsement of a more formal approach to flexible working that builds upon 

the progress made in respect of working in a flexible manner throughout the lockdown.   
 
The move to flexible working is a significant change in working practice.  We fully support, as 
per the Caerphilly Constitution, that this is a Cabinet decision to endorse such as change.  
However, given the long term significance of this report, we would also suggest that the 
appropriate Scrutiny Committee is engaged.  To its credit, Caerphilly County Borough Council 
(CCBC) has an open and transparent decision making structure which we would recommend 
is made full use of in this instance. 

 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Because of the speed and nature of the COVID-19 lockdown, the Council was required to 

Page 91



equip and train a significant proportion of its workforce to work and to provide services remote 
from their usual places of work and, in many cases, from home. 
 
We would concur with this statement.  CCBC staff has been exemplary.  Their efforts and 
commitment has been unwavering and we believe that all staff must be recognised and 
celebrated for this.  

 
2.2 While the transformation to this new model of service delivery happened at a significant pace, 

the technology platforms that have formed the foundations of remote working have proven to 
be fairly intuitive and extremely stable. 

 
We agree with this statement. 

 
2.3 Some sections of the workforce have been operating remotely and very effectively since the 

beginning of lockdown and, over time, further services have been enabled and brought back 
on line with much less of a reliance on buildings, premises and travel. 
 
We agree with this statement. 
 

2.4 This has enabled many services to the public to be delivered safely and continuously and for 
the Council’s employees to manage multiple aspects of their work / home balance in a way 
that has brought about a much greater balance than was typically possible. 
 
We agree with this statement.   
 
The ability to work from home has delivered considerable benefits.  It has allowed those who 
were shielding (if well enough to do so) to work from home and assisted those who were 
experiencing childcare difficulties.  From an organisational perspective, it has allowed CCBC 
services to continue to function and its workforce to remain as productive as possible, which 
has been to the benefit of our communities. 
 

2.5 Of course, not everyone has found the isolated nature of working remotely a positive 
experience and the results of the Flexible Working survey provide a healthy note of caution 
that whatever the Council does from here on in must be truly flexible and meet the differing 
needs of its employees as well as reducing any operating costs associated with service 
delivery. 

 
We agree with this statement. 
 
We would suggest that careful consideration is given to the words ‘truly flexible’ and as an 
organisation that we are clear on what this means, for example, are we seeking a flexible 
workforce i.e. the employee, or a flexible organisation i.e. the employee and the employer?  
We believe only a flexible organisation will deliver the positive outcomes that CCBC are 
seeking.  
 
We would also suggest that the organisation gives consideration to who will benefit from this 
flexibility.  We would ask that a robust assessment is undertaken to identify those roles that 
would benefit and those that would not.  Again, to ensure transparent decision making, we 
believe that Cabinet, Scrutiny and the Trade Unions have sight of this information prior to 
making any decision. 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 In terms of recommendations, Cabinet are asked to: 
 

3.1.1 Acknowledge the benefits of the flexible working arrangements that have supported 
service delivery across the Council since March 2020.  

Page 92



 
We support this recommendation. 
 
3.1.2 Agree to formally adopt the flexible working principles set out at Appendix 1 as a core 

principle for supporting service delivery.   
 
From the information given in Appendix 1, unfortunately, it is unclear what the flexible working 
principles are.  We would welcome sight of a clear set of principles to which the local authority 
will work.  

 
With regards to the principles of agile working, we would expect that the overriding principle 
would be one of fairness and equality across all workforces and places of work.  

 
3.1.3 Delegates authority to the Head of Paid Service, in consultation with the relevant 

Cabinet Member, to determine on a service by service basis the optimum approach to 
flexible working and accommodation requirements.  

 
We support this recommendation but would suggest that any assessment of the optimum 
approach to flexible working and accommodation requirements is done under normal working 
conditions i.e. when we are operating at full service delivery.  To do so at any other time may 
produce less than accurate data and impede decision making. 

 
3.1.4 Note the need to consider how the current flexi system can be aligned with and 

support the principles of flexible working through ongoing discussions with Trade 
Unions.  

 
We support this recommendation and welcome discussions on this matter. 
 
3.1.5 That Members note the potential costs associated with the deployment of flexible 

working in relation to IT equipment and furniture as well as the potential savings that 
can be generated through the rationalisation of buildings and reductions in other 
operating expenditure. 

 
We support this recommendation but would ask that the additional costs that may be incurred 
by those working from home be taken into account i.e. heating, lighting, home insurance etc.  
These costs should be considered within any cost benefit analysis as I am sure that CCBC 
would not wish to see their employees burdened with additional expenditure as a result of any 
new working practice.   
 
3.1.6 Agrees to receive additional reports, as required, to agree funding and any associated 

HR and IT Policy changes that might be required. 
 

We support this recommendation and would welcome the opportunity to be consultees on any 
additional reports. 

 
 3.1.7 Endorses the development of an appropriate training and development programme for 

 managers and staff to ensure the benefits of flexible working are maximised. 
  

We support this recommendation.  Reskilling and upskilling across the whole workforce will be 
a critical component to ensure any shift towards flexible working is achieved.  In some 
instances, employees may not have the skills or behaviours to operate in this new agile 
environment which could lead to feelings of frustration and ineffectiveness.  As an 
organisation with staff wellbeing at its heart we trust this will be given full consideration.  

 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 The authority has gone through an unprecedented period of flexible working in relation to the 

current Coronavirus pandemic.  It is wholly evident that there are options to enhance the 

Page 93



standard approach to office accommodation that will benefit staff, the Council, the residents of 
Caerphilly County Borough and the wider environment.   

  
 We support this statement.   
 
4.2 The progress achieved over recent months in respect of delivering services through flexible 

arrangements must now be captured and built upon to ensure services can remain 
sustainable over the long term whatever challenges may emerge. 

 
 We support this statement. 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 The current pandemic has provided a stimulus to show the benefits of working in a more 

flexible manner. The progress made and the lessons learned over the last three months can 
now directly shape the blueprint for future service delivery and redesign. Embedding flexible 
practices will enable the organisation to be ready to manage any future crisis as well as reflect 
the Council’s need to remain an attractive and progressive employer.  

 
 We support this statement.   

 
We would welcome the opportunity to have sight of the ‘lessons learned’ to which the report 
refers. 
 
Ensuring that the organisation is ‘future proofed’ will be the ultimate success factor and this 
will demand a culture change within the organisation alongside operational changes.  CCBC 
has in the past been described as a ‘traditional’ local authority.  Research has shown that the 
often lose nature of agile workplaces make them poorly suited to more traditional operating 
structures.  It would be remiss of us not to mention the impact that culture may have on a shift 
of this magnitude and we would ask that this factor is carefully considered. 

 
5.2 It is acknowledged that it is not going to be possible to design a one size fits all approach and 

that flexible working models will need to be developed and tailored to each service area and in 
some cases will differ depending upon role. The core focus, however, will remain a reduction 
in the reliance of the workforce and services upon physical buildings. 

 
 We support this statement. 
 

We note that the report makes reference to the fact that ‘it is not going to be possible to 
design a one size fits all approach’, this is understood, however policies such the Flexible 
Working Hours Scheme, Mileage, Flexible Working Policy and Procedure, Leave of Absence 
etc. will likely be applied in to all.  This could mean that some staff may benefit and some may 
be subject to poorer working practices/conditions as a result.  We would request that: 
 

• Impact assessments are undertaken on all HR Policies; 

• A number of workplace scenarios be developed with the Trade Unions to assess how HR 
policies and the management thereof will operate in practice, and finally, 

• A number of real-time service area pilots undertaken, in jointly agreed areas, and 
analysed prior to the implementation of any change. 

 
5.3 The success of any flexible implementation will be linked to a clear set of objectives, a 

consistently applied corporate approach, a strong communication and engagement plan as 
well as a suite of policies that support the new ways of working.  

 
 We support this statement.   

 

Page 94



We would also like to suggest that clear boundaries are communicated which sets out the 
organisations expectations from its employees and conversely what the employee can expect 
from the organisation in terms of flexibility. 

 
5.4 Team management and appropriate support will also be vital to the success of flexible 

working and Managers will need to be provided the necessary training and tools to be able to 
manage and support a distributed workforce while maintaining and optimising the benefits of 
team working.  

 
We support this statement.  Reskilling and upskilling across the whole workforce will be a 
critical component to ensure any shift towards flexible working is achieved.  In some 
instances, employees may not have the skills or behaviours to operate in this new agile 
environment which could lead to feelings of frustration and ineffectiveness.  As an 
organisation with staff wellbeing at its heart we trust this will be given full consideration. 
 

5.5 It should also be noted that flexible working is not simply home working. Home working will 
form part of a range of flexible arrangements.  Some employees will use their home as their 
office base, some will operate across multiple office buildings and some may even take 
advantage of working at times from other buildings. The flexible working approach should 
support staff to work where and when it best suits them while still ensuring the needs of the 
business are supported.  

 
 We support this statement. 

 
The Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service has clearly stated that “Work is a thing we do not a 
place we go”.  We agree wholeheartedly with this statement, however, we would ask that 
further scrutiny is given to clearly establish who within the organisation this would most likely 
benefit.  For those that may not benefit from flexible working, we would not wish to see a loss 
of flexibility i.e. possible removal of the flexi clocking system, or having to ask permission from 
their line manager before working beyond their daily contracted hours, which was introduced 
on 22nd July 2020.  Consideration needs to be given to ensure that this does not manifest into 
a benefit for the few at the detriment of the many. 

 
5.6 The introduction of a broader flexible working approach will be a move to a trust based 

organisation with employees empowered to deliver their roles flexibly. Measures will still be in 
place, however, to ensure staff achieve their required tasks and outputs and fulfil their 
contracted hours.  

 
We support this statement. 
 
Agile working is operated within a framework of trust and therefore it is with disappointment 
that in paragraph 5.17 a proposal has been suggested (and implemented on 22.07.20 by the 
Head of Paid Service) informing staff that ‘those staff working away from the office will be 
asked to seek line manager approval in advance to work longer than their contracted hours.’ 
As a Trade Union we have a responsibility to represent the voice of our members, some of 
which have expressed their disappointment on this decision.  For those working in an office 
environment this instruction does not apply, and therefore, the question must be asked – is 
location and/or being ‘seen’ the deciding factor?  It must also be pointed out that this practice 
would have a greater impact on those at the lower end of the organisational structure given 
that they are subject to higher levels of management oversight. 
 

5.7 Organisations that have introduced ‘flexible working’ opportunities (such as the NHS, other 
local authorities, business in general), have confirmed improvements in the following areas:  

 
 For the employer:   

 
• Increased motivation and engagement of staff  
• Increased productivity and Efficiency 

Page 95



• Improved business continuity – less disruption due to weather, office security issues, 
travel problems etc.  

• Reduction in organisational and personal carbon footprint  
• Reduced parking  
• Improved staff performance  
• Ability to attract and retain high quality talent  
• Reduced absenteeism and related costs  
• Reduced staff turnover with associated costs and reduction in lost knowledge, skills 

and experience 
• Asset rationalisation 
 

 For employees: 
 

• Reduced travel time and related cost.    
• Personal productivity linked to fewer distractions, improved focus, concentration, 

creativity, better use of skills and less frustration due to fewer barriers.  
• Improved work life balance  
• Increase in wellbeing, health and happiness linked to reduced stress, better sense of 

control, ability to integrate healthy eating, childcare responsibility, caring 
responsibilities and exercise into the day  

• Increased engagement as a result of the autonomy and trust at work  
 

When home becomes a workplace there are a wide range of issues to be addressed, from 
finding a suitable and separate place to work to having the right equipment, and knowing 
about insurance and who pays the bills.  Information security is also high priority. 
 
There is no general legal obligation on employers to fund a home office set up, but their duty 
to take reasonable care of safety means they must fund reasonable costs and ensure 
equipment is suitable. 
 
There are clear threats to workers mental health in the explosion of new home working, but 
also hopes that - with reasonable adjustments – increased flexibility might help.   
 
Lines between personal life and work can easily become blurred and isolation can lead to 
loneliness and lack of connection with work colleagues.   
 
Balancing home working with childcare can be a source of stress, while the rise of domestic 
violence can not be overlooked. 

 
5.8 One of the other gains typically witnessed through flexible working is around productivity. In 

many cases, productivity when working flexibly can be maintained, even enhanced, because 
commutes and office distractions are often gone.   

 
 We support this statement, however, the notion of core working hours can disappear when 

homeworking begins, as an expectation of always being available takes hold.  This should be 
dealt with sensitively – overtime should be voluntary and not without appropriate 
compensation; workers need regular breaks, switching off at the end of day; and employers 
should show that they trust employees. 

  
5.9  It also important to set the potential negative impacts to flexible working.  Some of the 

downsides can include the following: 
 

• Communication difficulties 

• Longer working hours 

• Poor posture 

• Staff can be more difficult to oversee 

• IT issues 

• Lone working issues 

Page 96



• Different management skills required 

• Individual well-being 

• Manual handling 
 

We support this statement and would expect such issues to be addressed as part of any 
managing change process.  Risk assessments will need to be carried out (these can be 
undertaken by the employee using a health and safety questionnaire to avoid intrusiveness) 
and should include how work-life balance will be managed, for example taking regular breaks 
and switching off from work at the end of the day, so expectations are clear. 

 
5.10 Through effective and targeted training for managers and staff and appropriate investment in 

the tools and resources needed to work flexibly, many of these negatives can be addressed 
 
 We support this statement. 
 
5.11 The appendices to this report contain a detailed exploration of some of the requirements of a 

flexible workforce as well as some of the key considerations. Some of the headlines from the 
appendices are set out over the coming paragraphs. 

 
5.12 Flexible Working Principles 
 
 The Council has in a place a set of ‘Agile Working Principles’ which set out guidance on 

working flexibly. These were introduced in 2019 as a means of encouraging the use of flexible 
working and providing the necessary guidance and support to staff and managers who wished 
to deliver their roles flexibly. These principles will need to be reviewed and adjusted as the 
numbers of staff working flexibly has increased exponentially. 

  
 We would welcome sight of a clear set of ‘Agile Working Principles’. 
 
5.13 The New Normal? 
 
 The pandemic has created a new normal that has transformed the organisation and society 

alike. The use of flexible working approaches over recent months has demonstrated the 
opportunities that exist to create new services that meet specific needs, break down barriers 
across services, bring previously disparate resources together and quickly meet the changing 
needs of staff and residents. It has also become clear that a ‘one size fits all’ approach to 
flexible working should not be introduced.  Instead, a blended approach should be developed 
that ensures the needs of all staff and customers can be met. 

 
We support this statement.   
 
We are aware that Directors have been working on their ‘New World Norms’; to date this 
information has not been shared with Caerphilly Unison.  As key partners in a changing 
workplace we would value the opportunity to discuss these ‘New World Norms’ with the 
Leadership team.  

 
5.14 Foundations for a Successful Flexible Working Programme 
 
 Our staff will be key to the delivery of this major change programme and their buy in will be 

key to its success. What will be equally important will be the policies that support it, access to 
the right systems, tools and training and the communication strategy that will bring this new 
way of working to life. There will also be a need to develop management systems that get the 
best out of staff, provide the necessary support and enable the needs of the business to be 
met across a distributed workforce. 

 
We support this statement. 
 
We also believe that it will be essential to put in place: 

Page 97



• A performance management system developed that is outcomes based and fairly 
assessed; 

• Development opportunities for staff to ensure they can get the best out of the new 
environment; 

• A clear Home Working Agreement aligned with the Working Time Regulations; 

• A clear policy across all workforces and workplaces which fairly compensates staff for 
working in excess of their hours, which is in many cases done out of goodwill at present, 
and 

• A clear policy on agile working based on sound argument to avoid perceptions of 
favouritism.  

 
5.15 A New Customer Interface - Public Interaction and Digital Capability 
 
 The restrictions on movement that have underpinned lockdown have demonstrated that many 

of our residents have the access and the skills to conduct many aspects of their daily lives 
online. The assessment of digital capability across Caerphilly explored in Appendix 4 identifies 
that 75% of the adult population in the Borough have all five of the basic digital skills required. 
While this provides an opportunity to engage our residents in new ways and across different 
hours of business our services must continue to support those that do not have either the 
access or the digital skills at present.  

 
We support this statement. 

 
5.16 Health, Safety and Wellbeing Considerations 
 
 With a potential move to a more formal approach to flexible working there are multiple benefits 

that emerge in terms of Health and Wellbeing. Increases in productivity, being able to better 
balance the competing demands of increasingly busy work and home lives and the positive 
impact of feeling trusted to get the job done, have all been proven to enhance an individual’s 
wellbeing. Conversely, there are individuals whose wellbeing could be negatively impacted by 
working remotely and the Council will need to work hard to strike the right balance, put in 
place the right support and ensure that the wellbeing needs of all of our staff are being met. 

 
 We support this statement. 
 
5.17 Flexible Working Policy Considerations 
 
 The Council already has ‘Agile Working Principles’ in place to support flexible working 

approaches but their use has been sporadic to date. Similarly, the Council has a range of HR 
and IT policies designed to support work life balance and safe systems of work. Over the 
coming months, these policies will each need to be reviewed and potentially adjusted to 
support a broader application of flexible working. Any changes that result would be developed 
in consultation with staff and our Trade Union partners. 

  
We support this statement and would welcome the opportunity to be an active partner in the 
development of these policies.  However, having sight of the Directors ‘New World Norms’ 
would be advantageous so that we are all clear on what our Policies are being re-designed to 
achieve. 

 
 In the short term, and as a means of ensuring the ongoing wellbeing of our staff, those staff 

working away from the office will be asked to seek line manager approval in advance to work 
longer than their contracted hours. This interim adjustment will not restrict staff from being 
able to accrue time off in lieu, but it will help managers ensure that workloads are being 
appropriately balanced while staff are operating remotely. 

 
We support this statement in terms of the wellbeing of our staff being of paramount 
importance.  However, we do not support the proposal put forward on how this will be 

Page 98



managed and note that this is a temporary measure which should be reviewed at the earliest 
opportunity.  
 
As a Trade Union we have a responsibility to represent the voice of our members, some of 
which have expressed their disappointment on this decision.  For those working in an office 
environment this instruction does not apply, and therefore, the question must be asked – is 
location and/or being ‘seen’ the deciding factor?  It must also be pointed out that this practice 
would have a greater impact on those at the lower end of the organisational structure given 
that they are subject to higher levels of management oversight.  This decision does little to 
reinforce the message of ‘trust’ being communicated to the workforce. 

 
UNISON would urge the council to also consider the position of staff outside of the flexi or 
overtime system who report working above their hours – sometimes for short periods – but in 
a way that can be easily overlooked.  UNISON members working in care and our schools 
have reported to us that coming in a little early, or staying on a little extra, can easily occur 
when the needs of service users are immediate. Rather than just accept this as a feature of 
the job, we want to work with the council to consider ways to proactively challenge this norm 
where it is present.   
 

5.18 Environmental Impact 
 
 During the pandemic, there has been a significant reduction in the number of journeys 

undertaken by staff to and from work and travelling to and from meetings during the working 
day. This has resulted in a sizeable increase in the air quality, not just in Caerphilly, but 
across the world. An enhanced approach to flexible working would clearly provide these 
benefits over a sustained period as well as reducing the Council’s operating expenditure. 

 
 We support this statement. 
 
5.19 IT and Equipment 
 
 As a result of the need to transition to flexible working arrangements in only a matter of days, 

many Council staff are working remotely at present using their own IT equipment, desk etc. As 
the Council moves to formalise its flexible working arrangements over the coming months 
Council staff must be provided with fit for purpose equipment, tools and systems that support 
them to do their job as efficiently and effectively as possible. It is likely that these packages 
will be linked to particular roles and separate reports will be brought forward over the coming 
months to provide a sustainable funding package. 

 
 We support this statement. 
 
5.20 Investment and Property Requirements 
 

An initial exercise undertaken by Property Services has identified that currently there are circa 
2000 desks available within the authority for use by staff. If service provision was undertaken 
in a flexible manner, property portfolio rationalisation opportunities could emerge which could 
result in 8 buildings being surplus to requirements and savings being generated in terms of 
building occupancy and reduced running costs.   

 
 We support this statement.  

 
We would welcome the opportunity to have sight of the assessment on how many workers will 
likely benefit from agile working.  Given that initial costings and property rationalisation 
benefits have been discussed in this report it is assumed that the Leadership team have a 
broad idea of numbers. 

 
5.21 Flexible Working Staff Survey June 2020 
 

Page 99



 Nearly 1500 employees completed a flexible working staff survey during June 2020 giving 
some fantastic insights in to the benefits and challenges facing staff working remotely. There 
some very positive views shared on flexible working in overall terms as well as some 
concerns.  The overarching results are provided in Appendix 10. 

 
 The key aspects of the survey revealed that 50% of respondents would like to split their time 

between home and office working, 23% having a preference for working from home and 21% 
wanting to work from the office but have the option to work from home occasionally. These 
results clearly demonstrate that with the expansion of flexible working there is likely to be a 
surplus of office accommodation linking back to the outcome set out in 5.20. 

 
We welcome the survey undertaken with staff and hope that similar exercises will be 
undertaken as part of the change management process. 

 
5.22 Conclusion 
 

When considering the way the world has adapted and changed, particularly in the light of the 
current pandemic, it is wholly evident that a new way of working can and should be supported 
to ensure that the organisation remains as flexible as possible and is able to react to any 
future pandemics or similar events that would restrict service provision.  The organisation may 
well need to turn on and off services more frequently as we respond to the current pandemic. 

 
 We support this statement. 
 
5.23 Flexible working has been proven to work in Caerphilly. Services provided by the Council 

have not “fallen over” or ceased, in fact, it has been possible to continue to deliver them as a 
direct result.  

  
 We support this statement and would like to give credit to the workforce for their outstanding 

achievements. 
  
5.24 The gains made over the last few months, albeit out of necessity, cannot now be lost.  Now is 

the time to embrace transformational change and shape an organisation that is able to meet 
the challenges of the 21st century head on. 

 
 We support this statement. 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 There have been no assumptions made within this report.   
 
7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 Corporate Plan 2018-2023.   
 
7.1.1 The report links to the Council’s Corporate Plan 2018-2023, and contributes to the Well-being 

Objectives, as follows:  
 
7.1.2 Objective 1 - Improve education opportunities for all – Flexible working has and will continue 

to allow teachers to deliver lessons remotely. 
 

7.1.3 Objective 2 - Enabling employment – Flexible working promotes more autonomy over where 
and when staff work, thus affording flexibility for enabling balance between work, leisure, 
family and caring responsibilities.  This will open up more opportunities for people to apply for 
roles that may have previously been unsuitable due to the lack of flexibility around working 
hours and locations. 

 
7.1.4 Objective 4 - Promote a modern, integrated and sustainable transport system that increases 

Page 100



opportunity, promotes prosperity and minimises the adverse impacts on the environment - 
There are clear environmental benefits realised by flexible working in terms of office/asset 
rationalisation and lesser journeys attributed to commuting or work based travel.  This will 
assist in reducing the impact on the climate and improving air quality.  With less cars on the 
road it is already evident that more people are prepared to engage in active travel. 

 
7.1.5 Objective 5 - Creating a county borough that supports a healthy lifestyle in accordance with 

the sustainable Development Principle within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 - Improving work life balance and reducing the need to commute utilising flexible 
working offers the opportunity for staff to partake in more social, sports and leisure activities 
and to utilise active travel options which will improve health and well-being. 
 

7.1.6 Objective 6 - Support citizens to remain independent and improve their well-being – Flexible 
working when linked into a digital transformation of service delivery will assist residents to 
access services at the time and location that suits them helping them to remain independent. 

  
7.2 There are further links to the TeamCaerphilly transformation strategy, firstly echoing the 

mantra - A new "whole-authority" operating model to ensure a resilient Caerphilly County 
Borough for the future. 

 
7.3 Further synergies include – “We will need to move away from traditional models of service 

delivery, embrace change, be prepared to innovate and take well managed risks. We will also 
need to modernise through harnessing emerging technologies and fully engaging with our 
workforce and communities”. 

A particular focus needs to be placed on ‘How’ we undertake our work.  This is probably one 
of the biggest opportunities to modernise the organisation and to help move towards an agile 
working model.  We note within the report Strengthening Team Caerphilly that a number of 
corporate/service reviews have been undertaken - Caerphilly Unison has not been involved or 
consulted on any of this work which we would welcome. 

 

7.4 The recognition of strong corporate will and clear strategy, with equal buy-in by the leadership 
team, is again reflected in the TeamCaerphilly transformation statement;  

“This ambitious programme of change articulates the combined vision of the Cabinet and the 
Corporate Leadership Team and has been developed over the last 12 months. In making this 
Strategy a reality, courageous political and officer leadership will be essential to ensure that 
we successfully deliver the outcomes that we are aiming to achieve.” 

 
7.5 Furthermore, the Cabinet commitments already defined, include: - 

• We will build on Caerphilly County Borough Council’s reputation as an innovative, high 
performing local authority. 

• We will ensure we have an engaged and motivated workforce. 
• We will always strive to ensure Caerphilly County Borough Council delivers value for 

money in everything it does. 

7.6 Similarly, the notion of harnessing the success of the recent transformation in view of 
flexible/digital working and customer interaction (equally with the corporate appetite for such) 
can be harmonised with the Customer and digital strategy; whereby the Cabinet Members 
foreword describes being brave / bold in approach to embracing technologies and innovation 
to deliver citizen centric services, including an flexible, iterative approach to our work.  

Overall, while we recognise that there are many positive benefits and a golden opportunity to reshape 
our services, it is essential that we are realistic on our assumptions and approach.  We would 

Page 101



strongly advocate that robust Equality Impact Assessments are undertaken prior to service change 
taking place.  

8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 This report links directly to the Well–being goals within the Well-being of Future Generations 

Act (Wales) 2015:  
 

• A prosperous Wales 

• A resilient Wales 

• A healthier Wales 

• A more equal Wales 

• A Wales of cohesive communities 

• A globally responsible Wales 
 
8.2 It is consistent in all of the five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development 

principle in the Act that it supports: 
 
8.2.1 Long-term – Flexible working promotes many long-term benefits for the organisation as a 

whole, with both employer and employee recognising substantial improvements as outlined 
within the report.  The introduction of flexible working will have a positive impact on future 
generations and primarily will offer safeguard in view of; improved business continuity, 
reduction in organisational and personal carbon footprint, improved work life balance and 
increase in wellbeing, health and happiness.  Equally, the Council’s customer-centric ethos 
will be enhanced and the needs and demands of Caerphilly’s citizens best met.   

 
8.2.2 Integration – A flexible workforce will form an integral part of the Council’s overall 

transformation strategy and complements the suite of policies that serve to balance home and 
work life commitments.  There current crisis has provided opportunities for the many varied 
services of the authority to become truly “One Council”.  Each service area is clearly assisting 
others to ensure the highest priority objectives are delivered to the customer.  There is clear 
evidence that the flexible working approach has allowed true service integration across the 
council, with other service sectors and primarily with its residents and customers at the heart 
of its approach. 

 
8.2.3 Involvement – All staff need to be fully engaged in view of the flexible working transformation 

as not all roles and responsibilities are conducive to flexible working, and there will be a 
notable disparity between blue and white-collar workers and those that need to provide front 
line service delivery.  There needs to be an effective communication plan to ensure the 
strategy behind flexible working, along with the suitability of application, is transparent to all 
parties. This will require the involvement of staff (staff survey already conducted) and 
engagement with all relevant stakeholders. 

 
It is stated that there will be ‘notable disparity between blue and white collar workers’.  We 
would request that information on this statement is shared with the Trade Unions and 
Councillors. 
 

8.2.4 Collaboration – Flexible working not only brings the Council’s internal departments closer 
together to deliver the best working model  and to move to the “One Council” approach, it has 
also already promoted wider collaboration within the private / public sector due to the ease in 
which meetings and working arrangements have continued almost seamlessly with the 
utilisation of a digital approach. 
 

8.2.5 Prevention – Carefully prioritised and justified budget commitment for flexible working 
platforms will ensure confidence in both application and investment.  This will assist in 
ensuring service continuity, reducing the risk to service failure during any future crisis or 
emergency.   Embracing transformation to flexible working will ensure the Council is both 
resilient and flexible in terms of business continuity during adverse conditions and aligns with 

Page 102



priorities to improve the way the council operates in order to protect the environment for future 
generations in many aspects but particularly from an impact on the climate. 

Overall, while we recognise that there are many positive benefits, again we must be realistic on our 
assumptions and approach.  We would strongly advocate that robust Equality Impact Assessments 
are undertaken prior to service change taking place.  

9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 An EIA screening has been completed in accordance with the Council’s Strategic Equality 

Plan and supplementary guidance. No potential for unlawful discrimination and/or low level or 
minor negative impact has been identified; therefore, a full EIA has not been carried out. The 
flexible working approach will allow more flexibility in where and how people undertake their 
roles which will assist in providing equality. 
 

We would welcome the opportunity to have sight of the EIA Screening that has been undertaken. 
Given the scale of the change being outlined, and the ‘far reaching financial implications from this 
report’ (section 10.1) which will affect both staff and the general public, it is difficult to conceive that a 
full Equality Impact Assessment is not required.  
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are far reaching financial implications from this report.  As such, there will need to be a 

series of detailed financial reports prepared should the general principles cited within the 
recommendations be supported by Cabinet. 

 
10.2 The detailed financial implications of the new operating model will be firmed up as specific 

requirements become clearer following further discussions with Heads of Service. Detailed 
funding proposals will be developed as part of this process and the costs will be met from a 
call on usable reserves. 

 
10.3 Furthermore, a number of potential areas of savings have been identified throughout the 

report.  As the detail of these areas develops, further reports to Cabinet will be submitted.   
 
We would welcome sight of these reports once they have been prepared. 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There will be wide-ranging personnel implications from this report.  There will need to be 

consultations undertaken with the trade unions and staff in relation to policies and procedures. 
 
11.2 A staff survey has already been undertaken in relation to flexible working which identified 

overwhelming support for the initiative.  Details of the survey results are highlighted in 
Appendix 10. 

 
We would welcome full engagement in this process. 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 Comments from all consultees have been included within the report. 
 
12.2 A full list of consultees is included at the end of the report. 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
13.1 Local Government Act 1972 and 2000 
 

Page 103



 
Author: Marcus Lloyd, Head of Infrastructure 
 
Consultees: Cllr Philippa Marsden, Leader of the Council 
 Cabinet Members 
 Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive 
 Corporate Management Team 
 Leadership Team 

Cllr Jamie Pritchard, Chair of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
Cllr Gez Kirby, Vice Chair of Policy and resources Scrutiny Committee 
Cllr Colin Mann, Leader of the Plaid Group 
Cllr Graham Simmonds, Leader of the Independent Group 
Trade Unions 

 

Appendices: Appendix 1 – Caerphilly County Borough Council - Agile Working Principles 
Appendix 2 – The New Normal? 

        Appendix 3 – Some Foundations for a Successful Flexible Working Programme 
        Appendix 4 – A New Customer Interface - Public Interaction and Digital Capability 
        Appendix 5 - Health, Safety and Well-Being Considerations 
        Appendix 6 - Flexible Working Policy Considerations 
        Appendix 7 - Environmental Impact 
        Appendix 8 - IT and Equipment 
        Appendix 9 - Investment and Property Requirements 
        Appendix 10 – Flexible Working Staff Survey June 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 104



Appendix 1 – Caerphilly County Borough Council - Agile Working Principles 

 
1  INTRODUCTION  
 
(i)  The concept of Agile Working  
 

Agile working is a transformational tool that enables organisations to work smarter by 
eliminating all barriers to working efficiently. It uses communications and information 
technology to enable people to work in ways which best suit their needs without the traditional 
limitations of where and when tasks must be performed.  

 
Agile working can support staff to:  

 

• Have more autonomy over where they work.  

• Have more autonomy over when they work.  
 
 Agile working is based on the complete flexibility of work to drive long-term organisational 

success. It can unlock value for both the employer and the employee.  
 
(ii)  The Benefits of Agile Working?  
 

Organisations that have introduced ‘agile working’ opportunities (such as the NHS), have 
confirmed improvements in the following areas:  

 
For the employer:  

 

• Increased motivation and engagement of staff  

• Increased productivity and Efficiency  

• Improved business continuity – less disruption due to weather, office security issues, 
travel problems etc.  

• Reduction in organisational and personal carbon footprint  

• Reduced parking  

• Improved staff performance  

• Ability to attract and retain high quality talent  

• Reduced absenteeism and related costs  

• Reduced staff turnover with associated costs and reduction in lost knowledge, skills and 
experience  

• Asset rationalisation  
 

For employees:  
 

• Reduced travel time and related cost.  

• Personal productivity linked to fewer distractions, improved focus, concentration, 
creativity, better use of skills and less frustration due to fewer barriers.  

• Improved work life balance  

Page 105



• Increase in wellbeing, health and happiness linked to reduced stress, better sense of 
control, ability to integrate healthy eating, childcare responsibility, caring responsibilities 
and exercise into the day  

• Increased engagement as a result of the autonomy and trust at work  
 

2.  AGILE WORKING IN THE CONTEXT OF CAERPHILLY COUNTY BOROUGH 
 COUNCIL (CCBC)  
 
 This section identifies why CCBC might consider starting an agile working programme.  
 
 (i)  Cabinet’s clear vision  
 
 Caerphilly’s Cabinet have set a clear vision for the Council with staff engagement at its 

core. The standards that underpin this vision that agile working could compliment, are 
highlighted in bold:  

 

• We will always do our best to protect jobs and services within the current 
challenging financial climate  

• We will build on Caerphilly County Borough Council’s reputation as an innovative, 
high performing local authority  

• We will ensure we have an engaged and motivated workforce  

• We will always strive to ensure Caerphilly County Borough Council delivers value 
for money in everything it does  

• We will help protect the most vulnerable people in our society and make 
safeguarding a key priority  

• We will always welcome feedback and consider the views of residents, staff and 
other key stakeholders  

• We will be open, honest and transparent in everything we do  
 

(ii)  The catalyst / drivers for agile working:  
 

 There are a number of catalysts that encourage further exploration of agile working 
and the benefits that it could bring to Caerphilly.  

 
  For CCBC the clear drivers are:  
 
  The Council’s need to keep up with the pace of change as a progressive 

 employer in the 21st Century.  
 

Our approach to working life is changing fast. Both men and women want to find a 
balance between work, leisure, family and caring responsibilities.  

 
 Studies commissioned by the Employment Human Rights Commission (EHRC) 

support that people (regardless of gender) want a wider range of flexible job 
opportunities in all types of jobs. They want policies that reflect the social and 
economic benefits of integrating work life balance and care.  

 
 Agile working methodologies that afford staff more autonomy over where and when 

they work can support this position.  

 

Page 106



  CCBC’s Business Continuity Plan Review (Inclement Weather)  
 

The Guardian Newspaper reported in 2018 that gridlocked motorways, multiple rail 
cancellations, a string of crashes on motorways, empty restaurants and idle diggers 
seen across Britain at that time could cost the economy at least £1bn a day.  

 
 In March 2018 the Council felt it was important to acknowledge the fantastic work 

undertaken by employees during the 4 days of difficult conditions. Without whom all 
our roads would not have been cleared, care could not have been provided to the 
most vulnerable in our society and emergency conditions could not have been dealt 
with to name just a few.  

 
 Conversely however, the inclement weather forced many staff to stay close to home 

and hundreds of Caerphilly staff did not attend work for this reason. The enforced 
office closures for health & safety reasons exacerbated this position.  

 
 In this context, many staff might have been equipped to work from home or nearer to 

home during the office closure period through the effective implementation of a refined 
business continuity plan that caters for such events, i.e. a plan that takes advantage of 
the technology and/or the office space at its disposal.  

 
 A truly agile workforce is a mobile one and there is great strength in a mobile 

workforce to meet the needs of the Council and its residents during periods of 
inclement weather. This was proven in the context of the hundreds of staff who did 
turn up to work and who did step out of role with transferrable skills to assist 
colleagues/residents to go about their business safely.  

 
 If a post suits agile working in terms of Location, the relevant service area can build 

this into its business continuity plan and extend the opportunity to staff to continue 
working safely during periods of inclement weather.  

 
  Savings targets / MTFP  
 
 Some of the most successful companies have led the way on re-assessing how their 

workplaces operate and have introduced flexible and agile options for their employees. 
They did this to improve their business but it has also got them in good shape for 
tougher times and fit to take on new opportunities in the future.  

 
 The Council’s vision for the future is ambitious against the MTFP target savings of 

£39m over the next four years. In meeting the MTFP targets, there is always the 
potential for asset rationalisation to be an outcome. The impact of any such asset 
realisation on office space is unknown at this time and cannot be predicted. It would 
however serve the Council well to know the extent to which agile working could extend 
across Services if necessary in the future.  

 
  The Gender Pay Gap  
 
 Flexible working and agile working methodologies are intrinsic in supporting the 

reduction of the gender pay gap. 
 
 The government has supported a series of incremental changes in statutory 

entitlements to increase men’s take up of family leave and make it better paid and 
more flexible, for example greater flexibility in how paternity and parental leave can be 
taken including shared parental leave. Organisations are being encouraged to raise 
awareness of entitlements and to open up flexible working/agile working opportunities 
particularly for men.    

Page 107



 
3  AGILE WORKING IN THE CONTEXT OF THE ONGOING WORKFORCE PLANNING 
 EXERCISE  
 
 The Council must ensure that it continues to have a workforce that is sustainable over the 

long term and is equipped with the necessary skills to meet the needs of our citizens as well 
as the changing demands for our services.  

 
 In July 2018, the Interim Chief Executive wrote to all staff inviting expressions of interest for 

reduction in our hours of work, flexible retirement or wish to leave the Council’s employment 
under the premise of Voluntary early retirement and/or Severance.  

 
 In the Autumn Term of 2018, all who have submitted a form will receive feedback on their 

expressions of interest. All expressions of interest will be carefully considered and those that 
can reasonably be supported will progress to the next stage.  

 
 The results of this workforce planning exercise will have an impact on the Council’s staffing 

structure. The extent of that impact is yet to be determined but will inevitably steer service 
managers to plan accordingly in support of staff who will continue to provide their service to 
the Council following it.  

 
4.  HOW FLEXIBLE ARE SERVICES  
 
 (i)  Is it reasonable to think that staff can be given more autonomy over where and 
  when they work?  
 
 Yes it is but one size methodology will not fit all. Major economic and technology-

driven shifts have caused significant social change. New technologies, data analytics 
and social networks have all had an impact on the way that people communicate, 
collaborate and work. The rapid acceleration of technology has changed what is 
possible in the workplace.  

 
 The way in which we think about office space, how and when we work has started to 

change. With the ownership of smartphones ever increasing, the internet, cloud 
communications and smart devices, it has never been easier to plug in and work from 
anywhere.  

 
 (ii)  Which jobs suit agile working?  
 
 Most jobs will have some scope for agility in the context of where staff work and/or 

when staff work.  
 
 The Council’s services however are diverse and include cleaning, catering, refuse and 

recycling, housing, social services/care services, leisure, youth, libraries, education 
services including adult education, technical services, planning and highways. 5  

 
 Before any service manager can advise on which posts suit agile working, a table top 

exercise should be undertaken to consider how much flexibility is available in each and 
every role in their Service Area. 

 
(iii)  What Heads of Service might consider in the table top exercise?  

 
  Heads of Service should consider if posts are:  
 

• Location Dependent or Location Independent  

• Time Dependent or Time Independent, i.e.  
 
 

Page 108



By mapping every job in their service area to identify how much flexibility can realistically be 
achieved for each role. For example: 
 

Post  Location 
Dependent  

Location 
Independent  

Time  
Dependent  

Time 
Independent  

Comment – 
Be clear on 
how much 
flexibility the 
post affords  

Post 1   X   X Offers full 
choice over 
where to 
work. 
Significant 
flexibility over 
when to work. 

Post 2  X   X  No choice of 
where to 
work. 
Working 
hours are set. 
Flexible 
working 
applications 
welcome.  

Post 3  X    X No choice 
over where to 
work but 
infrastructure 
supports 
significant 
time 
independence 

 
 

(iv)  Explanation of terms:  
 
  Location Dependent   Receptionist, home carer, refuse collector, highway  

    maintenance operative, youth worker and/or any other such post 
    that requires the member of staff to work from, or, at a specified 
    venue to carry out specific works.  

 
 These will mostly be front line facing posts that provide a service directly to/for the 

public from a fixed location and no other location will do. Location Dependent Posts do 
not support staff to have autonomy over where they actually work.  

 
  Location Independent A post is location independent if it does not fall within the  

    descriptor for location dependent.  
 
 These are posts that suit hot desking; drop in and work locations; Mobile working 

where technology supports staff to work remotely; Home working (substantial or ad-
hoc); mixed seating (where different roles are located together to gain efficiencies); 
multi-site (fixed or flexible).  

 
 As technology improves, the traditional limitations of having to report to a specific 

office or place of work to carry out the duties of location independent posts could 
become a thing of the past.  

 

Page 109



  Time Dependent  A post is time dependent if staff working hours are set and  
    immoveable. In such posts staff must be contactable and able to 
    commit to their post at a specified time and no other time will do.  

 
 Time Dependent Posts do not support staff to have complete autonomy over when 

they actually work.  
 
 Most posts however will afford some time autonomy. In Time Dependent Posts this is 

likely to take the form of part time hours or compressed hours, term time only working, 
i.e. agreed working patterns around which there is clarity and others are working 
alongside each other to meet the full needs of the service in terms of total time 
required to be covered.  

 
  Time Independent  A post is time independent if it supports staff to have complete 
     autonomy or part autonomy over when they work.  
 
 Most jobs lend themselves to part autonomy, which means that staff could to a greater 

or lesser extent determine their own working pattern throughout the week and/or hours 
throughout the day but that at certain times they would need to be available to attend 
scheduled meetings, training etc.  

 
 (v)  What might Heads of Service do with the results of the table top exercise?  
 
 The results of the table top exercise will give a good indication of how much flexibility 

is available in each role and lead to the development of an agile working model that 
suits that Service Area. One size will not fit all.  

 
 The Head of Service might also give consideration to the results of this desk top 

exercise in relevance to reviewing business continuity in the event of enforced 
Council/office closure in the case of Inclement weather, etc.  

 
5.  POLICIES THAT UNDERPIN FLEXIBLE WORKING  
 
 The Council already offers numerous benefits aimed at making it easier for employees to 

balance home and work life commitments including flexible working, home working, career 
breaks, adoption leave, carers’ leave, salary sacrifice childcare voucher scheme, job share, 
leave of absence, parental, shared parental and paternity leave, part-time working, shift/day 
swapping and term-time working opportunities.  

 
 Agile working in terms of offering more flexibility over when and where staff work, could 

complement this suite of policies.  
 
 The flexible working policy and the home working policy specifically lend themselves to agile 

working in the context explained. A review of these policies in the context of promoting agile 
working / mobile working could be prioritised.  

 
 Other policies/procedures requiring review within the context of agile working will include 

‘expenses’; ‘Insurance’; ‘Data Privacy and Guidelines’;  
 
6.  MANAGER RESPONSIBILITIES  
 
 (i)  Keep an open mind /a willingness to embrace change – Managing employees in a 

 flexible / agile working environment can be a challenge and this in itself can encourage 
 the continuation of traditional working patterns and rituals.  

 
 In an agile working environment where posts are largely Location Independent, 

employees will need to understand:  

Page 110



  The specific parameters of the agile working arrangement in respect of location and 
  time as appropriate.  
 

• What they are expected to do (will involve prioritising, planning ahead and clear 
objective setting)  

• The methodology for agreeing and monitoring workload  

• How success will be measured  

• How this feeds into the performance development cycle  

• What communication is required from them  

• How the line manager will communicate with them  
 
 Managers will need support too. Agile working will lead to a change in corporate 

culture that includes the dissipation of control frameworks in favour of ‘TRUST’  
 

(ii)  Develop a business plan – following the table top exercise, Service Managers might 
develop a business case – clarifying the business benefits and gains for their service 
area in relevance to the drivers/catalysts referred to in point 2 above. Within the 
business plan:  

 
Clarify the agile working model that will suit the area of service - This would be largely led by 
the results of the table top exercise and reference to point 4 above.  

 
 Identify the barriers and enablers that would support the introduction of agile working 

opportunities in the Service Area, for example:  
 

• Changes to working practices and IT support required.  

• Culture, performance management and training requirements  

• Policies required to support the new ways of working (note point 4 above)  

• Costs and benefits  

• Impact Assessment  

• Communication plans  

• Implementation timetable  
  

Page 111



Appendix 2 – The New Normal? 
 
Directors have all reviewed their services and have considered what a “New World Norm” could look 
like for the future.  The key outcome is a supportive approach to introduce flexible working as a 
normal part of service delivery going forward. Flexible working in many sectors is already seen as the 
norm and although Caerphilly could be seen as slightly behind the curve this is a great opportunity for 
the authority to embrace a truly positive transformational change.  
 
As a result of the pandemic response there has been much cross-fertilisation of teams across the 
Council which has demonstrated the benefits of skill sharing, synergies in projects and creating more 
diverse and responsive teams.  This style of working promotes opportunities to create more flexible 
service delivery to support customer needs and to help manage a more flexible and diverse 
workforce which could lead to greater retention, engagement and opportunities for staff. 
 
The co-location of services and delivery, at times and locations when residents are most likely to 
engage, could change our relationship with residents so that we are seen less as an institution and 
more as a supportive Council here to help and assist our communities. 
 
Increasing our use of digital tools to help support our staff and customers will help limit demand on a 
return to the previous "normal".  There is clear recognition amongst staff that the pandemic has 
proven the ability for technology to expand service capacity and that skills / tools now being employed 
should form the blueprint for future settings. 
 
It is important to recognise that sometimes face to face is the only method for some residents and 
such reassurance services (particularly for vulnerable/older people) should continue, particularly in 
areas such as social services.  There may always be requirements to send letters and paper forms, 
appreciating that there are those citizens that will not or cannot engage digitally.  However, to further 
promote / enable the digital front door to Caerphilly’s services, there is a recognised benefit to having 
Digital Champions and greater Wi-Fi / Mi-Fi provision in the community to support service needs. 
 
There is wider research that promotes the use of voice activated services to help those who wouldn’t 
engage with digital interface as it can be perceived as too hard.  This is an area that many 
organisations have already successfully introduced and will need further research and possible trials. 
 
Business continuity is key going forward. The Council has proven that it can and has delivered the 
vast majority of services remotely.  Although this has been through necessity it is evident that it can 
be achieved and that it works. It is essential that the momentum gained in the past few months must 
not be lost as services need to be responsive to further peaks in infection rates or even new 
pandemics that could occur in the future.  There is a need to maintain the ability to flex services or 
even turn on and off as the situation necessitates.  
 
Greater digital presence is called on to allow a more integrated and autonomous customer service 
offer, adopting new or building on existing initiatives.  There are many opportunities if suitably 
navigated in tandem with greater transparency of service provisions, to deliver improved customer 
relationships and lessen the burden of time-consuming complaints and service requests. 
 
In the medium to longer term there may be the opportunity to reduce office accommodation 
requirements.  This could produce ongoing revenue savings and possible one-off capital receipts that 
could be re-invested in service provision. 
 
To move to a more flexible and digitally focussed service provision there is a requirement for a 
significant financial investment which will need to be fully identified and funded. This could be 
considered on an invest to save basis. However, the savings are much wider than purely direct 
financial impacts. There are savings in regard fuel usage, carbon emissions, building requirements, 
etc that will impact positively on the residents of the borough. 
 
 
  

Page 112



Appendix 3 – Some Foundations for a Successful Flexible Working Programme 
 
Staff buy-in will be key to the success of any change in approach to service delivery. Staff will need to 
be provided with the equipment to allow them to work more flexible.  They will need to be trained 
appropriately and be clear on how they can best work in this manner.  Appropriate mechanisms for 
ensuring staff welfare will need to be introduced to ensure any required support is available and 
easily accessible 
 
Staff will need to understand that this new way of working will provide much more flexibility in how 
they undertake their roles.  There will be a clear need for outcome-based measures to be put in place 
along with many other support mechanisms such as HR, Manager and peer support, etc 
 
A culture change will be needed at all levels of the Council, from staff to Managers to Elected 
Members.  The days of doing what we have always done have gone.  A clear, effective 
communications and engagement strategy will be key.  This will also need to emanate out to the 
public interface. The customers will also need to understand the necessity for change. 
 
Not everyone will be equipped to work flexible.  There will be instances where the new working 
environment is not suitable for staff to undertake their roles.  This could be down to security and 
privacy from both a personal and work perspective.  Although the service may suit flexible working 
Managers will need to review each role and circumstance individually to ensure that it can be 
undertaken safely and appropriately. 
 
Social distancing requirements are likely to be in place for the longer term or at least until a proven 
vaccine is available and this could be a number of years away.  In order to facilitate social distancing, 
all staff working across buildings over a traditional 9 to 5 pattern is no longer an option.  New ways of 
working must be found and implemented.   
 
  

Page 113



Appendix 4 – A New Customer Interface - Public Interaction and Digital Capability 
 
Public interaction with services has been changing over the years with a reduction in face to face 
contact and an increase in telephony and online contact. This is likely to increase over the short term 
as residents become increasingly used to undertaking many everyday activities over the internet. The 
pandemic has proven that a significant proportion of the population is now digitally enabled.   
 
An assessment of the “Digital Capability Within Caerphilly Population” highlights the extent to which 
our residents are able to access digital services for many aspects of their lives. The move to support 
a more digitally enabled and aware customer fits neatly with the proposal to have a more flexible 
approach to service delivery. 
 
While the assessment highlights that 15% of adults in the wider Gwent region are not currently on-
line, it also highlights that 75% of the Caerphilly adult population have all 5 basic digital skills. 
 
Housing rent payments to the Council have seen a 20% reduction in the use of cash/cheque and now 
only 12% of rents are being paid in this way.  Conversely the Council has seen an increase of 8% in 
internet payments and 10% in telephone payments.  
 
Across our Customer First offices there has been a marked downturn in footfall for a variety of 
payments at these locations.  There has also been a significant increase in the use of the automated 
payment option – IVR (Integrated Voice Response).   
 
On average footfall has reduced by 19% between 2018/19 and 2019/20 and has resulted in an 
average reduction of 33% in the value of payments collected in person.   
 
Since March 2020 Customer services offices have been closed and all customer interactions have 
been via telephone or digital services.  There is a growing confidence and acceptance of on-line, real 
times services.   
 
For those that are not digitally enabled there are a variety of training options already in place and a 
variety of further initiatives are being considered to assist in moving them to a more appropriate 
payment channel.  
 
The authority has already obtained support to make Caerphilly and Blackwood town centres wi-fi 
enabled with funding from Brexit.  This is ready to be rolled out in the coming weeks/months.  There 
is no reason that this cannot be widened for other towns and villages to provide greater access 
opportunities for residents.  This could be coupled with community hub type locations where residents 
could attend to undertake online payments if they have limited wi-fi access at home and also obtain 
assistance in the early days on how to undertake this payment option at these facilities.  This could 
be centred around helping people to help themselves in the longer term.  
 
  
  

Page 114



Appendix 5 - Health, Safety and Well-Being Considerations 
 
Living and working through an unprecedented event such as the Coronavirus pandemic can be a 
worrying time for everyone.  It’s all too easy in uncertain times to neglect your health, especially when 
it’s necessary to reduce your social contact and time spent outdoors. 
 
Caerphilly County Borough Council employees all have access to the Care first Service.  Care first 
provides confidential, impartial advice and support 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.  Employees 
don’t need to ask permission from their manager before contacting Care first. 
 
When working from home there are clear guidelines that need to be considered and implemented to 
ensure staff feel confident and capable that they are able to manage the separation between work 
and homelife.  A good work life balance is essential to personal well-being. 
 
Caerphilly has implemented many support mechanisms for staff which are available via the HR 
intranet pages.  Weekly updates have been communicated to staff via e-mail entitled 
Wellbeing@work.  Line managers have ensured that those frontline staff not on e-mail are fully aware 
of the support mechanisms available. This support, advice and guidance for staff is invaluable and 
would be an area that would need to receive a key focus moving forward. 
 
It has become apparent during the pandemic that although there has been coronavirus, social 
distancing, childcare and shielding absences the authority general sickness absence levels have 
reduced significantly to just over 3%.  This is reflective of other sectors who have introduced flexible 
working principles.  By providing the flexibility to staff to work their hours to suit their personal 
circumstances sickness absence reduces. 
 
The authority already has flexible working principles (home working and lone working policies) and 
solutions that can be adapted to suit this new way of flexible working to ensure that staff health, 
safety and well being is not compromised in any way. In-fact with more flexible working, risks of 
accidents, pressure, stress, etc are significantly reduced as staff will need to travel less and will not 
feel pressured to be present at an office for a set number of hours every day. 
 
Beyond the obvious business benefit of reduced office costs and environmental benefits, research 
also tells us that flexible working improves morale and reduces stress levels, increases staff retention 
and importantly widens and unlocks a bigger talent pool, wherein a business can recruit and retain a 
greater range of talent. 
 
  

Page 115



Appendix 6 - Flexible Working Policy Considerations 
 
There are a number of key policies such as but not limited to - use of IT equipment, IT security and 
flexible working principles that will need to be updated and amended to facilitate a flexible workforce. 
These will be reviewed and will be subject to the necessary consultation process.  
 
There are already flexible working and home working principles in place since 2015 and 2012 
respectively which will require updating accordingly alongside other well-being policies. 
 
Given the significant flexibility that results from flexible working, the Councils existing “Flexi Scheme” 
will need to be considered to ensure there is a seamless fit in approach.  As such, it is proposed to 
review the scheme to be more in line with the proposed flexible working approaches which in 
themselves provide employees with additional time management opportunities that can help balance 
work and personal commitments. 
 
To support the organisation with this transformation, it will be necessary to review the current flexible 
working scheme to ensure that it provides maximum opportunities to work in a more flexible way to 
support service delivery, which will benefit the Council and employees.  
 
Caerphilly is currently behind the curve in its approach to flexible working and this is a great 
opportunity to become a leading light in how services can be delivered in the future.  
 
  

Page 116



Appendix 7 - Environmental Impact 
 
Cardiff, London, Manchester, Birmingham and other cities across the UK have seen a huge decline in 
toxic nitrogen dioxide (NO2) levels, according to a study by the National Centre for Atmospheric 
Science (NCAS).  Nitrogen dioxide is a harmful gas released when fossil fuels are burnt, usually by 
power plants and motor vehicles.  Many of the activities that generate nitrogen dioxide are also 
responsible for the world’s carbon emissions and the current climate crisis. 

 
Comparing recent pollution levels to the average from the same period in the previous five years, 
NCAS states: “The air is definitely much healthier”. This is clearly evident from the chart below. 
 

 

Road traffic accounts for about 80% of nitrogen dioxide emissions in the UK, according to Paul 
Monks, Professor of Air Pollution at the University of Leicester, and former chair of the UK 
government’s science advisory committee on air quality. The average diesel car emits 52mg of 
polluting gas for every kilometre it travels, so it’s no surprise that the lockdown-induced reduction in 
traffic is leading to a substantial improvement in air quality. 
 
Caerphilly is one of only two councils in Wales (the other being Cardiff) that have been identified as 
having a significant air quality problem due to exceedances of permitted nitrogen dioxide levels on 
the A473 at Hafodrynys Hill.  
 

Page 117

https://ncas.ac.uk/en/18-news/3057-air-pollution-falling-across-uk-cities-latest-data-shows
https://ncas.ac.uk/en/18-news/3057-air-pollution-falling-across-uk-cities-latest-data-shows


Specifically considering the air quality changes for Hafodrynys between January to May 2019 to the 
same period this year it is evident that the reduced vehicle usage during lockdown has had a 
significant impact as illustrated below.  
 

 
 
Caerphilly has declared a climate emergency via a Notice of Motion by the Deputy Leader Cllr Sean 
Morgan. Cllr Morgan stated “The world is on the cusp of a climate catastrophe and the negative 
trends we are already seeing can only be halted by transformative change in every aspect of how 
humans interact with nature.  As a council we are continuously seeking ways to improve the way we 
do things to protect the environment for future generations.  We must also look to take advantage of 
the positive economic and wellbeing impacts that transformative change can bring, and I am pleased 
that the motion was supported as this is a hugely important cause that requires our action.”  
 
The motion sets out a clear commitment to reduce carbon by developing an energy plan and calling 
on the UK and Welsh Government to provide the necessary resources and support to enable 
effective carbon reduction, also to work with the Public Service Board and Cardiff Capital Region City 
Deal partners to develop opportunities to develop carbon savings. 
 
Moving to a more flexible platform for service delivery the authority makes a clear statement to 
supportive transformative change.  The authority is the county borough’s largest employer and has 
thousands of employees who make journeys to offices, to sit at desks to undertake their job. It has 
been proven that the vast majority of these roles can become a lot more flexible and can be 
effectively delivered from home or other settings drastically cutting vehicle journeys.  Enhancing the 
level of flexible working across the Council would have a significant and positive impact on the 
climate. 
 
It is estimated that the during 2018 the Council’s fleet of vehicles (including grey fleet):  
 

• drove 8.5 million miles,  

• produced 5,538 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (CO2e),  

Page 118



• consumed 22,298 megawatt hours of energy,  

• emitted up to 18.4 tonnes of nitrogen oxides (NOX),  

• and up to 245 kg of particulates (PM).  
 
The directly operated fleets (including Plant and “Unknowns”) burnt at least 1.77 million litres of fuel 
at an estimated cost of £1.79 million (based on 2018 average price, ex VAT) and produced 4,745 
tonnes of CO2e. Even a small percentage change of say 5% in vehicle mileage will make a 
significant difference to emissions and expenditure.  
 
If Caerphilly is serious about supporting transformational change that will benefit the climate and 
environment where we live, work and play then flexible working must have its place.  Flexible working 
can be deployed to make better use of people and space assets, which can greatly improve 
sustainability while reducing cost and a company’s carbon footprint.  If you allow for homeworking as 
part of the move to flexible working, then this potentially supports a significant reduction in car 
journeys.  What’s more, designing a new, flexible-ready office offers the opportunity to “go green”. 
 
  
  

Page 119



Appendix 8 - IT and Equipment 
 
Prior to March 2020, the Authority operated in a fairly traditional manner with administrative staff 
mainly working from office accommodation using static IT infrastructure and fixed location equipment.  
Flexible working across the Authority was ad hoc and to an extent limited.    
 
In March 2020 the Authority transformed overnight moving to become a fully flexible workforce.  The 
move from office based working to home working was completed almost overnight.   
 
Due to the relatively low levels of investment in flexible IT equipment such as laptops, surfaces and i-
pads to date, the Authority has encouraged some staff to use their own devices to access Corporate 
systems via secure virtual private network during the pandemic.  This has allowed the Council to 
maintain the delivery of vital community services.   
 
As flexible working becomes the “new norm” the Authority will need to ensure that it equips its flexible 
workforce with the appropriate IT tools and equipment to ensure they can undertake their roles as 
productively and safely as possible.    

 
In recent months, as part of the Customer and Digital Strategy implementation, Cabinet have already 
taken the decision to deploy modern software in the form of Microsoft Office 365, Abavus and 
Thoughtonomy.  These tools have been fundamental to the Council’s recent success in dealing with 
Covid 19 and maintaining key public services.  To maximize the use of these tools and flexible 
working the Authority will now need to invest in appropriate IT equipment and infrastructure.  

 
Digital Services are currently undergoing a strategic service review with the support of an external 
party.  The future direction of travel in terms of IT infrastructure and operating model will be subject to 
an additional Cabinet report during the autumn 2020.   

 
As a result of recent work it is estimated that the Authority will need to develop a full device strategy 
and future operating model which will require a significant investment in flexible working equipment. 

 
It is not possible to fully estimate the cost of this migration at this point but the development of a 
sustainable investment plan for this equipment will be required going forward if the Council is to 
ensure its staff can maintain these flexible approaches.  
 
In addition to the procurement of appropriate IT equipment the authority will need to consider options 
for additional support for equipment such as desks and chairs to ensure a safe working environment 
for all flexible workers who could potentially be using their home as their office base in the future. 
 
  
  

Page 120



Appendix 9 - Investment and Property Requirements 
 
The goals of organisations in adopting flexible working are to create a more responsive, efficient and 
effective organisation, which improves business performance and increases customer satisfaction.   
 
By empowering employees to work how, where and when they choose, there is evidence that 
productivity is increased and service improvement can be provided by employees working in a way 
that suits them best. This in turn provides savings for the organisation.  These savings should be 
seen as the investment needed to stimulate the transformational change. 
 
In an American based study, Global Workplace Analytics reports that the average business would 
save $11,000 per person per year if staff with remote-compatible jobs worked from home just half the 
time.  Furthermore, a poll of 1,500 technology professionals revealed that 37% would take a pay cut 
of 10% if they could work from home.  This implies that there is a trade off in relation to the benefits 
that the employee values from working in an flexible manner against the desire to be financially 
driven. 
 
The highlighted section is of concern to us and would ask that it is removed from the report in its 
entirety.  We would not advocate or support any ‘trade off’ of pay and working from home. 
 
A flexible Working Business Case was reported to Carmarthenshire County Council CMT in May 
2017, which concluded potential significant 5-year cumulative savings of £5.3m after an initial capital 
investment of £2.1 million.  This could be achieved from the implementation of flexible working, there 
would also be significant implications for the Council’s office accommodation portfolio in terms of 
potential release of buildings.  
 
Pembrokeshire County Council also moved to a flexible working approach in 2018 and identified that 
revenue savings in the order of £925k per annum could be achieved.  Further, Monmouthshire 
County Council have also moved to a flexible working model and their Headquarter building provides 
only 88 desks for 200 staff that can use the facility coupled with their flexible working option. 
 
This invest to save approach could be developed for a Caerphilly business case. The savings would 
not happen overnight. However, in the longer term the property portfolio could be rationalised and 
reconfigured to suit flexible working. The office layouts would need to change and be more aligned 
with flexible working principles. There would be limited desks and more docking type workstations to 
provide flexibility on when and where you could work. 
 
The current pandemic may limit the reduction on office space in the short term due to social 
distancing measures.  Longer term there would be significant savings if the accommodation 
requirements were halved as a result of flexible working.  There would be reduced annual running 
costs for the wider property portfolio and possible one-off capital receipts from the sale of assets that 
would no longer be required. 
 
An initial exercise undertaking by the Property Services has identified that currently there are circa 
2000 desks available within the authority for use by staff. If service provision was undertaken in an 
flexible manner, there could be a property portfolio rationalisation which could result in 8 buildings 
being surplus to requirements.   
 
Service provision would be delivered from 3 core locations, Ty Penallta, Tredomen and Tir y berth.  
This rationalisation would limit desk availability to approx. 1300 desks, a reduction of about one third.  
However, with social distancing requirements the availability of desk space will be significantly less 
than 1300. 
 
If the move to a flexible working platform is supported there will need to be a detailed property 
portfolio report presented detailing the options available along with the relevant cost implications.  
 
  
  

Page 121

http://globalworkplaceanalytics.com/telecommuting-statistics


Appendix 10 – Flexible Working Staff Survey June 2020 
 
The flexible working staff survey undertaken in June 2020 had 1483 respondents. Some of the main 
highlights from the survey include the following: 
 

• 83% worked in a flexible way during the coronavirus restrictions. 

• 95% worked away from the office full-time during this period. 

• 66% of respondents normally work from either Ty Penallta or Ty Tredomen. 

• 78% stated that they would like to work in a more flexible way in the future. 

• Only 8% stated that they did not want to work in a more flexible way in the future. 

• 98% stated that flexible working provided a better work-life balance for them. 

• 84% stated that flexible working demonstrated trust in staff from the organisation. 

• 84% stated that flexible working would allow them to achieve greater productivity. 

• 93% stated that flexible working would support better mental health and well-being. 

• 80% considered flexible working would provide a positive impact on the environment. 
 
However: 
 

• 74% stated that they thought that would have less effective teamworking. 

• 93% stated that it could be open to abuse. 

• 77% had concerns that the authority could see less productivity. 

• 78% stated that flexible working may have a negative impact on mental health. 

• 67% thought that lack of equipment may be an obstacle to flexible working. 
 

Overall: 
 

• 50% stated that they like to split their time between home and office working. 

• 23% had a preference for working from home 

• 21% wanted to work from the office but have the option to work from home occasionally. 

• Only 2% wanted to be office based. 
 
The analysis above provides a good indication that the staff preference is that the authority should 
work in a more flexible way. 73% preferred to work from home or have a balance between home and 
office working and only 2% preferred an office-based approach. 
 
There is support and concern in equal measure in relation to mental health and well-being. 93% have 
stated that flexible working would be better for mental health but 78% were also concerned over the 
effect that it would also have on mental health. 
 
Some of the other main outcomes indicate the positive impact that flexible working could have on 
productivity, 84% stating it would improve, along with the trust that this approach demonstrated in 
staff, 84% supporting this statement.  Again, this is balanced off with 93% indicating that this 
approach could be open to abuse and 77% stating that they would have concerns over productivity. 
 
The outcome is clear that 78% want to work in a more flexible way in the future and only 8% were 
against this approach. A fuller analysis of the survey and comments is included in appendix 2. 

Page 122



 
CABINET – 14TH OCTOBER 2020 

 
SUBJECT:  CASH HANDLING 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
 

 

1. The attached report was considered by the Policy and Resources Scrutiny 
Committee on 29th September 2020. The report provided the Scrutiny 
Committee with an update on the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on cash 
payments, and outlined the steps that need to be taken in the short-term, and the 
medium to longer-term to ensure the continuity of income levels 

 

2. Section 5.2 of the report provides details of the key activity currently being 
undertaken in the areas where cash payments have traditionally been of 
significant financial value. Particular attention was drawn to the doorstep cash 
collection service provided by Caerphilly Housing which was temporarily 
withdrawn in March 2020 when “lockdown” was announced. 

 

3. The scrutiny committee were advised that the tenants using the service have all 
been contacted by the Rents Team and informed that the service could not be 
provided in the short-term and were assisted to either make payments at the 
post office or via telephone payments to the contact centre. Members were 
assured that the proposed consultation outlined in the report, for the longer term, 
will ensure that all tenants are listened to and will be provided with an 
appropriate response.  

 

4. Members noted that prior to lockdown the rent collector spent a great deal of 
time travelling across the county borough to collect payments on a fortnightly 
basis. It was noted that this method costs the Authority £6.75 per transaction. By 
changing to either a post office or telephone payment tenants can pay weekly at 
their convenience.  

 

5. The scrutiny committee were advised that should the doorstep cash collection 
service cease on a permanent basis the rent collector will be transferred to the 
tenancy support team who can support any tenants in difficulty.  

 

6. Members were also advised that in terms of wider cash payments there are no 
immediate plans to reopen our cash offices and that prior to the implementation 
of the recent “local lockdown”, the potential for offering a limited cash payment 
service at Ty Penallta was considered. However, on balance it was concluded 
that the potential benefits of reopening the cash desks at Ty Penallta were 
outweighed by the disadvantages. 

 

Page 123

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 7



7. Following consideration and discussion the Policy and Resources Scrutiny 
Committee agreed by the majority present to recommend to Cabinet: 

 
(I) That current service users be consulted on the termination of the doorstep 

collection service for housing rents and council tax. 
 

(II) That subject to the outcome of the consultation being supportive the 
decision to terminate the doorstep collection service be delegated to the 
Chief Housing Officer and Cabinet Member. 

 
(III) That the option of reopening the cash desks in Ty Penallta is not pursued 

at this time as the potential benefits are outweighed by the disadvantages. 
Alternatively, it is proposed that we continue to build on the good work 
undertaken in recent months to promote further channel shift as our current 
default position. 

 
(IV) That the medium to longer-term service offer should be determined by the 

pending review of customer services and the wider reviews that will be 
undertaken as part of the strengthening team Caerphilly report that was 
approved by Cabinet on the 22nd July 2020. 

 
 

Author:  Catherine Forbes-Thompson, Scrutiny Manager – forbecl@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 
Appendices: Report to Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 29th September 2020 – 

Agenda Item 8. 

Page 124



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 

29TH SEPTEMBER 2020 
 
 

SUBJECT: CASH HANDLING 
 

REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 
SERVICES 

 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with an update on the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on 

cash payments, and to consider the steps that need to be taken in the short-term, and the 
medium to longer-term to ensure the continuity of income levels. 

 
1.2 To seek the views of the Scrutiny Committee on recommendations that will subsequently be 

presented to Cabinet for consideration.  
 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Covid-19 has had a significant impact on income levels for the council for a range of reasons. 

These include the temporary closure of income generating services, the closure of cash 
offices and the economic impact of the pandemic on our residents and businesses. 

 
2.2 The Welsh Government (WG) has funded much of the income lost for the first quarter of the 

2020/21 financial year and has recently announced additional funding of £264m for local 
authorities to meet the ongoing financial challenges presented by Covid-19. An element of this 
newly announced funding will be targeted at addressing income losses moving forward. 
However, it should be noted that WG will not fund any income losses for the HRA on the basis 
that not all local authorities have retained their housing stock, and the sector would not be 
treated equally when Large Scale Voluntary Transfers and traditional Registered Social 
Landlords are also not receiving any assistance. 

 
2.3 Appendices 1 and 2 provide details of the cash payments received by the council during the 

2019/20 financial year. These total some £10.24m albeit that the details provided in Appendix 
2 include both cash and cheque payments as it is not possible to report on these separately. 

 
2.4 The most significant categories of cash payments during 2019/20 were Council Tax (£2.41m), 

Housing Rents (£2.79m), Schools (£2.81m) and Leisure Centres and Tourism Venues 
(£0.962m). 

  
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Members are asked to consider the content of the report and the following recommendations 

to Cabinet: - 
 

Appendix

Page 125



3.1.1 That current service users be consulted on the termination of the doorstep collection service 
for housing rents and council tax. 

 
3.1.2 That subject to the outcome of the consultation being supportive the decision to terminate the 

doorstep collection service be delegated to the Chief Housing Officer and Cabinet Member.  
 
3.1.3 That the option of reopening the cash desks in Ty Penallta is not pursued at this time as the 

potential benefits are outweighed by the disadvantages. Alternatively, it is proposed that we 
continue to build on the good work undertaken in recent months to promote further channel 
shift as our current default position. 

 
3.1.4 That the medium to longer-term service offer should be determined by the pending review of 

Customer Services and the wider reviews that will be undertaken as part of the Strengthening 
Team Caerphilly report that was approved by Cabinet on the 22nd July 2020. 

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To ensure that the views of the Scrutiny Committee are considered by Cabinet. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT  
 
5.1 Current Position  
 
5.1.1 The temporary closure of the Council’s Cash Offices due to the ongoing pandemic situation 

has removed the facilities for our residents to pay with cash. Appendix 3 provides details of 
total payments made by type during April and July 2020 compared to the same period last 
year. 

 
5.1.2 Total receipts have reduced by some £2.7m for the reasons already set out above. WG 

funding has been confirmed for the majority of these losses but notably not for income lost on 
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). WG will not fund any income losses for the HRA on the 
basis that not all local authorities have retained their housing stock, and the sector would not 
be treated equally when Large Scale Voluntary Transfers and traditional Registered Social 
Landlords are also not receiving any assistance. 

 
5.1.3 Whilst cash payments were virtually zero between April and July 2020 it is interesting to note 

the channel shift to alternative types of payment methods being used by our residents. The 
most significant increases compared to the same period last year are noted in the following 
areas: - 

 

Payment Method Increase 
(%) 

Bank Payments 4.23 

CCBC Internet Payments 11.94 

CCBC Automated Telephone Line 4.16 

Telephone Payment via Advisor 11.34 

Post Office Cards 3.28 

 
5.1.4 The above shows a positive shift from cash to alternative payment methods and this should 

be maintained and encouraged in the longer-term as the receipting and processing of cash 
payments is resource intensive and expensive. However, we must not lose site of the fact that 
cash is the preferred method of payment for a cohort of our residents, albeit that this can be 
done in different ways e.g. the use of Post Office payment cards. 

 
 
 
 

Page 126



5.2 Steps Being Taken to Promote Channel Shift 
 
5.2.1 The following paragraphs summarise some of the key activity currently being undertaken in 

the areas where cash payments have traditionally been of significant financial value. 
 
 Council Tax   
 
5.2.2  Council tax collection rates have been adversely impacted by the economic consequences of 

Covid-19. Our collection rate is currently 2.5% lower than for the same period last year, albeit 
that an element of this will be due to payment deferments being agreed where requested. 

 
5.2.3 Due to Covid-19 our normal recovery action processes were suspended at the beginning of 

the financial year with our alternative approach being to issue “soft reminders” to those council 
tax payers who are in arrears. This approach has resulted in improved collection rates albeit 
that we are still below normal levels. We have worked closely with those residents 
experiencing financial difficulties and have helped them access Universal Credit where eligible 
and have also assisted them with applying for support through the Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme (CTRS). We have also encouraged council tax payers to pay through alternative 
methods including direct debits and the use of Post Office cards and we are making good 
progress with this. 

 
5.2.4 From September 2020 we have reinstated our formal recovery processes and this will enable 

us to pursue payment from those council tax payers who are persistently in arrears.  
 
 Housing Rents 
 
5.2.5 Channel shift in respect of housing rent payments broadly follows the trends set out above in 

paragraph 5.1.3. 
 
5.2.6 Since 1996 a doorstep rent collection service has been offered to our tenants to collect rent 

and council tax. Initially the service was offered to all tenants but over the years has 
been restricted based on the circumstances of the household. The fortnightly service 
is available to tenants in sheltered accommodation or those in receipt of Disability 
Living Allowance / Personal Independence Payments. 

 
5.2.7 The number of tenants using the service has steadily reduced as more tenants have become 

familiar with other methods of payment e.g. online and direct debit. As at March 2020 only 365 
tenants (3%) used this service out of a total of 10,740. Ten years ago there were in excess of 
2000. 

 
5.2.8 Only 1 full-time equivalent rent collector remains and an electronic receipting machine is used 

to collect cash from tenants at their home. No other forms of payment can be made to the rent 
collector only cash.  

 
5.2.9 The doorstep cash collection service provided by Caerphilly Housing was temporarily 

withdrawn in March 2020 when “lockdown” was announced. The tenants using the service 
have all been contacted by the Rents Team by telephone and informed that the service could 
not be provided in the short-term and have been supported to move to other payment 
methods. As a result of this: - 

 
➢ 41% are currently paying using Post Office payment cards in their local Post Office; 
➢ 39% are paying over the phone with an advisor; and 
➢ 20% are using the council’s online payment system. 

 
5.2.10 Previously it was thought that tenants would have found it difficult to pay rent without the rent 

collector calling. Despite some initial reluctance and concern, experience over the last few 
months has shown that tenants can pay by other methods but have previously chosen not to.   

 

Page 127



5.2.11 In the past, visits from the rent collector were seen as contributing to the well-being of tenants 
who had few visitors. However, the Council currently supports residents in many ways e.g. 
Community Connectors, Estate Management Officers, Tenant Support Officers, Tenant 
Liaison Officers and Surveyors.   

 
5.2.12 In addition, the Rents Section has developed a comprehensive support service to tenants that 

provides advice on welfare benefit entitlement, water rate tariffs and payment of rents.  The 
team has contacted 950 tenants and assisted them to claim over £1 million additional income 
during the 2019/20 financial year. 

  
5.2.13 Caerphilly is now the only council in Wales providing a doorstep rent collection service and it 

is proposed that current service users be consulted on the termination of the doorstep 
collection service. 

 
5.2.14 In the broader context, a large percentage of council tenants previously paid in cash at the 

council’s local cash offices. These tenants are also in the process of being contacted by the 
Rents Team and supported to move to other payment methods. This includes Post Office 
payment cards where they can continue to pay locally using cash, and telephone payments 
where they have the support of an advisor to make the payment.   

 
 5.2.15 Across all council services 1,860 new Post Office cards have been ordered between April and 

August 2020. This is an increase of 1,613 on the same period last year. The use of these 
cards not only reduces the need for the council to handle cash but also drives footfall to Post 
Offices and town centres at a key time. 

 
 Schools 
 
5.2.16 A significant proportion of the cash income for schools relates to charges for the provision of 

school meals. 
 
5.2.17 Cashless catering has been piloted in a small number of schools and a proposal has been 

prepared to roll this out across the wider school estate. This is the subject of a separate report 
on this evening’s agenda. 

 
 Leisure Centres and Tourism Venues 
 
5.2.18 Leisure Centres are opening on a phased basis from September 2020 and will not be 

accepting cash payments, at least in the short to medium-term. Non-cash payments are also 
being encouraged for Tourism Venues but cash payments will be accepted in some areas due 
to current limitations in payment systems. This will be addressed moving forward to ensure 
that non-cash payments will become the default position. 

 
5.3 Potential for Opening Ty Penallta to take Cash Payments 
 
5.3.1 The content of this report has demonstrated the significant channel shift that has already 

taken place in response to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. It is important that we 
continue to build on this and as part of the budget proposals agreed by Council in February 
2020 a service review is already planned for our Customer Services offer. 

 
5.3.2 There are no immediate plans to reopen our cash offices. However, prior to the 

implementation of the recent “local lockdown” in Caerphilly CBC, the potential for offering a 
limited cash payment service at Ty Penallta was considered. 

 
5.3.3 From the outset it is important to stress that providing a cash payment facility at Ty Penallta 

would only contribute to the collection of council tax and housing rent payments. It is also 
worth noting that Neath Port Talbot CBC is the only other council in Wales that still has a 
manned cash desk and they are looking at using the Covid-19 response as a lever to stop 
taking cash payments in the future.  

 

Page 128



5.3.4 The proposal to reopen the cash desks at Ty Penallta was considered feasible but there are a 
number of practical considerations: - 

 
➢ There would be a requirement for a security guard at the front door to ensure safe 

distancing/numbers in the building at a cost of circa £13.50 per hour.  
➢ Facilities Management would need to reconfigure the current layout using existing 

furniture to ensure that all waiting areas are set at a safe distance of 2 metres as per 
current WG guidance. There are already Risk Assessments approved by the Corporate 
Management Team and the Trade Unions that would ensure compliance with the latest 
WG guidance.  

➢ Signage would be required but this can be produced in-house. 
➢ We would need to ensure that hand sanitiser is available and that a strict cleaning 

regime is in place. 
➢ Protocols for the safe handling of cash would need to be established in line with Health 

& Safety requirements. 
 
5.3.5 Whilst the above are manageable there are a number of other factors that require 

consideration: - 
  

➢ The impact on the Contact Centre’s current call capacity. Some staff have already been 
redeployed to support contact tracing, and opening the cash desks at Ty Penallta will 
require a minimum of 3 staff. 

➢ The Customer First service is currently handling all calls for the majority of the council 
including the high-volume areas of Sundry Debtors, Housing benefits and Council Tax. 
We have recently recommenced formal recovery action in these areas, which has led to 
a significant increase in call volumes. 

➢ Ty Penallta is not on a bus route or in a town centre. Residents will have to drive to the 
site to make cash payments and we may come under pressure to open other cash 
offices throughout the county borough. 

➢ Visitors to Ty Penallta are likely to demand access to a wider range of services than just 
the ability to pay by cash. 

➢ Government advice is to use cashless processes wherever possible so the enabling of 
cash payment facilities is contrary to this. 

➢ The recently announced “local lockdown” is also a further major consideration.  
 

5.3.6 On balance it is concluded that the potential benefits of reopening the cash desks at Ty 
Penallta are outweighed by the disadvantages. It is also worth noting that the council’s 
communications team has advised that the current closure of cash payment facilities has not 
featured as an issue on any of our communication channels. 

 
 Conclusion 
 
5.3.7 Covid-19 has had a significant impact on income levels for the council and there has been 

significant channel shift in the types of payment methods being used by our residents. 
 
5.3.8 Recent months have shown that housing tenants do not rely upon the doorstep rent collection 

service. It is an expensive service that brings risks to both tenant and landlord. The council 
has far more effective support and engagement mechanisms in place. 

 
5.3.9 There are no plans to reopen cash offices at the present time. The option of providing a 

limited cash payment service at Ty Penallta has been considered. However, on balance the 
advantages are considered to be outweighed by the disadvantages at the present time. 

 
5.3.10 It is proposed that the medium to longer-term service offer should be determined by the 

pending review of Customer Services and the wider reviews that will be undertaken as part of 
the Strengthening Team Caerphilly report that was approved by Cabinet on the 22nd July 
2020. 

 
 

Page 129



6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 It is assumed that the Covid-19 pandemic will continue to impact on services for the 

foreseeable future.  
 
 
7. LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 Effective financial planning and financial control, including ensuring that effective 

arrangements are in place for the collection of sums due to the Council, contribute to the 
following Well-being Goals within the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015: - 

 

• A prosperous Wales. 

• A resilient Wales. 

• A healthier Wales. 

• A more equal Wales. 

• A Wales of cohesive communities. 

• A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language. 

• A globally responsible Wales. 
 
   
8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 Effective financial management is a key element in ensuring that the Well-being Goals within 

the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 are met. 
 
 
9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed in respect of the possible removal of 

the doorstep rent collection service and is attached at Appendix 4. 
 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 As set out throughout the report the council offers a range of alternative types of payment 

methods to our residents, all of which are funded through the core revenue budget. 
 
10.2 Cash payments are generally resource intensive and expensive to process. This is illustrated 

by the figures below for the doorstep rent collection service: - 
 

➢ Cost for rent collector - £6.70 per transaction (this includes salaries, mileage, IT and 
internal overheads). 

➢ In comparison, the Post Office charges an initial set-up cost of £1.90 and an 
ongoing transaction cost of £0.54. 

 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 Should a decision ultimately be taken to end the doorstep rent collection service the remaining 

member of staff will be redeployed to the tenancy support team within Housing Rents to 
increase capacity for this service. 

 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 There are no consultation responses that have not been reflected in this report. 
 
 

Page 130



13. STATUTORY POWER 
 
13.1 Local Government Act 1972 and 2000. 
 
 
Author: Stephen Harris, Head of Financial Services & S151 Officer 

Tel: 01443 863022  E-mail: harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 
Consultees: Corporate Management Team 
 Cllr Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member for Finance, Performance & Customer 

Service 
 Cllr Lisa Phipps, Cabinet Member for Homes, Places & Tourism 
 Cllr James Pritchard, Chair, Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee 
 Cllr Gez Kirby, Vice-Chair, Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee  

Cllr Andrew Whitcombe, Chair, Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee 
 Cllr Christine Forehead, Vice-Chair, Housing & Regeneration Scrutiny Committee  

Liz Lucas, Head of Customer & Digital Services 
Karen Williams, Customer Services Digital Hub Manager 
Shaun Couzens, Chief Housing Officer 
Sandra Isaacs, Rents Manager, Housing Rents 

 
 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix 1 – Cash Transactions by Location/Fund 2019/10 
 
Appendix 2 – Cash/Cheque Transactions by Site 2019/20 
 
Appendix 3 – Income by Payment Method 
 
Appendix 4 – Equalities Impact Assessment – Removal of Doorstep Rent Collection Service 
 
 

Page 131

mailto:harrisr@caerphilly.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1

Month Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £

April 1083 96,340 1184 112,644 2144 184,421 350 34,821 622 51,702 760 69,103 616 79,753 16 996 4 1659 6 501 729 37078 7514 669,019

May 1008 75,492 1194 103,851 2062 165,026 303 23,623 563 42,837 759 58,769 602 62,321 21 4,781 6 3662 3 251 809 36667 7330 577,281

June 953 71,988 1087 89,668 1918 145,571 293 24,033 534 38,795 713 60,106 523 59,877 7 595 2 740 2 296 696 38195 6728 529,864

July 1034 74,261 1074 91,689 1997 149,515 310 24,080 616 46,103 715 53,882 595 68,410 20 3,446 5 1819 2 195 775 37711 7143 551,110

August 828 61,991 943 83,186 1690 137,252 251 20,537 508 39,103 590 49,604 499 61,225 20 4,105 2 160 8 744 435 20576 5774 478,482

September 955 70,797 1048 88,267 1862 139,459 303 24,734 533 39,999 665 48,742 566 63,032 10 18,171 3 1424 7 835 875 37732 6827 533,192

October 899 67,373 1003 90,843 1904 149,362 303 26,503 538 40,693 696 53,492 579 61,095 9 1,500 2 517 3 200 712 30955 6648 522,535

November 898 62,875 1043 90,224 1857 140,600 307 24,243 507 38,855 646 52,284 568 70,000 6 1,347 2 2636 2 100 367 23467 6203 506,632

December 636 46,739 697 60,306 1337 104,916 221 17,573 369 29,415 459 34,867 382 41,088 14 2,726 0 0 2 96 278 13262 4395 350,989

January 885 64,445 998 85,641 1814 140,970 292 24,090 515 41,045 665 55,298 539 62,643 9 2,214 2 875 4 422 522 25412 6245 503,056

February 698 54,804 722 67,274 1375 102,524 192 14,726 394 27,530 501 41,004 339 37,003 13 2,667 1 430 0 0 596 25381 4831 373,344

March 454 38,713 482 57,256 922 85,668 133 12,978 268 27,971 337 35,236 290 46,910 5 920 0 0 0 0 298 11719 3189 317,371

Total 10331 785,818 11475 1,020,848 20882 1,645,283 3258 271,942       5967 464,048                 7506 612,388       6098 713,360       150 43,468       29 13,922           39 3,640       7092 338,156        72827 5,912,873

Misc. Income

Month Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £

April 2527 322,520 25 7,895 4300 280,534 226 28,672 13 324 1 54 1 69 328 24,275 92 4,646 1 30 7514 669,019

May 2474 240,037 26 9,045 4229 273,113 155 21,842 13 433 1 38 1 69 345 28,381 86 4,322 0 0 7330 577,281

June 2276 218,687 24 9,103 3908 255,705 126 17,080 13 419 0 0 1 69 295 24,141 85 4,660 0 0 6728 529,864

July 2306 222,563 28 10,211 4133 258,242 188 23,585 20 1,269 0 0 1 69 379 31,074 88 4,096 0 0 7143 551,110

August 2360 224,072 25 9,863 2840 195,427 131 19,453 24 550 0 0 1 69 294 24,109 99 4,940 0 0 5774 478,482

September 2262 215,673 23 8,838 4040 237,333 151 25,162 22 565 0 0 1 69 253 41,874 75 3,678 0 0 6827 533,192

October 2234 220,589 21 8,738 3854 237,892 187 22,772 21 675 0 0 1 69 247 27,472 83 4,327 0 0 6648 522,535

November 2129 204,819 24 8,002 3537 241,621 163 21,109 28 3,674 0 0 1 69 242 23,604 79 3,733 0 0 6203 506,632

December 1614 159,117 19 7,997 2395 147,883 112 16,668 16 376 0 0 1 69 173 15,371 65 3,508 0 0 4395 350,989

January 2022 200,467 23 9,748 3674 236,084 195 28,244 20 902 0 0 1 69 238 23,876 72 3,665 0 0 6245 503,056

February 767 66,869 13 7,371 3686 256,797 111 15,741 17 2,784 0 0 1 69 185 21,273 51 2,439 0 0 4831 373,344

March 475 113,414 6 6,496 2439 166,025 80 10,321 15 270 0 0 1 69 121 15,110 52 5,666 0 0 3189 317,371

Total 23446 2,408,827 257 103,307 43035 2,786,657 1825 250,650 222 12,241 2 92 12 828 3100 300,561 927 49,680 1 30 72827 5,912,873

Rent Collectors

Cash Transactions by  Location 2019-20

Cash Transactions by Fund  2019-20
Excess Notices

Bargoed Blackwood Caerphilly Pontlottyn Risca

Grand Total

Grand TotalNewbridge Planning Bereavement Services Park Services

Housing Advance Welsh Water

Ty Penallta

Council Tax NNDR Rents Sundry Debtors Overpaid Housing Benefits Housing Loans

P
age 132



APPENDIX 2

Site Name April £ May £ June £ July £ August £ September £ October £ November £ December £ January £ February £ March £ Total £

Blackwood Miners Institute 7,096 5,269 4,692 4,598 1,674 2,986 8,258 14,300 22,812 5,722 10,278 737 88,422

Aberbargoed Skate Park 261 187 0 351 282 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,081

Music Services 1,560 971 2,448 903 0 1,500 2,200 2,920 3,350 4,022 1,203 295 21,372

Ty Penallta Glass 

Restaurant/Meals Direct 12,825 13,310 12,776 12,879 11,568 13,154 14,511 13,552 12,356 12,601 11,475 8,476 149,481

Parc Cwm Darran 988 1,454 1,647 1,958 1,451 748 115 0 0 0 0 0 8,360

Learning Centre Pengam 74 57 294 16 0 17 38 255 195 253 241 45 1,484

Bedwas Comp Kitchen 1,206 1,492 1,590 1,104 0 2,609 1,985 1,867 1,253 1,742 1,343 940 17,131

Blackwood Comp Kitchen 2,437 3,142 3,085 3,104 0 4,963 4,087 4,271 3,140 4,087 2,722 2,251 37,290

Heolddu Comp Kitchen 2,972 3,673 3,976 3,756 0 5,627 3,954 4,476 3,068 4,544 2,777 2,583 41,405

Islwyn Comp Kitchen 3,157 3,790 3,356 2,184 0 5,290 3,928 3,731 3,254 4,172 2,856 2,676 38,394

Lewis Girls Comp Kitchen 1,546 1,826 1,955 1,289 0 3,091 2,225 2,293 1,695 1,873 1,131 1,053 19,978

YGC Cwm Rhymni Kitchen 1,646 2,049 2,331 1,809 0 3,639 2,391 2,660 1,769 2,519 1,536 1,464 23,812

Risca Comp Kitchen 1,322 1,760 2,481 1,332 0 3,364 2,590 2,542 1,850 2,127 1,452 1,072 21,891

St Cenydd Comp Kithcen 3,311 3,715 4,975 2,849 0 7,365 4,916 5,478 3,223 4,516 3,202 2,474 46,024

YGG Y Gwyndy Comp Kitchen 1,366 1,563 2,118 1,094 0 2,553 1,552 2,073 1,463 1,820 1,452 1,166 18,220

Aberbargoed Library 17 40 21 38 30 23 32 24 16 23 9 11 285

Abercarn Library 87 60 81 75 114 88 107 96 55 61 55 56 935

Aertridwr Library 85 99 80 123 107 104 161 95 63 69 71 50 1,107

Bargoed Library 387 356 404 416 424 460 425 413 217 392 304 169 4,367

Bedwas Library 75 124 86 132 123 104 65 45 40 82 56 34 967

Blackwood Library 513 506 414 458 487 547 470 383 269 449 390 227 5,113

Caerphilly Library 771 909 912 988 802 1,147 1,017 816 516 778 965 603 10,222

Deri Library 17 9 24 25 15 20 21 16 25 15 14 6 207

Llanbradach Library 18 39 35 26 52 47 49 41 43 25 19 18 415

Machen Library 40 25 26 32 36 26 24 10 12 32 28 4 293

Nelson Library 121 113 106 145 92 113 159 128 65 126 90 62 1,321

New Tredegar Library 88 102 87 134 105 70 114 147 128 139 96 97 1,307

Newbridge Library 162 229 244 181 188 252 180 154 92 154 158 63 2,056

Oakdale Library 79 109 74 96 92 83 90 93 67 89 80 30 983

Pengam Library 60 30 38 22 21 22 20 32 6 28 18 4 301

Rhymney Library 259 181 166 193 216 182 230 227 112 181 182 121 2,249

Risca Library 750 773 893 783 694 810 945 830 499 148 719 499 8,343

Ystrad Mynach Library 271 329 321 332 393 347 379 353 213 319 235 157 3,650

Beatrice Webb 20 3 22 16 16 0 0 9 3 16 13 50 168

Blackberry Catering 1,098 1,073 1,416 1,268 1,057 1,286 1,449 2,152 1,802 1,607 1,492 1,237 16,936

Brodawel 0 0 0 0 16 0 0 0 41 19 4 0 80

Brondeg Day Centre 2,366 2,844 2,831 3,682 2,628 2,799 2,713 2,803 2,694 2,932 3,148 1,602 33,042

Brooklands Day Centre 1,425 1,226 1,444 1,637 1,322 1,915 1,975 1,963 1,720 1,694 1,766 1,112 19,199

Castle View 9 28 25 28 75 50 0 158 19 99 0 136 628

Enrgleyn Resource Base 1,547 1,627 1,568 1,971 1,850 1,846 1,958 1,813 1,671 1,642 1,739 1,248 20,478

Gwerin Day Centre 228 193 97 113 137 330 387 322 290 516 475 242 3,331

Markham Resource Base 59 81 64 81 64 81 129 97 64 89 89 56 954

Oaklands Day Centre 924 1,034 999 1,243 1,143 1,244 1,169 1,102 1,030 1,286 1,238 958 13,370

Pontllanfraith Woodcraft 1,044 973 1,586 1,399 955 1,441 1,338 2,657 1,572 1,708 1,057 875 16,605

Sirhowy Crafts 468 496 1,001 674 938 1,556 2,100 2,753 1,778 1,980 1,866 1,136 16,746

Springfields 363 314 330 306 322 626 677 753 596 870 1,153 846 7,157

Twyncarn Day Centre 623 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 623

Ty Clyd 95 3 141 14 9 6 9 123 3 139 34 96 675

Ty Iscoed 125 113 132 124 41 157 134 45 84 167 102 89 1,313

Windy Ridge 368 60 678 0 0 0 0 507 935 0 0 0 2,548

Ystrad Mynach Day Centre 3,051 3,147 2,586 3,985 3,409 5,539 5,449 4,795 4,302 5,318 5,126 3,454 50,160

Blackwood Adult Education 49 558 64 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 681

Oxford House Adult Education 443 599 526 142 1,787 983 890 710 33,424 894 533 533 41,464

Cwmcarn Fforest Drive 20,192 20,820 13,801 23,111 28,756 16,557 15,342 14,916 12,125 18,343 10,292 6,759 201,014

Llancaiach Fawr Manor 7,801 14,297 9,706 10,151 18,416 12,104 11,221 14,104 11,418 9,222 7,098 2,620 128,159

Visit Caerphilly 10,762 11,504 10,772 13,684 13,860 10,114 9,863 9,258 10,233 8,646 3,890 0 112,585

Winding House 1,049 825 750 754 1,326 1,177 746 917 753 1,048 1,301 318 10,964

Bedwas Leisure Centre 991 730 789 758 769 1,195 702 1,061 361 985 796 1,018 10,153

Caerphilly Leisure Centre 9,863 11,048 10,691 11,382 11,796 9,597 10,869 9,061 6,707 12,888 12,439 5,877 122,217

Cefn fforest Leisure Centre 2,697 2,588 2,595 3,088 3,488 2,473 2,639 2,285 1,654 3,337 3,708 1,972 32,524

Centre Of Excellence 1,516 985 315 747 785 418 1,684 1,821 2,596 2,223 2,473 2,113 17,675

Heolddu Leisure Centre 4,084 4,121 4,102 4,284 5,678 3,730 3,991 3,082 2,604 6,522 4,593 3,645 50,435

New Tredegar Leisure Centre 1,937 1,362 1,886 1,551 1,303 1,463 1,641 1,082 552 1,706 885 350 15,717

Newbridge Leisure Centre 7,910 6,869 8,790 8,933 10,734 7,192 7,446 6,012 3,900 9,204 7,639 4,060 88,689

Pontllanfraith Leisure Centre 4,655 4,983 3,502 3,558 3,287 4,016 3,050 3,331 4,490 4,641 4,542 3,737 47,791

Risca Leisure Centre 10,518 10,673 8,901 9,040 9,572 9,457 9,358 8,402 5,624 13,648 9,418 5,811 110,421

Sue Noakes Leisure Centre 1,266 907 1,511 1,431 974 900 1,938 849 736 1,080 1,129 936 13,659

Bedwas High School 0 698 890 2,967 0 7,020 3,665 1,536 437 2,188 3,657 6,594 29,651

Blackwood Comprehensive 844 4,197 74 1,445 596 568 5,249 3,181 383 0 415 22,524 39,474

Heolddu Comprehensive 0 0 1,553 2,993 0 11,319 1,435 0 0 853 1,007 0 19,159

Idris Davies Comprehensive 7,900 25,794 9,456 11,860 7,564 5,695 11,216 12,274 11,733 16,965 12,671 0 133,127

Islwyn High School 3,055 5,205 4,436 9,228 0 1,108 4,454 1,337 5,811 2,736 5,051 4,326 46,748

Lewis Girls School 602 841 2,151 3,119 0 3,250 4,455 504 2,186 565 4,806 619 23,098

Lewis School - Pengam 0 516 2,003 1,532 0 1,057 4,884 2,236 470 496 1,178 4,437 18,810

Cash/Cheque Transactions by Site 2019-20

Page 133



Newbridge Comprehensive 10,760 19,424 13,012 17,490 0 22,104 21,122 0 15,982 19,399 14,181 0 153,474

Risca Comprehensive 0 0 0 10,017 0 0 0 0 0 1,369 0 180 11,566

St Cenydd Comprehensive 247 3,116 4,140 1,644 0 2,346 455 434 7,800 3,791 4,129 0 28,103

St Martins Comprehensive 5,700 13,296 12,839 12,874 0 17,074 19,985 13,089 7,644 15,835 10,382 12,295 141,014

Trinity Fields 1,698 4,232 4,536 3,996 0 3,540 3,167 4,242 3,017 5,328 29,025 2,426 65,208

YGG Cwm Rhymni 2,223 2,572 101 2,884 0 70 993 0 0 0 10,767 16,029 35,638

Aberbargoed Primary 1,845 1,797 2,491 2,761 0 2,456 2,457 3,974 2,786 2,424 1,908 1,875 26,774

Abercarn Primary 2,300 29 3,215 19 0 0 248 0 848 210 457 0 7,324

Bedwas Infants 912 819 5,703 857 0 933 980 1,163 941 1,375 760 832 15,275

Bedwas Juniors 3,443 1,535 1,919 1,618 0 1,425 1,375 1,576 1,126 2,360 1,164 4,617 22,159

Blackwood Primary 560 543 719 778 0 133 1,141 4,241 525 558 376 785 10,359

Bryn Awel Primary 485 3,518 3,988 514 0 497 326 315 1,148 2,263 0 1,089 14,142

Bryn Primary 1,014 1,616 1,864 5,435 0 1,328 1,336 1,890 2,614 1,895 1,214 2,230 22,436

Cefn Fforest Primary 1,509 1,979 6,337 2,792 0 1,673 1,817 1,420 1,488 2,630 3,147 1,038 25,829

Coed Y Brain Primary 4,779 1,702 2,456 1,835 0 12,562 2,249 2,586 2,314 2,551 1,757 3,618 38,407

Crumlin High Level 1,117 3,434 1,272 799 0 2,558 1,589 2,363 3,379 1,524 632 2,180 20,846

Cwm Aber Infants 480 866 1,368 548 0 487 638 1,164 901 799 580 547 8,379

Cwm Aber Juniors 644 1,129 823 1,663 0 1,158 1,772 1,229 1,899 2,814 1,474 1,242 15,848

Cwm Glas Infants 1,163 1,041 1,031 951 0 2,254 611 893 868 824 1,504 713 11,853

Cwm Ifor Primary 806 1,563 1,594 1,643 0 1,643 1,643 4,671 1,878 6,782 4,537 4,565 31,325

Cwmcarn Primary 1,649 4,162 2,199 2,290 0 4,546 3,143 3,911 7,857 2,686 1,678 7,268 41,389

Cwmfelinfach Primary 1,616 4,555 3,277 2,230 0 1,832 1,413 3,305 1,753 2,151 2,191 1,537 25,862

Cwrt Rawlin 4,539 5,053 8,369 11,393 0 2,891 9,046 3,660 9,654 7,501 5,505 6,451 74,060

Deri Primary 1,155 1,135 1,476 876 0 1,231 1,057 1,713 1,314 2,681 1,095 954 14,687

Derwendeg Primary 2,427 1,256 2,848 2,905 0 1,057 3,590 3,927 3,023 1,653 3,345 1,620 27,649

Fleur De Lys Primary 79 33 15 1,113 0 0 82 164 0 0 317 0 1,802

Fochriw Primary 1,993 1,817 2,269 809 0 834 1,056 1,165 1,622 1,184 1,075 630 14,453

Gilfach Fargoed Primary 1,079 1,118 1,255 812 0 1,336 1,258 1,604 1,400 1,543 1,079 1,175 13,659

Glyngaer Primary 1,652 2,270 4,609 1,711 0 2,692 2,839 2,698 2,122 2,477 1,994 2,448 27,513

Graig Y Rhacca Primary 545 483 1,236 1,001 0 356 591 1,024 1,535 931 315 540 8,556

Greenhill Primary 619 3,606 1,279 893 0 1,104 823 1,004 3,803 2,656 690 799 17,276

Hendre Infants 894 1,180 1,520 1,180 0 1,295 1,094 1,641 1,046 1,303 877 1,159 13,189

Hendre Juniors 1,321 4,144 4,570 2,690 0 3,596 4,673 2,687 2,978 5,543 2,358 4,680 39,239

Hendredenny Park 1,782 929 573 545 0 715 255 4,272 1,330 251 269 835 11,755

Hengoed Primary 840 5,482 1,293 772 0 658 1,417 3,253 1,155 1,272 703 720 17,566

Idris Davis Primary 647 1,171 1,578 1,167 0 1,047 1,251 1,417 1,465 1,879 920 1,468 14,011

Libanus Primary 2,170 737 579 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,491 0 0 14,977

Llancaeach Juniors 1,036 3,534 1,477 1,631 0 1,988 0 2,090 2,307 2,025 1,812 3,890 21,791

Llanfabon Infants 661 1,315 1,327 1,082 0 1,328 1,308 1,216 1,001 1,594 961 469 12,262

Machen Primary 1,874 2,011 2,056 2,540 0 4,399 2,262 2,714 2,076 2,490 2,243 1,519 26,182

Maesycwmmer Primary 757 698 841 694 0 1,015 2,677 1,106 931 968 895 795 11,376

Markham Primary 515 1,009 960 1,676 0 670 2,444 1,347 864 1,359 1,042 938 12,824

Nant Y Parc Primary 17,455 6,641 1,897 1,395 0 1,669 3,088 1,592 1,908 1,482 1,778 1,115 40,019

Pantside Primary 970 937 1,221 3,939 0 1,432 1,163 1,225 1,076 1,266 2,230 809 16,268

Park Primary 514 464 606 1,157 0 551 340 303 402 316 304 288 5,245

Pengam Primary 205 45 30 912 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,191

Penllwyn Primary 982 801 887 893 0 773 1,458 851 772 1,406 612 728 10,164

Pentwynmawr Primary 645 1,112 1,081 4,897 0 852 1,285 1,373 2,342 887 903 1,121 16,498

Phillipstown Primary 299 504 639 3,640 0 1,037 1,717 1,424 1,246 661 692 459 12,319

Plasyfelin Primary 1,010 1,755 1,618 1,650 0 1,586 2,378 1,907 5,476 1,858 1,562 1,301 22,101

Pontllanfraith Primary 1,326 1,893 2,262 1,178 0 3,703 1,434 2,043 1,503 2,155 6,723 1,988 26,208

Rhiw Syr Dafydd Juniors 4,844 19,946 8,185 8,525 0 5,405 6,339 11,595 8,224 7,700 5,744 5,223 91,729

Rhydri Primary 591 1,546 10,532 904 0 2,120 3,118 1,277 856 2,366 358 862 24,530

Risca Primary 2,271 1,688 3,295 1,789 0 3,499 2,219 2,706 2,539 2,606 1,709 1,778 26,100

St Gwladys Primary 2,432 3,108 3,648 2,766 0 3,936 5,243 4,019 4,232 3,704 3,152 2,649 38,889

St Helens Primary 2,443 2,695 2,075 2,556 0 2,947 3,414 2,489 11,241 17,882 1,376 3,572 52,690

St James Primary School 2,079 1,347 2,035 1,190 58 2,380 1,791 2,251 6,984 1,972 1,043 0 23,131

Tir-y-berth Primary 2,031 3,954 2,301 2,569 0 2,891 2,463 2,846 2,453 2,581 1,900 2,725 28,713

Trinant Primary 403 747 854 570 0 2,356 727 683 2,235 762 558 578 10,473

Twyn Primary 3,662 4,991 5,684 7,757 0 5,367 6,006 5,841 4,210 6,353 3,550 0 53,421

Ty Isaf Infants School 944 851 821 3,674 0 994 727 914 953 1,230 786 1,180 13,073

Ty Sign Primary 2,401 6,432 3,688 14,110 0 6,817 5,492 5,124 2,666 6,942 5,141 3,055 61,869

Tynewydd Primary 2,449 5,211 6,769 2,096 0 2,234 3,916 1,945 1,999 4,174 1,258 0 32,050

Tyn-y-wern Primary 2,142 2,095 2,377 2,015 0 3,571 2,102 2,412 14,037 3,319 2,117 1,909 38,095

Upper Rhymney Primary 220 908 998 6,239 0 0 2,685 0 0 6,051 357 7,194 24,651

Waunfawr Primary 1,213 1,961 2,477 1,541 0 1,499 2,584 2,051 1,969 2,017 2,191 1,853 21,357

White Rose Primary 131 97 987 6,164 0 134 124 130 28,722 216 92 66 36,862

YG Bro Sannan 1,711 3,694 2,481 3,548 0 3,278 6,910 2,313 4,352 2,021 1,491 3,142 34,943

YGG Caerffili 1,003 2,541 3,077 1,407 0 2,217 2,594 4,061 4,019 6,325 2,287 1,879 31,408

YGG Y Castell 3,328 3,540 4,441 4,083 0 3,487 12,298 8,573 7,017 6,325 4,029 4,640 61,762

Ynysddu Primary 612 2,955 1,852 768 0 1,444 1,175 1,418 927 1,376 1,120 959 14,607

Ysgol Cwn Derwen 267 106 209 28 0 85 15,011 28 48 17 0 0 15,797

Ysgol Gym Bargoed 2,039 1,198 1,520 1,019 0 3,272 1,746 2,484 2,606 1,863 1,387 1,419 20,552

Ysgol Gym Trelyn 1,006 1,014 1,357 1,256 0 939 1,859 1,488 2,095 1,738 2,229 973 15,954

Ysgol Gymraeg Bro Allta 3,880 2,843 3,270 3,610 0 3,800 3,203 3,739 3,558 4,667 4,457 2,163 39,191

Ysgol Gynradd Gwyddon 1,933 2,558 700 593 0 297 287 257 358 85 0 40 7,108

Ysgol Ifor Bach 1,220 1,804 2,040 1,937 0 1,490 2,336 2,321 4,373 1,565 1,607 1,319 22,012

Ysgol Penalltau 6,277 2,174 2,819 1,538 0 5,603 1,735 4,669 1,869 2,611 4,479 1,956 35,730

Ysgol Y Lawnt 12,387 2,216 1,660 3,510 0 1,160 964 2,931 4,032 1,447 0 4,128 34,436

Ystrad Mynach Primary 286 166 2,202 1,576 0 463 337 0 316 307 226 195 6,073

Total 318,653 402,068 375,527 405,863 153,695 385,735 411,912 366,780 448,678 431,996 352,783 278,253 4,331,945

Page 134



APPENDIX 3

Method Of Payment Number

Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Percentage

Bank Payments £12,536,647 6,978 £10,140,461 7,623 £11,419,752 6,966 £10,237,229 8,057 £44,334,089 29,624 17.46%

Debit Card £445,448 2,755 £327,578 2,600 £331,623 2,479 £386,525 2,700 £1,491,174 10,534 6.21%

CCBC Interent Payments £685,122 5,128 £704,925 5,685 £701,640 5,510 £758,012 5,808 £2,849,699 22,131 13.05%

CCBC Automated telephone Line £204,251 1,118 £188,470 1,319 £219,406 1,282 £258,202 1,440 £870,330 5,159 3.04%

Cash at Cash Offices £631,941 6,785 £540,613 6,521 £491,896 6,033 £513,399 6,368 £2,177,850 25,707 15.15%

Cheque at cash Offices £353,429 982 £268,162 806 £199,418 823 £246,952 791 £1,067,961 3,402 2.01%

Mixed Payment at Cash Office £459,746 3,408 £411,192 3,545 £383,398 3,376 £447,993 3,445 £1,702,329 13,774 8.12%

Telephone payment Via Advisor £840,542 4,928 £769,065 5,382 £697,564 4,614 £754,193 5,425 £3,061,364 20,349 11.99%

Postal Remittance £200,713 449 £237,868 397 £123,024 349 £99,272 378 £660,876 1,573 0.93%

Post Office Card £205,254 3,344 £219,235 3,640 £196,844 3,318 £230,806 3,705 £852,139 14,007 8.26%

Establishment Income £466,298 1,474 £629,408 1,740 £554,932 1,815 £639,153 1,809 £2,289,792 6,838 4.03%

DWP Payments £100,846 1,248 £104,982 1,229 £116,044 1,296 £133,618 1,363 £455,490 5,136 3.03%

Credit Card £55,537 304 £16,802 97 £13,678 63 £12,989 84 £99,006 548 0.32%

Bailiff Payments £79,397 1,007 £71,522 969 £79,031 938 £67,832 986 £297,783 3,900 2.30%

Rent Collectors £41,573 769 £46,315 871 £44,939 745 £46,013 839 £178,839 3,224 1.90%

CCBC Pay Deductions £5,331 52 £10,719 69 £8,418 43 £12,038 81 £36,507 245 0.14%

Income Via Cash Admin Journals/Other £515,842 756 £343,212 1,025 £42,716 868 £26,207 849 £927,977 3,498 2.06%

Total £17,827,918 41,485 £15,030,529 43,518 £15,624,323 40,518 14,870,434£   44,128 £63,353,205 169,649 100.00%

Method Of Payment Number

Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Value £ Number Percentage

Bank Payments £14,878,322 6,002 £10,225,401 6,028 £10,457,873 6,767 £11,167,242 6,703 £46,728,837 25,500 21.69%

Debit Card  Chip & Pin £0 0 £0 0 £0 0 £0 0 £0 0 0.00%

CCBC Interent Payments £978,725 6,635 £958,401 7,009 £1,025,085 7,349 £1,188,963 8,376 £4,151,175 29,369 24.98%

CCBC Automated telephone Line £311,974 1,783 £339,462 2,004 £442,347 2,132 £463,884 2,551 £1,557,667 8,470 7.21%

Cash at Cash Offices £0 0 £605 5 £52 7 £662 4 £1,318 16 0.01%

Cheque at Cash Offcies £0 0 £0 0 £0 0 £0 0 £0 0 0.00%

Telephone payment Via Advisor £981,034 5,970 £1,075,630 6,210 £1,080,395 7,390 £1,175,412 7,862 £4,312,471 27,432 23.34%

Postal Remittance £543,840 497 £142,165 500 £135,209 656 £313,596 784 £1,134,810 2,437 2.07%

Post Office Card £209,752 2,659 £232,751 2,815 £372,790 3,574 £444,819 4,512 £1,260,112 13,560 11.54%

Establishment Income £2,904 69 £535 34 -£2,198 26 £66,363 94 £67,604 223 0.19%

DWP Payments £293,914 1,830 £317,989 1,369 £370,805 1,931 £420,151 2,251 £1,402,859 7,381 6.28%

Credit Card  Chip & Pin £0 0 £0 0 £0 0 £0 0 £0 0 0.00%

Bailiff Payments £12,177 207 £6,102 136 £25,856 367 £0 0 £44,135 710 0.60%

Rent Collectors £0 0 £0 0 £0 0 £0 0 £0 0 0.00%

CCBC Pay Deductions £12,204 77 £8,238 36 £9,754 65 £7,488 39 £37,685 217 0.18%

Income Via Cash Admin Journals/Other -£66,174 558 £80,691 359 -£31,838 497 -£17,446 826 -£34,765 2,240 1.91%

Total £18,158,672 26,287 £13,387,970 26,505 £13,886,131 30,761 15,231,135£   34,002 £60,663,908 117,555 100.00%

Income by Payment Method April 2019 to July 2019

April May June July Total

Income by Payment Method April 2020 to July 2020

April May June July Total

P
age 135



 

APPENDIX 4 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM 

 

THE COUNCIL’S EQUALITIES STATEMENT 
 

This Council recognises that people have different needs, requirements and goals and 
we will work actively against all forms of discrimination by promoting good relations and 
mutual respect within and between our communities, residents, elected members, job 
applicants and workforce. 
 

We will also work to create equal access for everyone to our services, irrespective of 
ethnic origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, disability, gender reassignment, 
religious beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or other languages, 
nationality, responsibility for any dependents or any other reason which cannot be 
shown to be justified. 
 

EIAs are a legal requirement under equalities legislation (Equality Act 2010 (Statutory 
Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011) where the potential for a significant negative impact 
has been identified.  This legislation has been in place since 2000.  We also have a 
legislative duty to: 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct that 
is prohibited by the Equality Act 2010 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not 

• foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who do not.  

 

The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves:  

• removing or minimising disadvantages experienced by people due to their protected 
characteristics 

• taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are 
different from the needs of other people  

• encouraging people with protected characteristics to participate in public life or in 
other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.  
 

The protected characteristics are: 
 

• Age • Race 

• Disability • Religion, Belief or Non-Belief 

• Gender Re-assignment • Sex 

• Marriage and Civil Partnership • Sexual Orientation 

• Pregnancy and Maternity • Welsh Language* 
 

Page 136



*  The Welsh language is not identified as a protected characteristic under the Equality 
Act 2010, however in Wales we also have to treat Welsh and English on an equal 
basis as well as promoting and facilitating the use of the Welsh language. 

 
THE EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

NAME OF NEW OR 
REVISED PROPOSAL* 

 
Removal of Doorstep rent collection service 

DIRECTORATE Social Services 
 

SERVICE AREA Housing 
 

CONTACT OFFICER Sandra Isaacs 
 

DATE FOR NEXT REVIEW 
OR REVISION 

 
 

 
*Throughout this Equalities Impact Assessment Form, ‘proposal’ is used to refer to 
what is being assessed, and therefore includes policies, strategies, functions, 
procedures, practices, initiatives, projects and savings proposals.  
 
The aim of an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is to ensure that Equalities and Welsh 
Language issues have been proactively considered throughout the decision making 
processes governing work undertaken by every service area in the Council as well as work 
done at a corporate level. 
 
The Council’s work across Equalities, Welsh Language and Human Rights is covered in 
more detail through the Equalities and Welsh Language Objectives and Action Plan 
2016-2020. 
 
When carrying out an EIA you should consider both the positive and negative 
consequences of your proposals.  If a project is designed for a specific group e.g. disabled 
people, you also need to think about what potential effects it could have on other areas 
e.g. young people with a disability, BME people with a disability. 
 
There are a number of supporting guidance documents available on the Corporate Policy 
Unit Portal and the Council’s Equalities and Welsh Language team can provide advice as 
the EIA is being developed.  Please note that the team does not write EIAs on behalf of 
service areas, the support offered is in the form of advice, suggestions and in effect, 
quality control. 
 
Contact equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk for assistance. 
  

Page 137

mailto:equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk


PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSAL 
 

1 What is the proposal intended to achieve? 
(Please give a brief description and outline the purpose of the new or updated 
proposal by way of introduction.) 
 
Caerphilly Housing has offered a doorstep rent and council tax collection service 
since 1996 at Local government reorganisation, the predecessor Authorities 
Rhymney Valley and Islwyn also operated a similar service.  
 
The numbers using the service have gradually reduced over the years to a pre-
Covid level of 365 properties, from a stock of over 10,000 properties. The 
payments are collected from the tenants on a fortnightly or monthly basis.  Each 
visit takes no longer than 5 minutes. The majority of payments are made using 
cash. 
 
Since lockdown was implemented in March 2020 this service has been 
temporarily withdrawn due to COVID restrictions.   There has now been a 
significant channel shift in the way these tenants make their payments. 
 
40% continue to pay cash fortnightly at the post office, 39% pay online where 
assistance is offered by and customer service advisor and 20% have chosen to 
pay online.  All tenants have been contacted by phone, letter and offered 
assistance to pay their rent in another way.  Tenants can still continue to pay in 
cash at their local post office and this appears to be the slightly preferred 
payment method 
 
 In view of this it is proposed to permanently terminate the doorstep collection 
service and re-deploy staff elsewhere within the Rent section to support tenants 
 
This proposal will remove a service that is naturally declining and support 
tenants to continue to use alternative payment methods. This in turn will reduce 
the associated costs and risks to the Authority and tenant of cash handling. 
 

  

2 Who are the service users affected by the proposal? 
(Who will be affected by the delivery of this proposal? e.g. staff members, the 
public generally, or specific sections of the public i.e. youth groups, carers, road 
users, people using country parks, people on benefits etc.  Are there any data 
gaps?) 
 
2 members of staff equating to 1 x full time equivalent post. 
 
365 tenants who were in receipt of the service prior to Covid restrictions 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 138



IMPACT ON THE PUBLIC AND STAFF 
 

3 Does the proposal ensure that everyone has an equal access to all the services 
available or proposed, or benefits equally from the proposed changes, or does 
not lose out in greater or more severe ways due to the proposals? 
(What has been done to examine whether or not these groups have equal access to 
the service, or whether they need to receive the service in a different way from other 
people?) 
 
The doorstep collection service is only offered to tenants who are resident in one of 
the councils sheltered schemes or who are in receipt of disability benefits. 
 As a result the service is predominantly used by those tenants who are elderly.  A 
breakdown of the profile of the service users is presented below. NB the totals add 
up to more than 365 as some tenancies are joint tenancies.  
 
 

Gender 
Age range 

Total 
<50 50-59 60-69 70-79 80-89 90+ 

Female 8 15 45 101 89 26 284 

Male 5 7 35 73 36 6 162 

Total 13 22 80 174 125 32 
  

 
 
 

  

Page 139



4 Is your proposal going to affect any people or groups of people with 
protected characteristics? 
(Has the service delivery been examined to assess if there is any indirect effect on 
any groups?  Could the consequences of the policy or savings proposal differ 
dependent upon people’s protected characteristics?) 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Positive, 
Negative, 
Neutral 

What will the impact be?   
If the impact is negative how can it be mitigated? 

Age Negative 
Alternative payment options available. Support will 
be provided to move over to alternative payments 
methods if needed 

Disability Negative 
Alternative payment options available. Support will 
be provided to move over to alternative payments 
methods if needed 

Gender 
Reassignment 

Neutral 
No negative impact due to this specific protected 
characteristic 

Marriage & Civil 
Partnership 

Neutral 
No negative impact due to this specific protected 
characteristic 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

Neutral 
No negative impact due to this specific protected 
characteristic 

Race Neutral 
No negative impact due to this specific protected 
characteristic 

Religion & Belief Neutral 
No negative impact due to this specific protected 
characteristic 

Sex Neutral 
No negative impact due to this specific protected 
characteristic 

Sexual 
Orientation 

Neutral 
No negative impact due to this specific protected 
characteristic 

 

5 In line with the requirements of the Welsh Language Standards. (No.1) 
Regulations 2015, please note below what effects, if any (whether positive 
or adverse), the proposal would have on opportunities for persons to use 
the Welsh language, and treating the Welsh language no less favourably 
than the English language. 
(The specific Policy Making Standards requirements are Standard numbers 88, 
89, 90, 91, 92 and 93.  The full detail of each Standard is available on the 
Corporate Policy Unit Portal.  Although it is important that what is outlined in the 
proposal is available in Welsh and English, please consider wider impacts on 
Welsh speakers.) 
 
The alternative payment types are available bilingually with the tenant able to 
chose their language preference 
 
 

 

 
  

Page 140



INFORMATION COLLECTION 
 

6 Please outline any evidence and / or research you have collected which 
supports the proposal?  This can include an analysis of service users. 
(Is this service effectively engaging with all its potential users or is there higher or 
lower participation of uptake by one or more protected characteristic groups? If so, 
what has been done to address any difference in take up of the service?  Does 
any savings proposal include an analysis of those affected?) 
 
Tenants 
All tenants affected by the temporary suspension of the doorstep service in March 

2020 have been contacted by the Rents Team by telephone and informed 
that the service could not be provided in the short to medium term and have 
been supported to move to other payment methods. As a result of this: - 

 
• Online payment   20%  (initiated from home) 
• Over the phone to an advisor 39% (initiated from home) 
• Using a post office card to pay in the local post office 41% 
 
Risks 
Caerphilly is now the only council in Wales providing a doorstep rent collection 
service.  This is due to both the costs of the service and the inherent health and 
safety risks:- 
  
•Tenants need to keep cash in their homes and carry large sums of cash home 
from Post Office etc 
  
•The rent collector carries a significant amount of cash. 
 
Costs 
  
 Transactional cost for rent collector - £6.70 per transaction – (this includes 
salaries, mileage, IT and internal overheads). 
 
The cost per transaction has escalated as economies of scale have been lost as 
tenant take up has reduced, with increased travelling times.  
 
In comparison, the Post Office charges an initial set-up cost of £1.90 and an 
ongoing transaction cost of £0.54.  
 
In the past, visits from the rent collector were seen as contributing to the well-
being of tenants who had few visitors and opportunities for interaction. 
  
Today, the Council supports residents in many ways e.g. community connectors, 
Estate Management Officers, Tenant Support Officers, Tenant Liaison Officers, 
Surveyors. A range of opportunities for interaction are also provided by other 
Council services, and the third sector. 
 
In addition, the Rents section has developed a comprehensive support service to 
tenants that provides advice on welfare benefit entitlement, water rate tariffs and 
payment of rents.  The team has contacted 950 tenants and assisted them to 
claim over £1 million additional income during 19/20 financial year. 
  

Page 141



The number of staff providing this support service has steadily increased and 
should a decision be taken to end the doorstep rent collection service the 
remaining of staff (1FTE) will be redeployed into one of these roles. 
  
 
 

 
 

CONSULTATION 
 

7 Please outline the consultation / engagement process and outline any key 
findings. 
Methods 
 
 
All tenants receiving the service have been contacted by phone and alternative 
payment methods discussed in the short to medium term, as this service has been 
temporarily withdrawn due to COVID restrictions 
 
Some of the tenants we contacted wanted to continue to pay in cash and we 
assisted to arrange for a post office card to be paid where they could pay in their 
local post office. Many tenants were not aware they could pay their rent in the post 
office  
 
The tenants were contacted during the lockdown period tenants and a few had 
concerns how they would pay their rent if they were self isolating.  Assistance was 
offered and telephone numbers were provided to enable them to pay over the 
phone with the assistance of the customer services team within Caerphilly and 
guidance was offered to access the online payment facility.  Caerphilly Council 
tenancy support team number was left with the tenants if they needed any further 
support  
 
All tenants have been assisted to channel shift to other payment methods. 
 
 
41% of tenants now pay in cash at the post office 
20% pay online 
39% pay over the phone 
 
 
 
 

 

MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 

8 How will the proposal be monitored? 
(What monitoring process has been set up to assess the extent that the service is 
being used by all sections of the community, or that the savings proposals are 
achieving the intended outcomes with no adverse impact? Are comments or 
complaints systems set up to record issues by Equalities category to be able 
analyse responses from particular groups?)  
 

Page 142



Prior to the formal termination of the rent collection service all users of the service 
will be written to/telephoned advising them of the termination of the service and 
additional support will be offered with alternative payments methods should 
tenants require it.  
 
The team will also support tenants to access other council services eg community 
connectors and raise awareness of other key Council services, and the third 
sector. 
 
 
 

9 How will the monitoring be evaluated? 
(What methods will be used to ensure that the needs of all sections of the 
community are being met?) 
 
Payments by the tenants who were formerly on the rent collection round will be 
checked on a monthly basis and if payments are not being made then a support 
officer will contact the tenant to discuss any problems they may be encountering 
and provide support. This monitoring will be in place for a period of 6 months after 
the removal of the service. 
 
 
 

 

10 Have any support / guidance / training requirements been identified? 
(Has the EIA or consultation process shown a need for awareness raising 
amongst staff, or identified the need for Equalities or Welsh Language training of 
some sort?) 
 
None identified 
 
 
 
 

 

11 If any adverse impact has been identified, please outline any mitigation 
action. 
 
The only adverse impact on tenants will be the loss of a fortnightly or monthly visit 
by the collection officer. This is mitigated by the range of alternative payments 
methods and support options that are available to tenants. 
 
The Rent section will also be able to provide support with moving to an alternative 
payment method should a tenant require assistance. 
 
 

 

12 What wider use will you make of this Equality Impact Assessment? 
(What use will you make of this document i.e. as a consultation response, 
appendix to approval reports, publicity etc. in addition to the mandatory action 
shown below?) 
 
This assessment will be used as an appendix to approval reports 

Page 143



 

13 An equality impact assessment may have four possible outcomes, through 
more than one may apply to a single proposal.  Please indicate the relevant 
outcome(s) of the impact assessment below.   

Please tick as appropriate: 
 

No major change – the impact assessment demonstrated that the 
proposal was robust; there was no potential for discrimination or 
adverse impact.  All opportunities to promote equality have been 
taken.  
 

Adjust the proposal – the impact assessment identified potential 
problems or missed opportunities.  The proposal was adjusted to 
remove barriers or better promote equality.   
 

Continue the proposal – the impact assessment identified the 
potential problems or missed opportunities to promote equality.  The 
justification(s) for continuing with it have been clearly set out.  (The 
justification must be included in the impact assessment and must be in 
line with the duty to have due regard.  Compelling reasons will be 
needed for the most important relevant proposals.) 
 

Stop and remove the proposal – the impact assessment identified 
actual or potential unlawful discrimination.  The proposal was stopped 
and removed, or changed. 

 

  

Form completed by: 

Name: Sandra Isaacs 

Job Title: Rents Manager 

Date:  

  

Head of Service Approval 

Name: Shaun Couzens 

Job Title:  

Signature:  

Date:  

 
 

x 

 

 

 

Page 144



 
CABINET – 14TH OCTOBER 2020 

 
SUBJECT:  CASHLESS CATERING SOLUTION - SCHOOLS 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

 

 

1. The attached report was considered by the Policy and Resources Scrutiny 
Committee on 29th September 2020. The scrutiny committee was advised that 
the purpose of the report is to update Members on the current position with 
regards to the Council’s Cashless catering solution in schools, and to seek 
endorsement of a recommendation to Cabinet for further funding to expand the 
provision. 

 

2. Mr J Lloyd the Headteacher at Ystrad Mynach Primary School provided 
Members with an overview of the pilot scheme which has been in place at Ystrad 
Mynach Primary School for the past two years. He explained that this system 
has been welcomed and is used by 94% of parents. It allows parents to make 
online payments to the school, keep track of the amounts paid and also monitor 
the meals that children are having. Mr Lloyd also explained that the introduction 
of this scheme has saved effectively 10-12 hours of the school clerks time 
allowing her to support other work within the school. The solution ensures that 
the school cook gets accurate information on meal requirements and children in 
receipt of free school meals are not differentiated from other children. The school 
has also been audited during the past year and it was found to work very well 
with no issues reported.  

 

3. Members sought clarification with regard to how parents who are not using the 
system  will manage when catering resumes in schools, considering the current  
covid-19 restrictions and the need to social distance. Mr Lloyd was able to 
reassure the committee that appropriate and discreet processes will be in place 
for money to be passed on to the school. 

 

4. The Scrutiny Committee discussed the system used at schools currently not 
using Caerphilly Catering, it was explained that the system outlined in this report 
would only be available to those schools using the Caerphilly Catering Service, 
although the contract does allow for further schools to be added at a later date. 

 

5. Members expressed concerns regarding the charges to be applied to schools 
after the first year and whether they were affordable. The benefits of time and 
efficiency as well as the potential increased uptake of free school meals, and the 
subsequent financial benefits to the school were highlighted.  

 

6. Assurance was sought regarding the reliance of the cashless system and if 

Page 145

Eitem Ar Yr Agenda 8



schools could opt out in future. Members were advised that there was a very 
robust procurement process to secure this system and the contract includes 
appropriate break clauses to safeguard the Authority. Members were informed 
that schools want this system and they accept the charges because of the 
benefits that will result in terms of efficiency and accountability.  

 

7. Members discussed how arrears in payments will be dealt with and wanted to be 
assured that children will still be provided with a meal. The committee were 
informed that the school already have good relationships with parents and would 
address any arrears as soon as possible and that the school would ensure that a 
meal is provided. 

 

8. Following consideration and discussion the Policy and Resources Scrutiny 
Committee unanimously agreed to recommend to Cabinet that: 

 
 

(I) To proceed to purchase the cashless catering solution for 84 school 
settings. 

 
(II) The residual funding requirement of £246.5k be met from Education and 

Corporate Services Reserves. 
 

 
Author:  Catherine Forbes-Thompson, Scrutiny Manager – forbecl@caerphilly.gov.uk 
 
Appendices: Report to Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 29th September 2020 – 

Agenda Item 9. 

Page 146



 
 

POLICY & RESOURCES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 
29TH SEPTEMBER 2020 

    
SUBJECT:  CASHLESS CATERING SOLUTION - SCHOOLS 
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR FOR EDUCATION AND CORPORATE 

SERVICES 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Members on the current position with regards 

to the Council’s Cashless catering solution in schools, and to seek endorsement of a 
recommendation to Cabinet for further funding to expand the provision. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 

 
2.1 A Cashless catering provision allows pupils and parents to pay for school lunches via 

an online payment solution, enabling cash handling and associated administration to 
be significantly reduced in schools.  

 
2.2 There is a cashless catering system currently operating in 9 of our secondary 

schools, which needs updating due to IT advancements, 10 primary schools 
(operating as part of a pilot) and 65 primary settings have no current cashless 
catering provision. 

 
2.3  A procurement process has been undertaken and will be finalised if funding is 

approved.  
 
2.4 Due to the recent events of Covid 19, it has become an urgent requirement for 

schools  to reduce the amount of cash handled. The implementation of the cashless 
catering system would enable the service to significantly reduce cash payment for 
school meals and other school activities. The system will also support teachers and 
staff to keep pupils in individual classrooms.  

 
2.5 The system will also enable schools to prevent any discrimination between paid and 

free school meals pupils. 
 
2.6 Each individual schools administration officers will be able to support parents without 

online access. This support will consist of an online account being set up on behalf of 
the parent by the schools administration team. 

 
2.7  The system will also provide additional features to allow parents to pay for school 

uniforms, trips and activities, photographs, tuck shops etc. 
 
2.8 The system would also allow the accounting and administration of the payments for 

visitors and staff meals without cash payments being required. 
 

Appendix

Page 147



2.9 Other efficiencies are also envisaged such as reduction / elimination of the need for a 
secure cash collection service 

 
 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Members are asked to: - 
 

a) Consider the information contained in the report. 
 

b) Endorse a recommendation to Cabinet to proceed to purchase the cashless catering 
solution for 84 school settings. 
 

c) Endorse a recommendation to Cabinet that the residual funding requirement of 
£246.5k be met from Education and Corporate Services Reserves. 

 
 
4. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 To ensure Members are updated on the reasons why a cashless catering solution is 

vital within the school environment.  
 
4.2 To allow a catering service to be provided in schools, a cashless catering solution is 

essential to be able to take payments for school meals. 
 
4.3 To comply with internal audit recommendations. 
 
4.4 To support the education settings to minimise the risk of cash handling associated 

with Covid 19. 
 
 
5. THE REPORT 
 
5.1 A cashless catering provision allows pupils and parents to pay for school lunches 
 via an online payment solution, enabling cash handling to be minimised in schools.  
 
5.2 A cashless catering system is currently in 9 of our secondary settings, which needs 
 updating due to IT advancements, 10 primary settings already operate the 
 system, as a pilot, and 65 primary settings have no current cashless catering 
 provision, so will require a complete install.  
 
5.3 This report covers schools that are operated by the in-house provider Caerphilly 
 Catering. Newbridge, St Martins, Ysgol Gyfyn Cwm Rhymni (Gellihaf site) and 
 Lewis Secondary Schools, all run their own catering provision and  operate their own 
 cashless catering solution, so have not been considered as part of this report. 

However additional schools/sites are able to join throughout the contract duration 
subject to implementation costs being secured. 

 
5.4  Cashless Catering has been in place in secondary schools since 2000. Over the 

years the systems have been developed and improved using the latest technology 
that has been available to us. Currently we offer online payments via apps or 
customers are able to pay online and in the Secondary sites payment can also be at 
either at a till point or a loader situated within the school canteen.  Cash collected at 
these sites is collected 2 times a week by a secure cash collection service and each 
visit incurs a contractual charge. 

 
5.5  In March 2016 an Internal audit was undertaken to establish how cash was collected 

and banked within our Primary Schools and the values and management of school 

Page 148



meal arrears within the system. The audit was based on a number of objectives and 
identified areas of improvements. Based on the findings of the audit report a cashless 
catering pilot system was introduced into 4 of our Primary Schools.   

 
5.6 The pilot was for a year and involved colleagues across service areas from Internal 

Audit, Procurement, IT, Education Finance, Corporate Finance and key school 
representatives. The pilot was a great success, please refer to appendix 7. Cash 
collected and banked in these schools reduced by 91% and parental and school 
feedback was extremely positive, and this allowed an additional 5 schools to use this 
system please refer to appendix 6. To address all the findings raised in the audit 
report of March 2016, this solution needed to be rolled out to all remaining schools. 

 
5.7  A full procurement process has very recently been completed, to implement and 

update cashless catering across 84 school settings. 
 
5.8  Due to the recent events of Covid 19, it has become an urgent requirement for 

schools  to reduce the amount of cash handled. The implementation of the cashless 
catering system would enable the service to minimise cash payment for school meals 
and other school activities. The system will also support teachers and staff to keep 
pupils in individual classrooms.  

 
5.9 The system will also enable schools to prevent any discrimination between paid and 

free school meals pupils.  The system will also be able to be updated daily with FSM 
entitlement, the current system only allows updates weekly. 

 
5.10 Each individual schools administration officers will be able to support parents without 

online access. The schools administration team will set up an account on the parents 
behalf and manage this where necessary by adding funds in the back office 
administration system held at the school. 

 
5.11  The system also provides additional features to allow parents to pay for school 

uniforms, trips and activities, photographs, tuck shops etc, and where primaries and 
secondary’s within a cluster all use the system it will enable parents to manage 
school meal and other payments for their children from ages 4 to 16. 

 
5.12 The cost of the cashless system is broken down as follows 
 

• A yearly maintenance charge for a primary school will be £598.39 

• A yearly maintenance charge for a secondary school will be £1,963.23. 

• A yearly maintenance charge for a middle school will be £2,561.62 

• A yearly maintenance charge for a special school will be £598.39 

• 5 year Hardware Cost for 9 Secondary Schools based on average of 5 tills - 
£51,108.75 (per school £5,678.75); 

• 5 year Hardware Cost for 75 Primary Schools based on average of 2 tablets - 
£89,088.30 (per school £1,187.84); 

• One off WIFI costs are £6,000. 

• Installation, training, and software costs are £201,480.99 

• Staff Costs initially on an 18 month fixed term contracts are £72,255 

• The total cost of the cashless catering is £482,481.22. 

• Uniware’s set up and preparation time is 41 days from start to finish.. 

• Tablets will be configured by Uniware and Internal IT requirements can be 
undertaken at Tredomen. Anticipated resource for implementation is 3 days for 2 
members of staff. 
 

It is proposed that the Authority meets the installation, training, hardware and 
sofware costs and maintenance costs for the remainder of this financial year.With 
maintenance costs from year 2 on being met by individual schools. This will allow 

Page 149



schools time to budget for this increased cost. 
 
5.13 It is proposed that training is undertaken by virtual webinars and a train the trainer 

approach. 
 
5.14 There is an extensive range of YouTube videos available for both customers and 

backend office users on how to use the system. Please see 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCUZC0K5IQfENzOpP0jBq1DA/videos?disable_p
olymer=1  

 
5.15 It is proposed, subject to member approval to rollout the provsion to all schools with 

immediate effect if approval is given. 
 
5.16 If approval is given there will be benefits to both the organisation and service user. 
 
5.17 The organisational benefits of the cashless catering system is to: 
 

• Be able to operate a catering provision whilst managing the risks associated with 
Covid 19; 

• Reduce the audit reports finding of “High Risk” to “Low Risk”; 
• Maximise income levels; 
• A reduction in schools meals arrears; 
• Every child’s account has an overdraft facility that allows a credit for one meal. 

The school can add additional funds if required from the schools account. This will 
prevent any child going without a meal, and where appropriate e.g. welfare 
concerns, additional meals can be authorised by Head Teachers 

• Guest and staff meals can also be administered more effectively than the current 
system. 

• Ensuring financial regulations are met and all income is collected and banked in a 
timely and efficient manner; 

• Reduction or elimination of the need to use secure cash collection services or the 
onsite administration of bank deposits of the cash collected. 

• Management information that is timely, accurate and can be easily audited and 
monitored to measure performance and customer satisfaction; 

• Establishment of a fully supported IT system.  The schools meals register 
currently used is unsupported and has reached the end of its life cycle; 

• Implementation of a single system would have direct benefits on the Income Team 
(Corporate Finance) in terms of staff resources; 

• Ensure the Authority is better prepared for the future of meeting customer’s needs 
within a digital world. 

• Any additional duties required to reconcile income takings will be undertaken 
centrally and therefore will have no impact on school clerk’s duties. 
 

5.18 Service User Benefits 
 

• Online system that allows parents to access the system either through the App 
Store, Google Play or in the Windows Store; Please see appendix 1 for an 
example; 

• Allows parents to view the menu selection made by their child. The access also 
enables parents to view an up to date statement of the account balance, 
purchases made and any promotional offers available. Please see appendix 2 for 
an example; 

• Provides peace of mind for parents who can see the meals their children are 
purchasing.  Alternatively, should they wish, parents can dictate the school meals 
to be provided with allergen & nutritional information presented to them online. 
This will help us comply with the recent legislation on allergen awareness; Please 
see appendix 3 for an example; 

• The money automatically goes to a central bank account, avoiding cash and 

Page 150

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCUZC0K5IQfENzOpP0jBq1DA/videos?disable_polymer=1
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCUZC0K5IQfENzOpP0jBq1DA/videos?disable_polymer=1


cheques having to be sent to the school. Parents can also check balances and 
transactions online. The service is available 24 hours a day, seven days a week. 

• A reward system is available for healthy eating choices; (Please refer to appendix 
8) 

• There are currently restrictions placed on how parents are able to pay for school 
dinners depending on the resources available in individual schools.  
Implementation of a digital system would remove these restrictions ensuring parity 
and equality and also free up resources within schools; 

• Allow 24hrs a day / 7 days a week access for customers. If there are any technical 
issues the system has a backup facility which will allow the system to be functional 
and when the system is back up and running it will update accordingly.  

• Improvement in governance control measures; 
• Reduce volumes of cash held by the schools which improves security measures 

currently in place; 
• Free school meals are easily manageable alongside paid meals; 
• The school will not be working in deficit and waiting to collect the debt from 

parents as lunches, trips etc. are paid upfront; 
• Simplification and streamlines the process for parents and administrators; 
• Reduces queueing time and the risk of theft/loss of cash; If a child loses / stolen 

their card then as soon as it is reported an immediate block is put on the account 
to stop any unauthorised usage. 

• All parents / guardians are encouraged to use the online top up facility to remove 
the risk of a child losing money or being bullied and having the money taken off 
them. 

• Reduce amount of unnecessary trips and school traffic at peak times; 
• Parents can be more organised for the school day; 
• The system ensures funds are spent appropriately on food at the schools as 

intended by parents and not taken to the shops by the children to purchase 
sweets etc.; 

• Avoids instances of bullying as the online funds are kept private; 
• If a school clerk is absent the parent / guardian can still pay for school meals. 

School clerks are very often part time; 
• Prevents pupils carrying money into school which will help to reduce the potential 

for bullying; 
• Creates a personalised shopping experience for customers; 
• Offers the potential for additional features to allow parents to pay for school 

uniforms, trips and activities, photographs, tuck shops etc; 
• Where the system is in use within all schools in a cluster accounts will be able to 

be ported from primary to primary or from primary to secondary. 
• If children are showing a credit amount on their account and move to another LA 

school the credit sum on the account will be refunded. 
 
 
6. ASSUMPTIONS 
 
6.1 No assumptions have been made in relation to this report. 
 
 
7.  LINKS TO RELEVANT COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
7.1 Caerphilly’s Attainment Strategy: To raise standards and ensure our learners are 

healthy, confident, proud and ambitious and can access high quality educational 
opportunities, settings and experience. 

 

7.2 Caerphilly’s Wellbeing Objectives 2018 to 2023. This proposal will assist the 
Authority in meeting these objectives in particular the following:  

Well-being Objective 1 – Improve Education opportunities for all. 

Page 151



Well-being Objective 2 – Enabling Employment. 
 
 

8. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
8.1 The Well-Being of Future Generation (Wales) Act 2015 is about improving the social, 

economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of Wales.  It requires public bodies to 
think more about the long-term, working with people and communities, looking to 
prevent problems and take a more joined up approach.  This will create a Wales that 
we all want to live in, now and in the future.  The Act puts in place seven well-being 
goals:  

 

• A prosperous Wales. 

• A resilient Wales. 

• A healthier Wales. 

• A more equal Wales. 

• A Wales of cohesive communities. 

• A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language. 

• A globally responsible Wales. 
 
8.2 The Act sets out the sustainable development principle against which all public 

bodies in Wales should assess their decision-making. The aim of the legislation is to 
ensure the well-being of future generations through maximising the contribution 
public bodies make towards the well-being goals. In using the sustainable 
development principle it is incumbent that the authority considers the whole of the 
population it serves and considers the effect of its actions on future generations. The 
principle, also known as the five ways of working is assessed below: 
 
• Long Term - Management information on free school meal uptake which is 

necessary for the Revenue Support Grant (RSG). We want to improve 
accessibility throughout the county borough, through a range of ways including 
better digital access. Our goal is that every child should have the best start in life, 
and the opportunity to achieve success as a young person and as an adult. 

• Prevention - To help people make the best use of their household income and 
manage their debts. Close the gap in life expectancy for residents between the 
most and least deprived areas in the Borough. 

• Integration - Improve outcomes for all leaners, particularly those vulnerable to 
under achievement 

• Collaboration – The cashless catering solution is collaboration between 
Catering Services and Education establishments to remove any discrimination 
between pupils who are either paying or receiving a free school meal allowance. 

• Involvement – Throughout the pilot there has been consultation between all 
relevant stakeholders, e.g. Head Teachers, Education Officers, Internal Audit, IT, 
Procurement, Governing bodies, parents and pupils.  

 

9. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 This will also have a positive impact on the children and young people attending 
schools that have allergies and medical needs. 

 
9.2 The majority of customers are children and young people. Children will no longer 

have to carry cash. This is a positive outcome due to there being less opportunity for 
them to be bullied or to lose the money. 

 

Page 152



9.3 The Cashless system works the same for all children whether they pay or have a free 
school meal. The amount allocated for the free school meal will be automatically 
added onto the system.  

 
9.4 For those families that don’t have IT equipment at home the system can be accessed 

using smart phones. This system allows children to put money on to their account via 
a cash revaluation terminal located in the school (in secondary schools) and in 
primary schools cash can be given to the school clerk who will update the child’s 
account in systems back office. This is then used to pay for food and drink in the 
canteen.  

 
9.5 Schools will also have the ability to add additional funds to pupil’s accounts in 

extreme cases to ensure that any vulnerable / safeguarding issues with individual 
pupils / families are able to be managed by the Head teacher or nominated school 
representative. 

 
 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 To support the rollout of the cashless catering provision, two additional posts will be 

required, one within finance and one within catering. The posts will initially be fixed 
term for 18 months and reviewed before the end of the fixed term period. The costs 
for these posts are estimated as £72k. 
 

10.2 The 2019/20 Provisional Outturn Report included a proposal to set aside £236k for 
cashless catering and this was agreed by Cabinet on the 1st July 2020.  

 
10.3 The annual Maintenance costs for the system for all school settings provisions will be 

charged to the individual schools, from year 2, which equates to £62,5k. 
   
10.4  The total sum of the system is £482.5k, the yearly maintenance costs of £62,5k will 

be charged to schools settings from year 2. The additional funding requirement is 
£246.5k. It is proposed that this will be funded from Education & Corporate Services 
Reserves.  

 
 
11. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no personnel implications. 
 
 
12. CONSULTATIONS 
 
12.1 The following consultees have had been involved and consulted. 
 
 
13. STATUTORY POWER  
 
 
13.1 The Healthy Eating in Schools (Wales) Measure 2013 
 Requirement (Wales) Regulations 2013 Free Breakfast Clubs 
 
Author:   Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning and Strategy  
  
Consultees: Richard Edmunds, Corporate Director of Education and Corporate Services 
 Christina Harrhy, Chief Executive 
 Mark S Williams, Interim Corporate Director of Communities 
 Dave Street, Corporate Director Social Services & Housing 

Page 153



 Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 
 Steve Harris, Acting S151 Officer  
 Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning & Strategy 
 Liz Lucas, Head of Customer and Digital Services 
 Lynne Donovan, Head of People Services 
 Rob Tranter, Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer 

Jane Southcombe, Finance Manager, Education, Lifelong Learning & Schools 
Clare Rogers, Business Development Manager 
Neil Rich, IT Development Officer 
Jess Thomas, Procurement Officer 
Deborah Gronow, Audit Group manager 
A Cullinane, Senior Policy Officer (Equalities & Welsh Language) 
Marcia Lewis, Catering Manager 
Cllr Jaimie Pritchard, Chair of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
Cllr Gez Kirby, Vice Chair of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee 
Cllr Teresa Parry, Chair of Education Scrutiny Committee 
Cllr Carole Andrews, Vice Chair of Education Scrutiny Committee 
Cllr Ross Whiting, Cabinet Member for Learning and Achievement 
Cllr Eluned Stenner, Cabinet Member for Finance, Performance and 
Customer Services  

 
Appendices: Appendix 1 – Screen shot of Upay Chilli logon screen 

Appendix 2 – Screen shot of users’ statement 
Appendix 3 – Screen shot of allergens for a pupil 
Appendix 4 – Screen shot from Saffron of nutritional information for a week 
Appendix 5 – Online ordering screen shot 
Appendix 6 – Percentage uptake of online payments for the first 4 schools 
pilot schools (after the completion of 1 term) 
Appendix 7 – Feedback comments from Head Teachers and parents 
Appendix 8 – Sample of reward scheme currently in place within the 
Secondary sector 
Appendix 9 – Equality Impact Assessment Form 

 
 

Page 154



Appendix 1 

Screen shot of Upay Chilli Logon Screen

 

  

Page 155



 

Appendix 2 

Screen shot of users’ statement 

 

  

Page 156



Appendix 3 

Screen shot of allergens for a pupil 

 

 

  

Page 157



Appendix 4  

Screen shot from Saffron of nutritional information for a week 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 158



Appendix 5 

Online Ordering Screen Shot 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
Page 159



Appendix 6 

Percentage uptake of online payments for the first 4 schools pilot schools (After the completion of 1 term) 

  SCHOOL NAME 
Totals 

Total Cash % Online 

4020 Pengam Primary (2058) £19,852.60 18% 82% 

4025 
Fleur-De-Lys Primary 
(2061) £13,595.19 6% 94% 

4064 Blackwood Primary (2379) £39,468.22 17% 83% 

4534 Ysgol Cwm Derwen (2394) £27,105.12 1% 99% 

 

NB 

It should be noted that when the pilot was initially introduced the take up of the online payments resulted in a 

slower up take by parents in both Pengam Primary and Blackwood Primary. The catering service worked in 

partnership with both schools to help parents to load on line at the school or through the catering head office 

which resulted in greater up take at both sites. Cash has reduced in all areas and been maintained and debt has 

been reduced across all sites. 

Comment from School Clerk Pengam and Fleur Dy Lys Primary 

“At the beginning of the cashless catering trial, we were still taking 18% cash after the first term.  We found 
that Pengam parents were a little nervous to use the new cashless system. 
 
We discussed the benefits of the system with the parents who were still sending in cash.  We 
then encouraged them to register on the Upay Chilli app and see how easy it was to use.   
 
We noticed after that that we were taking less cash, and now all parents use the cashless system” 

  

Page 160



Appendix 7 

Feedback comments from Head Teachers and Parents 

Comment from a parent of a pupil in Whiterose Primary 

“The cashless system that the school uses for our children's dinners as made life a lot easier, I use the app to top up 

my child’s account, making life easier in the morning not having to find money.  It is so quick and easy to use and was 

so simple to set up.   The app is really good, you can keep track on how much money is on your child’s account and 

not have t worry about not having money to give every week.”  

Comment from a parent of a pupil in Abercarn Primary 

“The cashless catering system has been an absolute life saver and made the whole process of my children having 

dinners so much easier. It saves me having to find money each week or day to pay for their meals; I simply use the 

system to top up for me. It means that it’s one less thing for me to worry about on a daily basis. I would highly 

recommend any school using it, they won’t be sorry”. 

Comment from Head Teacher in Abercarn Primary 

“The cashless catering system has proven to be very effective and worthwhile. It’s super convenient with a lot less 

admin. It means we have no cash coming into school for dinners – no money is lost or mislaid.  Admin staff can be 

very proactive checking the system and we have no debts. Parents find it super convenient and have really welcomed 

the system”.  

 Comment from Cook in Charge of Blackwood Primary 

“When I was asked to become a pilot site for the cashless catering system I was so nervous and apprehensive as I was 

not used to using IT. Once the system was implemented it was so simple to use it has encouraged me to use IT more 

widely in both work and at home”. 

Comment from Head Teacher of Ystrad Mynach Primary 

“The cashless system has transformed the way that we administer meals to children. Time effective, efficient, and 

easy to analyse data and reports. Parents and Office staff find is easy and accessible to use. We advocate its 

implementation in schools”. 

Comment from School Clerk from in Ysgol Cwm Derwen 

“I think the system is fantastic, not only has it made administration far more streamlined and auditable, it reduces 

any difficult conversations taking place between myself and parents who dispute cash payments made to the school 

as the system is fully auditable and receipts are issued to parents when payment is made”. 

Comment from a parent of a pupil in Ysgol Cwm Derwen 

“Cashless catering takes a weight of my mind as I have automated top ups which means there is always credit on my 

child’s account so I know they will always have a meal”. 

Comment from Pengam Primary 

“We were asked to take part in a pilot for cashless catering some time ago.  The Headteacher, Governors and office 

staff were happy and very keen to trial the system. 

 

Page 161



The system is easy to use for both office staff and also parents.  They top up on line and are able to use an auto top 

up which tops up their child’s account when it goes below a certain amount, which parents find useful. 

The office staff are able to run a report in the morning which shows who has a low balance, they then text parents 

who then top up before lunchtime. This works well in Pengam. 

When we first piloted the system we would take cash but encourage parents to sign up for the Upay Chilli app.  We 

then made the decision to stop taking cash as office staff would be banking very small amounts of cash.  We helped 

the parents to sign up for the app and all parents are happy to top up on line.   

The benefits of the cashless system are vast but the main benefits are that office staff do not have to record every 

individual cash/cheque payments against pupils on an outdated spreadsheet, which was extremely time consuming, 

office staff do not have to count money and bank several times a week.  There is no debt in the school which is a huge 

benefit.  If a child has a minus balance we ask that the parent either tops up or provides a packed lunch until the debt 

is paid.  This system works as parents then top up their child’s account.  The system is easy to use and office staff only 

have to spend a small amount of time on dinners.  This has given them more time to concentrate on other duties.  All 

reports are easy to navigate.  It is easy to find a pupil’s unique number and check their accounts and amend anything 

if needed. 

The Headteacher, Governors, office staff and cook in charge would not be without the system now, it is easy to use. “ 

Comment from a parent of a pupil in Pengam Primary 

“As a parent I find the app and the system as a whole really simple to use and great for seeing what the children have 

had for their school dinners each day. I find the auto top-up beneficial as I don’t have to remember to add funds to 

their accounts each week (although this is far easier than having to dash to the cash point every Sunday night before 

this system was introduced!), and it saves the school clerks having to chase payment. I’m really pleased the school 

have this system in place as it makes my life as a busy working parent much simpler!” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 162



Appendix 8  

Sample of reward scheme currently in place within the Secondary sector. The cashless catering 

proposal would facilitate similar schemes across all schools 

Points Make Prizes – Parental Guidance  

The Points Make Prizes scheme was developed by Caerphilly County Borough Council’s Catering department to 
promote healthy eating. A new healthy menu range was launched a few years ago with tariff incentives for 
healthier food items and a range of health promotion initiatives. 

We have introduced a web-based points reward scheme administered via the cashless system which promotes 
the uptake of healthy options. Students can request a statement of accumulated points at the end of each term 
for healthy eating, which they can then use to exchange online for a range of appealing prizes such as High 
Street vouchers and cafeteria reward vouchers. 

We have been supported by partnership working with schools, NPHS, Health Challenge Caerphilly, the Welsh 
Assembly Government, suppliers and other partners to ensure that the borough’s young people are offered the 
best in school catering facilities. 

More recently, the service provided by Caerphilly Catering has been reviewed in line with the guidelines detailed 
in the Welsh Assembly Government’s “Appetite For Life” Guidance. This has prompted a number of changes to 
the service style, menu and the website - most notably, full nutritional analysis of all menu items to ensure a 
balanced menu is on offer to all pupils. 

How do I redeem my prizes? 

Please email catering@caerphilly.gov.uk, stating POINTS REDEMPTION in the header.  Please state your 
name, school, school year, how many points you have on your account, and what prize you would like to 
claim.  If you do not have access to email, you can write to us to redeem your points – please send the letter to 
Caerphilly Catering, Penallta House, Tredomen Business Park, Hengoed CF82 7PG 

 Your prize will be taken to your school cafeteria and delivered to you personally.  Please note, that if you 
redeem your points in the summer holidays, you will have to wait until the start of the new school term to receive 
your prize. 

What kind of prizes can I buy with my points? 

Caerphilly County Borough Council have a selection of exciting products for you to spend your hard-earned 
points on.  These prizes will vary monthly and will be publish at you school site. 

Terms and Conditions 

Listed below are the Caerphilly County Borough Councils Point Scheme terms and conditions. If you have any 
questions about these terms, or any other related issue, please write to us at the following address: Caerphilly 
Catering, Penallta House, Tredomen Business Park, Hengoed CF82 7PG. 

1. The Points Make Prizes Scheme is administered by and remains the property of Caerphilly County 
Borough Council, who reserve the right to decline issue or withdraw the scheme at any time without 
notice. 

2. All participants in the scheme must be a pupil within a Caerphilly Catering-run school. 
3. The Cashless Catering account is not transferable, and can only be used by the person whose name is 

on the account. 
4. Members may be removed from the scheme at any time at the discretion of Caerphilly County Borough 

Council. 

POINTS 

1. To earn points for a transaction in the Points Makes Prizes Scheme, you must be a member of the 
cashless catering system which is run by either a card transaction or the biometric system. 

2. Pupils can only use their card / biometric system to purchase food for their own consumption. Regular 
checks are carried out and pupils found to be buying food for others to accumulate points will receive no 
reward. 

REWARDS 

Page 163

mailto:catering@caerphilly.gov.uk


1. Rewards can only be redeemed if you have the appropriate number of points on your card / biometric 
system. 

2. There are a limited number of prizes available each year. 
3. Meal Deal prizes are for the value of the current price. 
4. A reward can be removed/ replaced without notice, and are subject to availability. 
5. Should a reward become unavailable, Caerphilly County Borough Council reserve the right to send an 

equivalent replacement. 
6. Rewards run from a school academic year i.e. September to July each year. 
7. Remaining points will be reset back to zero at the end of the school academic year 
8. All redemption requests for each school academic year must be made by 31st July of that year. 

Please note that there is a redemption processing period of up to 28 days for all prizes that are external to the 
school site  i.e. vouchers Prizes that can be used in the school cafeteria (such as Meal Deals Priority Pass 
tickets) will be made available within a month of the claim. 

 

Page 164



 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM 
July 2019 

 

THE COUNCIL’S EQUALITIES STATEMENT 
 

This Council recognises that people have different needs, requirements and goals and 
we will work actively against all forms of discrimination by promoting good relations and 
mutual respect within and between our communities, residents, elected members, job 
applicants and workforce. 
 

We will also work to create equal access for everyone to our services, irrespective of 
ethnic origin, sex, age, marital status, sexual orientation, disability, gender reassignment, 
religious beliefs or non-belief, use of Welsh language, BSL or other languages, 
nationality, responsibility for any dependents or any other reason which cannot be 
shown to be justified. 
 

EIAs are a legal requirement under equalities legislation (Equality Act 2010 (Statutory 
Duties) (Wales) Regulations 2011) where the potential for a significant negative impact 
has been identified.  This legislation has been in place since 2000.  We also have a 
legislative duty to: 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct that 
is prohibited by the Equality Act 2010 

• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and those who do not 

• foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those 
who do not.  

 

The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves:  

• removing or minimising disadvantages experienced by people due to their protected 
characteristics 

• taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are 
different from the needs of other people  

• encouraging people with protected characteristics to participate in public life or in 
other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.  
 

The protected characteristics are: 
 

• Age • Race 

• Disability • Religion, Belief or Non-Belief 

• Gender Re-assignment • Sex 

• Marriage and Civil Partnership • Sexual Orientation 

• Pregnancy and Maternity • Welsh Language* 
 

*  The Welsh language is not identified as a protected characteristic under the Equality 
Act 2010, however in Wales we also have to treat Welsh and English on an equal 
basis as well as promoting and facilitating the use of the Welsh language. 

APPENDIX 9

Page 165



 
THE EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

NAME OF NEW OR 
REVISED PROPOSAL* 

 
Provision of Cashless Catering System 

DIRECTORATE Education and Corporate Services 
 

SERVICE AREA Catering 
 

CONTACT OFFICER Marcia Lewis 
 

DATE FOR NEXT REVIEW 
OR REVISION 

August 2025 
 

 
*Throughout this Equalities Impact Assessment Form, ‘proposal’ is used to refer to 
what is being assessed, and therefore includes policies, strategies, functions, 
procedures, practices, initiatives, projects and savings proposals.  
 
The aim of an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is to ensure that Equalities and Welsh 
Language issues have been proactively considered throughout the decision making 
processes governing work undertaken by every service area in the Council as well as work 
done at a corporate level. 
 
The Council’s work across Equalities, Welsh Language and Human Rights is covered in 
more detail through the Equalities and Welsh Language Objectives and Action Plan 
2016-2020. 
 
When carrying out an EIA you should consider both the positive and negative 
consequences of your proposals.  If a project is designed for a specific group e.g. disabled 
people, you also need to think about what potential effects it could have on other areas 
e.g. young people with a disability, BME people with a disability. 
 
There are a number of supporting guidance documents available on the Corporate Policy 
Unit Portal and the Council’s Equalities and Welsh Language team can provide advice as 
the EIA is being developed.  Please note that the team does not write EIAs on behalf of 
service areas, the support offered is in the form of advice, suggestions and in effect, 
quality control. 
 
Contact equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk for assistance. 
  

Page 166

mailto:equalities@caerphilly.gov.uk


PURPOSE OF THE PROPOSAL 
 

1 What is the proposal intended to achieve? 
(Please give a brief description and outline the purpose of the new or updated 
proposal by way of introduction.) 
 
To install and maintain a cashless payments systems within the Council’s Primary 
Schools and Secondary Schools.  
 
It should be noted that the Council already has a cashless catering contract in 
place with Uniware, which expires on 31 March 2021. However, a new 
arrangement needed to be put in place for the solution to be rolled out to all 
Primary Schools in readiness for the schools returning in September to reduce 
cash handling and minimise associated risks as detailed in Covid 19 guidance. 
 
 
 
 

  

2 Who are the service users affected by the proposal? 
(Who will be affected by the delivery of this proposal? e.g. staff members, the 
public generally, or specific sections of the public i.e. youth groups, carers, road 
users, people using country parks, people on benefits etc.  Are there any data 
gaps?) 
 
Young people and families, teaching and catering staff. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

IMPACT ON THE PUBLIC AND STAFF 
 

3 Does the proposal ensure that everyone has an equal access to all the 
services available or proposed, or benefits equally from the proposed 
changes, or does not lose out in greater or more severe ways due to the 
proposals? 
(What has been done to examine whether or not these groups have equal access 
to the service, or whether they need to receive the service in a different way from 
other people?) 
 
There are currently restrictions placed on how parents are able to pay for school 
meals depending on the resources available in individual schools.   
 
Implementation of a digital system would remove these restrictions ensuring parity 
and equality and also free up resources within schools.  
 

•Allow 24hrs a day / 7 days a week access for customers. If there are any 
technical issues the system has a backup facility which will allow the 

Page 167



system to be functional and when the system is back up and running it will 
update accordingly.  
•Improvement in governance control measures; 
•Reduce volumes of cash held by the schools which improves security 
measures currently in place; 
•Free school meals are easily manageable alongside paid meals; 
•The school will not be working in deficit and waiting to collect the debt from 
parents as lunches, trips etc. are paid upfront. 
•Simplification and streamlines the process for parents and administrators; 
•Reduces queueing time and the risk of theft/loss of cash; If a child loses / 
stolen their card then as soon as it is reported an immediate block is put on 
the account to stop any unauthorised usage. 
•All parents / guardians are encouraged to use the online top up facility to 
remove the risk of child losing money or being bullied and having the 
money taken off them. 
•Reduce amount of unnecessary trips and school traffic at peak times; 
•Parents can be more organised for the school day; 
•Provides peace of mind for parents who can see the meals their children 
are purchasing.  Alternatively, should they wish, parents can dictate the 
school meals to be provided with allergen & nutritional information 
presented to them online. This will help us comply with the recent 
legislation on allergen awareness; 
•The system ensures funds are spent appropriately on food at the schools 
as intended by parents and not taken to the shops by the children to 
purchase sweets etc.; 
•Avoids instances of bullying as the online funds are kept private; 
•If a school clerk is absent the parent / guardian can still pay for school 
meals. School clerks are very often part time; 
•Prevents pupils carrying money into school which will help to reduce the 
potential for bullying;  
•Creates a personalised shopping experience for customers; 
•Offers the potential for additional features to allow parents to pay for 
school uniforms, trips and activities, photographs, tuck shops etc. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 168



4 Is your proposal going to affect any people or groups of people with 
protected characteristics? 
(Has the service delivery been examined to assess if there is any indirect effect on 
any groups?  Could the consequences of the policy or savings proposal differ 
dependent upon people’s protected characteristics?) 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Positive, 
Negative, 
Neutral 

What will the impact be?   
If the impact is negative how can it be mitigated? 

Age Positive 

The majority of customers are children and young 
people. Children will no longer have to carry cash. 
This is a positive thing because there is less 
opportunity for them to be bullied or to lose the 
money. 
 
Cashless system works the same for all children 
whether they pay or have a free school meal. The 
amount allocated for the free school meal will be 
automatically added onto the system.  
 
For those families that don’t have IT equipment at 
home the system can be accessed using smart 
phones. This system allows children to put money on 
to their account via a cash revaluation terminal located 
in the school (in secondary schools) and in primary 
schools cash can be given to the school clerk who will 
update the child’s account in systems back office. This 
is then used to pay for food and drink in the 
canteen.be able to use the system.   
 
Schools will also have the ability to add additional 
funds to pupil’s accounts in extreme cases to ensure 
that any vulnerable / safeguarding issues with 
individual pupils / families are able to managed by the 
Head teacher or nominated school representative.  

Disability Neutral 

The impact of cashless catering does not impact 
additionally on these groups 

Gender 
Reassignment 

Neutral 

Marriage & Civil 
Partnership 

Neutral 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

Neutral 

Race 
Neutral 

Religion & Belief 
Neutral 

Sex 
Neutral 

Sexual 
Orientation 

Neutral 

 

Page 169



5 In line with the requirements of the Welsh Language Standards. (No.1) 
Regulations 2015, please note below what effects, if any (whether positive 
or adverse), the proposal would have on opportunities for persons to use 
the Welsh language, and treating the Welsh language no less favourably 
than the English language. 
(The specific Policy Making Standards requirements are Standard numbers 88, 
89, 90, 91, 92 and 93.  The full detail of each Standard is available on the 
Corporate Policy Unit Portal.  Although it is important that what is outlined in the 
proposal is available in Welsh and English, please consider wider impacts on 
Welsh speakers.) 
 
The system complies with the Welsh Language Standards. Parents will be written to regarding the 
system bilingual communication etc. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
  

Page 170



INFORMATION COLLECTION 
 

6 Please outline any evidence and / or research you have collected which 
supports the proposal?  This can include an analysis of service users. 
(Is this service effectively engaging with all its potential users or is there higher or 
lower participation of uptake by one or more protected characteristic groups? If so, 
what has been done to address any difference in take up of the service?  Does 
any savings proposal include an analysis of those affected?) 
 
An initial pilot included 4 primary schools, which was extended to 10 was run for 1 
year. The evaluation of the pilot evidenced that the system had been a great 
success and resulted in cash handling at individual sites reducing. Uptake of 
parents / guardians using the online payments system in each of these schools 
was 90%. 
 
Feedback from parents, Head teachers and school clerks stated that the system 
had 
 

• reduced the amount of time they spent on cash handling 

• improved relationships with parents / guardians as difficult conversations 
relating to non-payment of monies had reduced significantly 

• the system was very easy to use and could be accessed from multiply sites 

• provided full traceability of payments or any refunds made 

• online statements detailing purchase history for individual customers 

• full auditable  

• instant communication with parents / guardians available via email 
automatic link 

• parents had instant access to top up their child’s accounts 

• easier for transition days as the system is compatible with the current 
cashless catering solutions in Secondary’s 

• system fully automated including an excellent reporting system available to 
monitor on-line payments 

• system is bilingual – multiple languages can be offered 

• would not want the system removed due to the ease of use and the 
success with parents / guardians. 

• reduction of the level of bad debt. 
 
We worked closely with education finance, schools, governing body, audit, IT and 
central income (Corporate Finance) to capturing feedback of how the system 
benefited all parties. 
 
The trial was successful in all areas that were evaluated. The evaluation of the 
project has enabled the 10 pilot schemes to be brought into the 21st century and 
has, changed our business and provides new revenue and value-producing 
opportunities to meet the demand and expectations of our 28,000 customers and 
we would now like to introduce this into the remaining 68 primary schools and 
update the 9 secondary schools. 
 
 

 
 

Page 171



CONSULTATION 
 

7 Please outline the consultation / engagement process and outline any key 
findings. 
(Include method of consultation, objectives and target audience.  What steps have 
been taken to ensure that people from various groups have been consulted during 
the development of this proposal?  Have you referred to the Equalities 
Consultation and Monitoring Guidance?) 
 
A case study was undertaken by a school clerk based in Pengam and Fleur de 
Lys Primary of how cash was collected in their school. The objective of the case 
study identified how cash handling could be improved within their school for all 
users i.e. staff, pupils, parents, governing body and administration users. 
 
The feedback off the 10 primary schools that currently use the system from 
parents, Head teachers and school clerks stated that the system had 

 

• reduced the amount of time they spent on cash handling 

• improved relationships with parents / guardians as difficult 
conversations relating to non-payment of monies had reduced 
significantly 

• the system was very easy to use and could be accessed from 
multiply sites 

• provided full traceability of payments or any refunds made 

• online statements detailing purchase history for individual customers 

• full auditable  

• instant communication with parents / guardians available via email 
automatic link 

• parents had instant access to top up their child’s accounts 

• easier for transition days as the system is compatible with the 
current cashless catering solutions in Secondary’s 

• system fully automated including an excellent reporting system 
available to monitor on-line payments 

• would not want the system removed due to the ease of use and the 
success with parents / guardians. 

 
 
Equalities consultation and monitoring guidance was considered throughout the 
consultation and engagement process and all parties included in the consultation 
were happy that there were no gaps in the process that was undertaken. 
 
The following officers were also consulted alongside Senior Management Team of 
the authority. 
 
Steve Harris, Acting S151 Officer  
Sue Richards, Head of Education Planning & Strategy 
Jane Southcombe, Financial Services Manager 
Clare Rogers, Business Development Manager 
Neil Rich, IT Development Officer 
Jess Thomas, Procurement Officer 
Matthew Death, IT Officer 
Deborah Gronow, Senior Audit Officer 

Page 172



 
If we are unable to implement this initiative we will need an alternative solution in 
Primary Schools as the manual entry system is at the end of its current lifespan, 
and is incompatible for other payment methods and is not supported by IT 
services.  Failure to replace existing technology will result in an inability to process 
income payments worth over £1.4 million to the Authority. 
 
 
 
 

 

MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 

8 How will the proposal be monitored? 
(What monitoring process has been set up to assess the extent that the service is 
being used by all sections of the community, or that the savings proposals are 
achieving the intended outcomes with no adverse impact? Are comments or 
complaints systems set up to record issues by Equalities category to be able 
analyse responses from particular groups?)  
 
A regular contractual monitoring meeting will take place in line with current 
procurement guidelines which will enable the authority to closely monitor the 
performance of the system, contractor and users i.e. monitor up-take, nutritional 
information, allergen requirements of individual pupils, debt management, user 
uptake and product sales etc. 
 
This monitoring process will ensure that the product is kept up to in line with our 
customers’ needs. 
 

9 How will the monitoring be evaluated? 
(What methods will be used to ensure that the needs of all sections of the 
community are being met?) 
 
The system allows instant feedback from customers via automated survey which 
will be evaluated and acted as part of our internal quality management system.  
 
The system will also be monitored at our regular contract review meetings. 
 
Take up and usage figures will also be monitored. 
 

 

10 Have any support / guidance / training requirements been identified? 
(Has the EIA or consultation process shown a need for awareness raising 
amongst staff, or identified the need for Equalities or Welsh Language training of 
some sort?) 
 
19 schools will need no training as they currently have the system in place, 
however, 68 primary school clerks and catering staff will require training. This has 
been planned via webinars and train the trainer schemes (maintaining current 
guidance of 2 meter social distancing).  
 

Page 173



Alongside the above all users of the system i.e. parents, pupils will need written 
guidance of simple step by step bilingual instructions of how to use the system. 
School clerks will be trained how to support parents / guardians who have no IT 
skills or equipment, internet connection or have additional learning needs. 
 
User manuals and YouTube videos are also available. 
 

 

11 If any adverse impact has been identified, please outline any mitigation 
action. 
 
Every child will be allowed an overdraft facility of 1 meal. This will prevent any 
child going without food. To support this action the system has an automated 
notification to all parents / guardians notifying them of when their account will 
require topping up. 
 
Schools will also have the ability to add additional funds to pupil’s accounts in 
extreme cases to ensure that any vulnerable / safeguarding issues with individual 
pupils / families are able to managed by the Head teacher or nominated school 
representative.  

 

12 What wider use will you make of this Equality Impact Assessment? 
(What use will you make of this document i.e. as a consultation response, 
appendix to approval reports, publicity etc. in addition to the mandatory action 
shown below?) 
 
This document will be included in any reports connected with cashless catering 
reviews, together with being publicised on CCBC website for members of the 
public to review and comment on. 
 

 
  

Page 174



13 An equality impact assessment may have four possible outcomes, through 
more than one may apply to a single proposal.  Please indicate the relevant 
outcome(s) of the impact assessment below.   

Please tick as appropriate: 
 

No major change – the impact assessment demonstrated that the 
proposal was robust; there was no potential for discrimination or 
adverse impact.  All opportunities to promote equality have been 
taken.  
 

Adjust the proposal – the impact assessment identified potential 
problems or missed opportunities.  The proposal was adjusted to 
remove barriers or better promote equality.   
 

Continue the proposal – the impact assessment identified the 
potential problems or missed opportunities to promote equality.  The 
justification(s) for continuing with it have been clearly set out.  (The 
justification must be included in the impact assessment and must be in 
line with the duty to have due regard.  Compelling reasons will be 
needed for the most important relevant proposals.) 
 

Stop and remove the proposal – the impact assessment identified 
actual or potential unlawful discrimination.  The proposal was stopped 
and removed, or changed. 

 

  

Form completed by: 

Name: Marcia Lewis 

Job Title: Principal Officer Catering 

Date: 28/07/20 

  

Head of Service Approval 

Name:  

Job Title:  

Signature:  

Date:  

 
 

X 

 

 

 

Page 175



Gadewir y dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol

Page 176


	Agenda
	3 Cynhaliwyd y Cabinet ar 30ain Medi 2020.
	4 Blaenraglen Waith y Cabinet.
	5 Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol – Adroddiad Monitro a Gwella Blynddol 2018-2019.
	Atodiad 1

	6 Gweithio Hyblyg.
	Atodiad

	7 Trin Arian Parod.
	Atodiad

	8 Gwasanaeth Arlwyo Heb Arian - Ysgolion.
	Atodiad


